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14,668 12,905 12,721 14 1
4,387 4,832 4,521 ©) 7
1,026 1,104 1,049 0 5
3,361 3,728 3,472 (10) 7

E*TRADE
2020 10 110 E*TRADE
E*TRADE

E*TRADE E*TRADE
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
)
3,999 2,700
Q 175.4 97.8
98.1 80.1
® 23.1 9.7
(©)] 306 187
(O} 0.24 0.91
(€)) ( ) (
)
@)
(©)
2020 12 31
250
) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31 ( )
2020 2019 2018
12 31 12 31 12 31
)
Q 3,167 2,623 2,254
) 1,472 1,267 1,046
€)) 77.4 64.9 65.9
46 48 46
( ) 16 15 16
) 832 77 49
( DART )( Y(5) 280 3 3
( )(6) 6.7 1.6 1.1
@) 435 133 13
( )(8) 4.9 2.7 1.0
(€))
@)
©)
O 25
(5) DART 2020
DART 1,106,000 E*TRADE
)
)
®)
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)
2020 2019 2018 2020 2019
559 509 475 10 7
844 734 279 15 163
2,291 1,726 1,804 33 )
3,694 2,969 2,558 24 16
2020
2019 24 3,694
2020
2020 E*TRADE
2020 2019 10,955 2020
2020 2019 4,022
E*TRADE
2020 2019 14 14,668
(
) E*TRADE 151
E*TRADE 80
2020 52 E*TRADE
2019 2020
) 12 31 12 31
@ 322 48 (25) 14 359
313 63 (43) 46 379
155 33 (28) 17 177
435 86 () 45 509
1,225 230 (153) 122 1,424
42 28 (¢2)) — 48

721424
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1,267 258 (175) 122 1,472

2018 2019

( 12 31 12 31
@ 279 53 (19) 9 322
257 48 (39) 47 313
137 27 (32) 23 155
353 75 (48) 55 435
1,026 203 (138) 134 1,225
20 36 (14) — 42
1,046 239 (152) 134 1,267

2017 2018

( 12 31 12 31
@ 252 40 (18) 5 279
271 48 (34) (28) 257
149 29 (28) (13) 137
353 71 (42) (29) 353
1,025 188 (122) (65) 1,026
20 16 (16) — 20
1,045 204 (138) (65) 1,046

@

( bps) 2020 2019 2018
14 15 16
99 100 99
85 86 84
94 95 95
73 74 76
5 6 6
70 73 74

( )

731424
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2020 2019 2018 2020 2019

(34) () 25 N/M (132)
808 1,213 254 (33) N/M
1 1 — — N/M
3,013 2,629 2,468 15 7
(39) (46) (30) 15 (53)
3,749 3,789 2,717 @ 39
14 20 57 (30) (65)
29 46 28 <)) 64
(15) (26) 29 42 (190)
3,734 3,763 2,746 () 37
1,542 1,630 1,167 ) 40
1,322 1,148 1,115 15 3
2,864 2,778 2,282 3 22
870 985 464 12) 112
171 193 73 1) 164
699 792 391 12) 103
— — 2 N/M (100)
699 792 393 12) 102
84 73 17 15 N/M
615 719 376 (14) 91
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2020
2019 33
808
2020 AUM
2019 15 3,013
2020 2019 2,864
( )
AUM
2019 2020
12 31 12 31

( )
138 87 1) 69 ) 242
79 37 (29) 4 7 98
139 26 [e2)) 5 7 153
AUM 356 150 (104) 78 13 493
196 1,584 (1,493) 1 — 288
AUM 552 1,734 (1,597) 79 13 781

2018 2019
12 31 12 31

( )
103 39 (31) 28 @ 138
68 25 (20) 5 1 79
128 22 @7 10 [0 139
AUM 299 86 (68) 43 [0) 356
164 1,315 (1,283) 2 &) 196
AUM 463 1,401 (1,351) 45 (6) 552
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2017 2018
12 31 12 31
( )
105 38 (32) ®) — 103
73 25 @n ©) @ 68
128 22 (19) @ ©) 128
AUM 306 85 (78) 11) ®) 299
@ 176 1,351 (1,362) 2 ®3) 164
AUM 482 1,436 (1,440) 9) (6) 463
(1) 2018 180
AUM

( ) 2020 2019 2018
174 124 111
86 71 71
145 134 131
AUM 405 329 313
252 171 158
AUM 657 500 471

( bps) 2020 2019 2018
76 76 76
29 32 33
58 64 66
AUM 60 61 62
15 17 17
AUM 42 46 47

— 2018
— ( )
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2020 10
2020 10 2020 10
70
28.25
0.5833 2020 12 2020
12 18 4.25 (
) 2021
) 2020 2019 2018
22.5 18.3 20.9
( ) (122) (475) (368)
2020
2020
2019
10 15
(€H)
) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
— 90.3 42.4
— 52.6 26.1
1429 68.5
35.2 30.2
(@) 62.9 49.9
98.1 80.1
(©)
O] 7.9 5.6

771424
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27.4 26.8
10.1 12.0
5.4 5.4
50.8 49.8
346.5 219.6
(5) 309.7 189.3
(€D
@
(©)]
(O] — —
2020 2019
2020
( )
2020 12 31
2020 2019 2018
1,263 1,233 1,174
856 645 (48)
2,119 1,878 1,126
2020 2019 2018
851 916 611
1,000 760 346
268 202 169
2,119 1,878 1,126

(€))
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2020 12 31 @) 6,247
2021 @) (1,298)
2020 12 31 ®) 1,311
2021 2020 ®) 290
®) 6,550
(1) 2020
©)) 2020 12 31
©)
)
) 30 60
10
(@)
(
2021 680
2022 312
2023 609
@ 1,601
(1) 2020
@
2020
)
20
( FASB )
GAAP
( )
( )

791424
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( )
O) (i)
( )
)
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( FRC )
( BRC )
) 2020 12 31
IS i I
74,281 31,275 98 105,654
308,413 280 4,045 312,738
41,630 140,524 — 182,154
84,998 31,236 — 116,234
110,480 1,911 — 112,391
67,085 29,781 871 97,737
@ 52,449 98,130 18 150,597
0 13,986 22,458 1,913 38,357

753,322 355,595 6,945 1,115,862
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) 2019 12 31
IS WM IM
67,657 14,247 267 82,171
293,477 47 3,586 297,110
38,524 67,201 — 105,725
80,744 7,480 — 88,224
106,199 350 — 106,549
39,743 15,190 713 55,646
[6H) 50,557 80,075 5 130,637
) 14,300 13,092 1,975 29,367
691,201 197,682 6,546 895,429
IS —
W —
N —
@ ( )
( 10 )
@
( )
2019 12
31 8,950 2020 12 31 1,160
E*TRADE
( )
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2020 12 31 2019 12 31
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(
) ( HQLA )
HQLA HQLA HQLA LCR
(€D)
( ) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
49,669 35,025
HQLA )
136,555 88,754
99,659 50,732
©) 39,745 29,909
2,053 1,591
HOLA  (2) 327,681 206,011
( HQLA) 10,942 9,857
338,623 215,868
[H) 2020
HQLA
(2) HQLA HQLA
(©)
(€D)
( )
2020 2019 2020 12 31
12 31 12 31
178,033 75,894 166,516
7,670 4,049 7,423
185,703 79,943 173,939
59,468 53,128 59,803
33,368 28,905 34,712
92,836 82,033 94,515
60,084 53,892 57,364
152,920 135,925 151,879
338,623 215,868 325,818
() 2020
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OooooOodd
E*TRADE 2020
MSBNA MSPBNA  LCR ETB LCR
LCR 30
HQLA
LCR HQLA ( ) HQLA
HQLA
2020 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA  LCR (100 )
( )
2020 12 31 2020 30
HQLA(L)
43,596 36,481
[©) 162,509 170,817
HOLA (1) 206,105 207,298
LCR 129 136
(1) LCR HQLA HQLA
@
NSFR

2021

87/424

MSBNA  MSPBNA ETB



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
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LCR HQLA
) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
228,625 194,773
58,318 62,706
(€D) 4,277 13,022
)
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
195,376 210,257
54,528 64,870
(€))
(
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OooooOodd
(
14 )
) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31
@ 232,071 121,077
47,150 28,388
279,221 149,465
31,561 40,891
[©) 310,782 190,356
@
(2) 2020 12 31 250
2020

E*TRADE
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2020 12 31 (€D)
( )
1 3,690 3,691
2021 17,670 6,571 24,241
2022 16,612 5,597 22,209
2023 17,152 5,738 22,890
2024 16,109 5,618 21,727
2025 11,336 7,300 18,636
2026 80,943 22,742 103,685
159,822 53,566 213,388
159,823 57,256 217,079
o
2020 12 31 2,170 2019 12 31 1,930
( )
14
2021 19 MSBNA MSPBNA
DBRS R-1( ) AC)
F1 A
P-1 Al
a-1 A
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S&P A-2 BBB+
MSBNA
F1 A+
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
MSPBNA
P-1 Aa3
S&P A-1 A+
2020 10 ( )
A3 A2 MSBNA MSPBNA Al Aa3 2021
27 A2 Al
2020 11 20 MSBNA
2020 2019 2018
( ) 29 121 97
( ) 46.01 44.23 50.08

( ) 1,347 5,360 4,860
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18
2021 20
0.35
2021 12
2021 29
2020 12 15
2021 15
2020 12 31
18
( SPE ) ( )
SPE
16
15
( ) 2020 12 31
2021 2022 -2023 2024 -2025 2026
@ 24,241 45,099 40,363 103,685 213,388
Q) 1,655 1,684 134 408 3,881
0 3,952 6,714 5,254 15,886 31,806
— 18,681 9,075 3,496 513 31,765
®) 841 1,533 1,171 2,685 6,230
10 1,297 1,037 319 175 2,828
) 50,667 65,142 50,737 123,352 289,898
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(€))
14
) 2020 12
31
14
(©)
12
O]
®)
( 22 )
FRB FRB
FRB
i
0cC
FRB
0cC
17
TLAC
TLAC
(
)
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
— 2.5 2.5
C s HD 5.7 N/A N/A
G-SIB &) 3.0 3.0 3.0
( CCyB )(3) 0 0
O 8.7 5.5 5.5
2020 2019
12 31 12 31
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®)
4.5 13.2 10.0 10.0
6.0 14.7 11.5 11.5
8.0 16.7 13.5 13.5
(1) sc8
(2) G-SIB — —G-SIB
(3) CyB 2.5
“4) ( )
2020 10
SCB G-SIB CCyB
2.5 G-SIB cCyB
®)
( RIA )
RWA
— (
)
(i)  RWA RWA (
)y (i)  RWA RWA RWA (
) RWA
RWA
SLR
SLR( SLR )
2021 12 31
RWA
( CECL )
( )
2020 2020
@ 12 31 & 12 31
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78,650 78,650
88,079 88,079
97,213 96,994
RWA 453,106 445,151
13.2 17.4 10.0 17.7
14.7 19.4 11.5 19.8
16.7 21.5 13.5 21.8
( ’ ® 1 3
@ 1,053,310
4.0 8.4
©I0) 1,192,506
SLR(4) 5.0 7.4

95/424
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OoOoOoOoOodno
( ) 2019 12 31
(€D)
64,751 64,751
73,443 73,443
82,708 82,423
RWA 394,177 382,496
10.0 16.4 16.9
11.5 18.6 19.2
13.5 21.0 21.5
( ) 2019
O 12 31
@ 889,195
4.0 8.3
©) 1,155,177
SLR 5.0 6.4
@
@
(
)
©)
O
( ) (i)
(iii)
(4) 2021 31 FRB 2020 12 31 SLR
2020 12 31
SLR 80bps —
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OooooOodd
) 2020 2019
12 31 12 31
15,799 5,228 10,571
78,978 70,589 8,389
(1,962) (2,788) 826
(11,527) (7,081) (4,446)
(4,165) (2,012) (2,153)
@ 1,527 815 712
78,650 64,751 13,899
9,250 8,520 730
619 607 12
9,869 9,127 742
(440) (435) 5)
88,079 73,443 14,636
7,737 8,538 (801)
146 143 3
1,265 590 675
14 ) ®)
9,134 9,265 (131)
97,213 82,708 14,505
7,737 8,538 (801)
146 143 3
1,046 305 741
14 (6) ®
8,915 8,980 (65)
96,994 82,423 14,571
@ ( DVA )
2019 12 31 E*TRADE
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RWA
( ) 2020
RWA
2019 12 31 342,684 228,927
17,003 35,426
(486) 1,921
(1,683) (3,261)
10,950 8,587
9,892 3,745
2,416 2,678
3,796 4,004
(€D) 2,494 2,903
RWA 44,382 56,003
2020 12 31 387,066 284,930
RWA
2019 12 31 51,493 51,597
VaR 8,578 8,578
VaR 975 975
1,968 1,968
145 a1
2,938 2,938
@GN (CD))
RWA 14,547 14,443
22020 12 31 66,040 66,040
RWA
2019 12 31 N/A 101,972
RWA N/A (7,791)
2020 12 31 N/A 94,181
RWA 453,106 445,151
VaR — ( VaR )

@
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2020 RWA
E*TRADE
RWA
2020 RWA
2020
G-SIB
G-SIB
G-SIB
G-SIB
( )
FRB G-SIB
( LD )
SPOE
TLAC
(
)
TLAC LTD
(i)RWA 18
) 7.5
(i)RWA
G-SIB

4.5

EDINETOOOO

OO00O000000O(E5871)
ooooooo
RWA
VaR
RWA
G-SIB
( )
G-SIB
( ) TLAC
LTD LTD
LTD
LTD 2016 12 31
(i) (SLR
TLAC
(i)
LTD

99/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
TLAC LTD
( )
) 2020 12 31 2019 12 31

TLAC(2) 216,129 196,888
RWA TLAC 18.0 21.5 47.7 49.9

TLAC 7.5 9.5 18.1 17.0

LTD(3) 120,561 113,624
RWA LTD 9.0 9.0 26.6 28.8

LTD 4.5 4.5 10.1 9.8
€))

TLAC TLAC TLAC 2.5
G-SIB CCyB( (RWA
) TLAC
TLAC (
)
@ TLAC ( ) LTD
(3) TLAC LTD( 50
)
LTD
TLAC 2020 12 31
TLAC
G-SIB (TLAC LTD )
2021
FRB
FRB ( CCAR )
FRB
FRB FRB
2,500
( ) FRB
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FRB
FRB 2020
SCB
SLR
SLR ( )
SCB
Q.5 ) ScB (i)
RWA (ii)2.5
SCB
RWA
ScB
SCB
FRB
FRB
S8 10 FRB
FRB 10 SCB
2020 2020 ( )
FRB 2020 25  FRB FRB
2020 29
(IR) 2020 2020 10 FRB
2020 (2020 )
5.7 SCB SCB
13.2
FRB 2020
2020 11 2020 FRB 2020 17
2020 12 18  FRB
FRB 2020 12 18
SCB SCB
2021 31

2021
2020 12 18 FRB
2021 100
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2021 2021
FRB FRB 2021 30
CCAR
FRB 15
FRB 2020 25 2020
FRB 2020
SCB
(
) FRB
(
)
( FRB
)
2020 12 18 2021
2020
( )
(
)
(€))
) 2020 2019 2018
42.8 40.4 40.8
@ 20.8 18.2 16.8

2.6 2.5 2.6
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14.0 11.6 9.8
80.2 72.7 70.0
Q) GAAP GAAP
&) 2020 10 E*TRADE

2021

2020

SCB
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SPOE

2019

FRB
FRB

FRB

2019

12

2021

FRB

28

FRB
2019

SPOE

FRB

FRB FDIC
SPOE
)
(
FDIC 2019
)
FRB
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2017

TLAC

0.25
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2019



FRB
150
90
FRB
FRB

GAAP ( TOR )

FRB

FRB 2020 2021 31

occ

0CcC
2020 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA
2020 20
O) (
) (i)
( CCyB G-SIB
SCB)
FRB

TLAC
2020 26
CECL

TLAC CECL
)

CECL
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0.25

MSPBNA
2020 30

SLR

FRB

(2020 31



0cC

CARES 2020 27
FRB
CARES
TDR
CARES
FDIC
FDIC
2020 12 27
TDR 2022
FRB
2020 12 31
CARES
FRB
FRB
EU
2020 31 EU
12
EU
2020 12 24 EU

( CARES ) 2021
CARES
13 3
GAAP
FDIC
CARES
CARES
CARES
EU
EU

EU
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2020
EU
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EU
2021
EU
LIBOR
FRB LIBOR (
IBOR )
2021 1BOR
LIBOR ICE 2020
LIBOR 2023 30 2021 12
LIBOR
FCA ( 2021 12 31 )
LIBOR LIBOR
2023 LIBOR
2020
( LCH ) ( CME )
LCH CME
LIBOR SOFR
( ISDA )  LIBOR
1SDA 2020 1BOR ISDA
2020 1BOR 2021 25
ISDA  1BOR
1SDA
IBOR
IBOR
IBOR
(
)
LIBOR ( 2021 LIBOR 2023 30
)
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IBOR

(1SDA 2020
LIBOR
ISDA 2020 1BOR

SOFR

IBOR
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2020 10-K

1585
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(2020 12 31 )
( 0.01 ) 3,500,000,000 2,038,893,979 1,461,106,021
( 0.00 ) 30,000,000 1,247,382 28,752,618
(2020 12 31 )

0.01 2,038,893,979 —
0.01 ( ) 44,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 519,882 1)
0.01 ( ) 34,500 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 34,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 52,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 60,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 40,000 ( ) —
0.01 ( ) 20,000 ( ) —
0.01 M ) 400,000 _
0.01 ( ) 3,000 —

— 2,040,141,361 — —

(1 MUFG 1,160,791 ( 911 ) 640,909

(503 ) 2009 ( 705 )
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oooooog
(©)
] %) ( ) ()
44,000 1,000 25,000
©) 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
52,000 25 25,000
40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
60,000 25 25,000
40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
(6) 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
@) 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
) 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
(€)) 0.01
@
(©) ( ) (
)
( )
0
O) (i) (
) 90 ( )
®
1,000 10
(6) 2019 11 25
(M M E*TRADE 2020 10
( (
) ) 2020 2019 2018
(€Y) (€Y) (€Y)
1,017 44 1,014 44 1,011 45
100 52 100 52 100 52
1,781 60 1,781 60 1,781 61
1,719 60 1,719 60 1,719 58
(&) — — 1,242 24 1,656 33
1,143 60 1,418 74 1,363 71
1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
©) 1,213 74 1,388 84 1,388 83
1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
1,219 23 169 3 — _
*) — — - - - —
(5) — — — — — —
496 524 526
1.40 2,295 1.30 2,161 1.10 1,930
€Y
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®
®HMm

®

2020
2019
2020
2021
2021

15
15
15

2026
2023

15
15
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2016 2020
( ) ( ) |« )| « ) ( )
2015 12 31 7,520 804,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 24,153
( 832,915 ) ( 2,215 ) ( 2,675,186 )
2016 (892)
10
2016 12 31 7,520 804,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,271
( 832,915 ) ( 2,215 ) ( 2,577,496 )
2017 45
()
306
1,000 40,000 (6) ( )
an
2017 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,545
(943,675 ) ( 2,215 ) ( 2,607,844 )
2018 249
2018 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,794
(943,675 ) ( 2,215 ) ( 2,635,423 )
2019 500 ®3) ( )
(500) «
@
@
131
13
2019 12 31 8,520 844,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 23,935
(943,675 ) ( 2,215 ) ( 2,651,041 )
2020 730 403,000 (
)
®
518
1,093 | E*TRADE
®
2020 12 31 9,250 1,247,382 20 | 2,038,893,979 25,546
(1,024,530 ) ( 2,215 ) ( 2,829,475 )
[ 16
) 16
(3) 2020 E*TRADE

18
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2020 12
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2021 11 2020 12 31 136
136 (i) 120,549,956
113,160,694 (i)
94,728,035 94,723,690 90,065,997
) 2021 2020 12 31 136 136
109,404,597
2,245,335 6,163,457
) 2021 2020 12 31 136
136 97,819,596 110,581,155
®) . 2021 16 2020 12 31 136
136 ) 98,407,816 47,760,393
136
136
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113,160,694 (i)
94,728,035 94,723,690 90,065,997
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O 2021 16 2020 12 31 136
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927,381 305,755 — 1,233,136
* 138,856 147,758 — 286,614
* 392,616 199,223 — 591,839
4)* 28,070 156,971 — 185,041
183,292 159,333 — 342,625
— 24,328 — 24,328
8,851 21,885 — 30,736
4,535 83,847 — 88,382
23,274 55,333 — 78,607
(©) — — — —
(©) — — —
(6) 30,954 3,072 — 34,026
191,595 7,289 — 198,884
18,575 27,750 — 46,325
10,815 17,145 — 27,960
®) — — — —
36,129 185,091 — 221,220
3,152 17,293 — 20,445
4) — 57,132 — 57,132
24,527 32,714 — 57,241
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135,000 250,000 — — — 385,000
* 20,000 145,833 — — — 165,833
105,000 250,000 — — — 355,000
120,000 250,000 — — — 370,000
116,667 250,000 — — — 366,667
95,000 — — — — 95,000
98,333 250,000 — — — 348,333
95,000 250,000 — — — 345,000
135,000 250,000 — — — 385,000
120,000 250,000 — — — 370,000
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2020 1,500,000 7,875,000 20,048,178 — 13,833 121,513 29,558,524
2019 1,500,000 6,375,000 23,708,083 — 17,925 41,387 31,642,395
) 2018 1,500,000 6,875,000 19,748,977 — — 44,662 28,168,639
2020 1,000,000 6,037,500 4,955,756 — 55,582 47,563 12,096,401
2019 1,000,000 7,232,500 4,980,250 — 60,586 28,067 13,301,403
) 2018 1,000,000 8,670,000 5,031,435 — — 11,000 14,712,435
2020 1,000,000 9,887,500 8,760,132 — 60,686 — 19,708,318
)
2020 1,000,000 6,562,500 5,625,839 — 14,787 54,900 13,258,026
)
2020 1,000,000 6,562,500 5,849,199 — 70,197 116,028 13,597,924
2019 1,000,000 8,382,500 4,980,250 — 80,002 14,729 14,457,481
) 2018 1,000,000 8,670,000 5,588,351 — — 14,216 15,272,567
* 2020 2019 2018
@
(2) 2020 2021 2020 2020
(3) 2020 2019 2020 17 ( 2019
) 2020
17 ( 2020
) 2019 2020
2020
(O]
2020
2019
(VWAP) 2020
VAP
2020
19,125,000 3,900,000 7,875,000
4,575,000 4,800,000
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6,375,000 13,673,178 20,048,178
2,167,500 2,788,256 4,955,756
3,130,000 5,630,132 8,760,132
2,355,000 3,270,839 5,625,839
2,417,500 3,431,699 5,849,199
20
(5) 2020 ( 2020 ) 2020
2020
2019 12 31 2020 12 31
2020
2020 12 31 2012 (
) MP-2020 2012
( ERP ) 2.71 2019
12 31 2012 ( )
MP-2019 2012 ERP
3.35
(6) 2020 @) ()
( )
(a) 2020  401(K) 11,400 2020
401(K) 4,123
®
( )
2020
84,292
32,664 98,559
2020 [€))
2019 2020 ( 2019
) 2020
( 2020 )
(&)
( ( )
( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( ) ( PIC) I ¢ ) ) (O]
2020 17 2020 0 223,494 335,240 — — — 13,673,178
2020 17 2020 — — — 111,747 — — 6,375,000
2020 17 2020 0 45,575 68,362 — — — 2,788,256
2020 17 2020 — — — 37,994 — — 2,167,500
2020 17 2020 0 92,027 138,040 — — — 5,630,132
2020 17 2020 — — — 54,865 — — 3,130,000
2020 17 2020 0 53,463 80,194 — — — 3,270,839
2020 17 2020 — — — 41,280 — — 2,355,000
2020 17 2020 0 56,092 84,138 — — — 3,431,699
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CDS

CDS

CDS

CDS

Do )
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CDO CDS
CLN
CDO
CLN

CDO
CDO

1.1.1.
NAV
NAV
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ooooood
CMO CMBS ABS
FDIC
FDIC

OIS
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OooooOodd
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 22 $ 54 $ _
( ) 1 4 1
- 17 53
22) (€] -
8 1 _
$ 9 $ 22 $ 54
C D $ - $ 4 $ 1
$ 5 $ 17 $ 1
« ) - (€)) -
265 7 41
) ®) (26)
- (10) 1
$ 268 $ 5 $ 17
« ) $ - $ 3) $ -
$ 1 $ 148 $ 8
_ - 147
- (147) ©
(6} - 2
$ - $ 1 $ 148
« ) $ - $ - $ -
MABS
$ 438 $ 354 $ 423
« ) (66) (16) 82
175 132 177
(244) (175) (338)
- (44) an
19 187 27
$ 322 $ 438 $ 354
« ) $ (49 $  (57) $ ©
$ 5,073 $ 6,870 $ 5,945
« ) (65) 38 (100)
3,479 2,337 5,746
(957) (1,268) (2,529)
(2,196) (2,291) (2,281)
1 425 (613) 89
$ 5,759 $ 5,073 $ 6,870
« ) $ 58 $ © $ (37)

210/424



EDINETOOOO

0000000 000O(Ess71)

ooOoooOoo
( )

2020 2019 2018

$ 1,396 1,076 $ 701
318 418 106
2,623 650 734
(617) (729) (251)
(311) O 11
26 (12) (203)
$ 3,435 1,396 $ 1,076
$ 311 361 $ 70
$ 97 95 $ 166
(55) 8) 29
36 32 13
1n 271) (161)
25 249 48
$ 86 97 $ 95
$ 39 1 $ 17
$ 858 757 $ 1,020
32 78 (25)
61 40 149
(106) (41) (212)
an 24 (175)
$ 828 858 $ 757
$ (45) 67 $ @27
$ - _ $ _
5 — _
2,799 - _
$ 2,804 - $ _
$ 5 - $ _
$ - - $ -
$ - $ -
$ - _ $ _
$ 777 618 $ 1,218
(150) 17 111
174 98 63
(44) (16) (19
40 1 (172)
(115) 59 (583)
$ 682 177 $ 618
$ (34) 87 $ 140
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0000000000(E05871)
oooooog
( )
2020 2019 2018

$ 124 $ 40 $ 41
1) (D)) 33

98 144 13

(112) (190) (95)

94 111 56

(64) 43 ®)

$ 49 $ 124 $ 40
$ (111 $ AN $ 23
$ (3D $ 75 $ (112)
156 (295) 179

4 2 3

- - @

an 7 2

(51) 180 4

$ 61 $ (3D $ 75
$ 94 $ (187) $ 118
$ (1,684) $ (1,485) $ 1,208
72 (260) 305

179 155 122
(713) (643) (1,179)
(354) 242 314

269 307 (2,255)

$ (2,231) $ (1,684) $ (1,485)
$  (210) $  (194) $ 21
$ 1,612 $ 2,052 $ 1,446
251 73 500

89 152 34

(57 92) (18)
(183) (611) (81)

(©) 38 171

$ 1,709 $ 1,612 $ 2,052
$  (309) $ (@113) $ 272
$ 179 $ 27 $ 47
15 20 [€))

21 101 9

an (15) @

(72) 46 (26)

$ 126 $ 179 $ 27
$ 15 $ 20 $ (€))

212/424



DVA

1. 2020

2. 2020

3. 2018

0Cl

2020

2020

24

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2020 2019 2018

$ 37 $ 16 $ 25
(18) D) ®)
(3%) (65) (18)

27 38 9

3 - _

65 69 6

$ 79 $ 37 $ 16
$ (18) $ (@D $ )

$ - $ - $ 150

@n - -

470 - _
1 - (150)

$ 444 $ - $ -

$ (X)) $ - $ -

$ 109 $ 208 $ 239
21 5 39

208 - 8
17) (8) an

395 (96) 17

$ 516 $ 109 $ 208
$ 21 $ 5 $  (39)

$ 4,088 $ 3,806 $ 2,984
204 728 (385)

980 1,181 1,554
(461) (950) 274)
(437) (677) (73)

$ 4,374 $ 4,088 $ 3,806
$ 201 $ 600 $  (379)
63 182 (184)

857
707
« )
(

213/424
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VIE VIE
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000000000 0(E5871)
ooooodd
( )
1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 268 $ 5
106 N/M
MABS $ 322 $ 438
0 80 (50 ) 0 9 47 )
$ 5,759 $ 5,073
N/A 1 9 @)
N/A 15 80 (28 )
N/A 9 39bps(19bps)
1 5 B) N/A
75 102 (93 ) 69 100 (93 )
$ 3,435 $ 1,396
10 133 o1 ) 11 108 (84 )
40 62 (46 /40 ) 35
18 21 (19 ) 21
$ 86 $ 97
100 100
$ 828 $ 858
8 18 (15 ) 8 17 (15 )
7 17 (12 ) 7 16 (11 )
EBITDA 8 32 (11 ) 7 24 (11 )
45 100 (99 ) 75 100 (99 )
$ 2,804 _
97 107 (101 ) N/A
$ 682 $ 777

0 349 (62 /59 )

54 99 (87 /89 )

6 24 (13 /13 )

25 66 (45 /43 )
1

24 156 (63 /59 )

47 90 (72 /72 )

4 15 (13 /14 )

24 63 (44 /41 )
1
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000000000 0(E5871)
ooooodd
( )
1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 49 $ 124
7 6
0 85 a7 ) 0 104 (45 )
20 435bps(74bps) 9 469bps(81lbps)
65 118bps(86bps) 47 117bps(84bps)
27 44 (32 ) 29 62 (36 )
$ 61 $ (GD
55 59 (56 /56 ) 32 56 (46 /46 )
0 349 (62 /59 ) 24 156 (63 /59 )
6 8 (71 /8 ) 10 11 (10 /10 )
-2 28 (3 /1) N/A
50 95 (83 /93 ) 85 95 (94 /95 )
$ (2,231) $ (1,684)
16 97 (43 ) 9 90 (36 )
-3 0 (1) 2 0 (1)

24 96 (74 ) 5 98 (70 )
-79 60 (-16 ) -79 60 (-37 )
13 47 (21 /20 ) 11 44 (18 /16 )
$ 1,709 $ 1,612
$-1 $157($28)/MWh $3  $182($28)/MWh
8 183 (19 ) 7 183 (18 )
43 99 (92 ) 43 99 (93 )
$ 126 $ 179
722 (8 ) 16 37 (20 )
$ 63 $ 36
100 N/M
$ 444 $ -

107 127bps(115bps) N/A
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
)
1
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 516 $ 109
111bps(111bps) 111 124bps(117bps)
30 101 (56 N/A
$ 4,374 $ 4,088
6 66 (23 ) 5 4 (21 )
-2 0 (@ ) -2 0 ()

37 95 (78 )
-72 13 (24 )
=28 6 (-6 /-6 )

38 94 (78 )
75 26 (<25 )
=26 10 (-7 /-7 )

$ 3,134

36 636bps(336bps)
200 413bps(368bps)
88 99bps(94bps)

$ 1,500

69 446bps(225bps)
287 318bps(297bps)
N/M(N/M)

IR
FX

2020

217/424
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EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA EBITDA
EBITDA
oIS
( WACC ) WACC

WACC
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LIBOR
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0000000000(E05871)
0oooood
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 2,367 $ 644 $ 2,078 $ 450
1,403 136 1,349 150
59 - 94 4
$ 3,829 $ 780 $ 3,521 $ 604
NAV
23

220/424
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-10

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31
$ 1,480 $ 416
736 374
151 613
$ 2,367 $ 1,403
)
2020 12 31
1
2,566 $ 3,134 $ 5,700
- 16 16
21 — 21
2,587 $ 3,150 $ 5,737
193 $ 72 $ 265
193 $ 72 $ 265
)
2019 12 31
1
$ 1,543 $ 1,500 $ 3,043
- 113 113
$ 1,543 $ 1,613 $ 3,156
$ 132 $ 69 $ 201
$ 132 $ 69 $ 201

221/424

EDINETOOOO



)1

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ (354) $ 18 $  (68)
@ - -
(56) (56) (56)
4 (45) 22) (46)
(23) _ _
$  (480) $  (60) $ (170)
$ ) $ 87 $  (48)
$ ) $ 87 $  (48)

CDS

222/424
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EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn
( )

2020 12 31

$ 105,654 $ 105,654 $ — $ - $ 105,654
71,771 31,239 42,281 900 74,420
116,219 - 114,046 2,173 116,219
112,391 - 112,392 - 112,392
92,907 - 89,832 3,041 92,873
150,597 - 16,635 135,277 151,912
485 - 485 - 485
$ 307,261 $ - $ 307,807 $ - $ 307,807
49,472 - 49,315 195 49,510
7,731 - 7,731 - 7,731
4,162 - 4,162 - 4,162
224,951 - 224,951 - 224,951
143,378 - 150,824 5 150,829
$ 125,498 $ - $ 709 $ 395 $ 1,104

223/424



15

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
)

2019 12 31

$ 82,171 $ 82,171 $ - - $ 82,171
43,502 30,661 12,683 789 44,133
88,220 - 86,794 1,442 88,236
106,549 - 106,551 - 106,551
51,134 - 48,215 2,872 51,087
130,637 - 22,293 108,059 130,352
495 _ 495 - 495
$ 188,257 $ - $ 188,639 - $ 188,639
53,467 - 53,486 - 53,486
8,506 - 8,506 - 8,506
6,889 - 6,800 92 6,892
195,035 - 195,035 - 195,035
128,166 - 133,563 10 133,573
$ 119,004 $ - $ 748 338 $ 1,086

224/424
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EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 33,952 $ 30,214
31,222 27,298
5,078 4,501
1,344 1,246
2,105 1,202
$ 73,701 $ 64,461
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ (5,135) $ (6,932) $ 2,679
341 375 321
$ (5,476) $ (7,307) $ 2,358

225/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
ocl
2020
1 $  (116) $ -
(€)) -
- (19)
(26) (1,340)
2019
1 $ 223 $ -
@ -
- (30)
(11) (2,140)
2018
1 $ 165 $ -
(€)) -
_ 9
24 1,962
(32) 32
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
AOCI DVA $ (3,357) $ (1,998)
1.
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 14,042 $ 13,037
2 11,551 10,849
(3,773) (1,665)
3.

VIE

226/424
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 1,407 $ 1,100
$ 239 330




EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
2020 12 31
( )

$ 946 $ 2 $ - $ 948
5 2 - 7
951 4 - 955
221,895 10,343 300 232,538
5,343 2,198 - 7,541
92,334 1,639 79 94,052
34,278 - 34,166 68,444
11,095 - 3,554 14,649
364,945 14,180 38,099 417,224

$ 365,896 $ 14,184 $ 38,099 $ 418,179

(276,682) (11,601) (35,260)  (323,543)
(54,921) (1,865) - (56,786)
$ 34,293 $ 718 $ 2,839 $ 37,850

(13,319) - - (13,319)
(391) - - (391)
$ 20,583 $ 718 $ 2,839 $ 24,140

€ BLNENC]

228/424
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )

$ - $ 19 $ - $ 19
291 99 - 390
291 118 - 409
210,015 7,965 639 218,619
5,293 2,859 - 8,152
92,975 1,500 43 94,518
49,943 - 36,585 86,528
8,831 - 3,359 12,190
367,057 12,324 40,626 420,007

$ 367,348 $ 12,442 $ 40,626 $ 420,416

(276,682) (11,601) (35,260)  (323,543)
(51,112) (823) - (51,935)

$ 39,554  $ 18 $ 5,366 $ 44,938
(10,598) - (1,520) (12,118)

(62) ) — (65)

$ 28,804 $ 15 $ 3,846 $ 32,755
$ 6,746

229/424
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
2019 12 31
( )

$ 673 S - 8 - $ 6713
41 1 - 42
714 1 - 715
179,450 4,839 519 184,808
4,895 2,417 - 7,312
62,957 1,399 22 64,378
27,621 - 23,447 51,068
9,306 - 1,952 11,258
284,229 8,655 25,940 318,824

$ 284,943 $ 8,656 $ 25,940 $ 319,539

(213,710) (7.294) (24,037) (245,041)
(41,222) (1,275) - (42,497)
$ 30,011 $ 87 $ 1,903 $ 32,001
1
(15,596) - - (15,596)
(46) - - (46)
$ 14,369 $ 87 $ 1,903 $ 16,359
C ) $ 1,900

230/424
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )

$ 1 $ - $ - $ 1
121 38 - 159
122 38 - 160
168,597 3,597 436 172,630
4,798 3,123 - 7,921
65,965 1,492 39 67,496
30,135 - 22,733 52,868
7,713 - 1,911 9,624
277,208 8,212 25,119 310,539

$ 277,330 $ 8,250 $ 25,119 $ 310,699

(213,710) (7,294) (24,037)  (245,041)
(36,392) (832) - (37,224)

$ 27,228 $ 124 $ 1,082 $ 28,434

(7,747) _ (287) (8,034)
(14 - - (14)

$ 19,467 $ 124 $ 795 $ 20,386

$ 3,680

231/424
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
2020 12 31
( )
$ 6 $ 123 $ - $ 129
— - 2
123 - 131
3,847 6,946 409 11,202
140 88 - 228
3,046 103 10 3,159
444 - 367 811
107 - 68 175
7,584 7,137 854 15,575
$ 7,592 $ 7,260 $ 854 $ 15,706
( )
$ - $ 80 $ - $ 80
11 3 — 14
11 83 - 94
4,000 6,915 511 11,426
143 98 - 241
3,180 102 11 3,293
474 - 591 1,065
93 - 68 161
7,890 7,115 1,181 16,186
$ 7,901 $ 7,198 $ 1,181 $ 16,280

232/424



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
2019 12 31
( )
$ 14 $ 94 $ - $ 108
2 - - 2
16 94 - 110
4,230 7,398 732 12,360
136 79 - 215
2,667 91 10 2,768
429 - 419 848
99 - 61 160
7,561 7,568 1,222 16,351
$ 7,577 $ 7,662 $ 1,222 $ 16,461
( )
$ - $ 71 $ - $ 71
2 - 11
73 - 82
4,185 6,866 666 11,717
153 84 - 237
2,841 91 14 2,946
455 - 515 970
85 - 61 146
7,719 7,041 1,256 16,016
$ 7,728 $ 7,114 $ 1,256 $ 16,098

233/424



0Cl

1. 2019

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 75 $ (10) $ O)
(33) 10 4
$ 4,678 $ 4,212 $ (1,529)
(100) 7 -
(4,692) (4,288) 1,511
$  (366) $ 14 $ 295
16 136 68
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 16,288 $ 917
$ (39) $ 14
$ 15,059 $ 5,435
$ 93 $ )
$ 114,349 $ 102,456
$ 6,575 $ 2,593
$  (756) $ -
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 30,421 $ 21,620
23,842 17,392
( )
2020 12 31
$ 316
134

234/424
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OO00O000000O(E5871)
ooooooo
1 $ 352
1.
S&P
1
( )
2020 12 31
CDS
$ $ 19 $ 32 $ $ 69
10 17 2 36
$ 16 $ 29 $ 49 $ 11 $ 105
CDS
$ $ $ 39 $ 14 $ 60
9 29 14 58
$ 8 $ 14 $ 68 $ 28 $ 118
CDS $ 24 $ 43 $ 117 $ 39 $ 223
$ 24 $ 43 $ 117 $ 39 $ 223
CDS

$ 196

235/424
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OooooOodd
( )
2019 12 31
cDS
$ 16 $ 17 $ 33 $ $ 75
9 9 16 35
$ 25 $ 26 $ 49 $ 10 $ 110
cDsS
$ $ 7 $ 46 $ 11 $ 68
7 17 10 38
$ 11 $ 11 $ 63 $ 21 $ 106
cDS $ 36 $ 37 $ 112 $ 31 $ 216
$ 36 $ 37 $ 112 $ 31 $ 216
cDS
$ 187
( N
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
cDS

$ 1,230 $ 1,057
22) (540)

$ 1,208 $ 517

cDsS

$ 843 $ 1,052

(824) 134

$ 19 $ 1,186

cDs $ 1,227 $ 1,703
® an

$ 1,223 $ 1,686

1.

236/424
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CDS
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 116 $ 118
116 103
14 15
$ 246 $ 236
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ (1,452) $  (723)
6N (1,139)
(329) (450)
$ (1,838) $ (2,312)
CDS
CDS
CDS CDS
CDS
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CDS CDS CDS

CDS

CDS

CLN CDO CLN CDO
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31
1
$ 45,345 $ 1,010 $ - $ 46,355
2 37,389 762 25 38,126
82,734 1,772 25 84,481
19,982 465 9 20,438
1,694 42 - 1,736
1,461 103 1 1,563
FFELP 8 1,735 7 26 1,716
449 - - 449
25,321 617 36 25,902
108,055 2,389 61 110,383
29,346 1,893 - 31,239
2 38,951 704 8 39,647
68,297 2,597 8 70,886
2,632 4 2 2,634
842 58 - 900
3,474 62 2 3,534
71,771 2,659 10 74,420
$ 179,826 $ 5,048 $ 71 $ 184,803

239/424
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2019 12 31

$ 32,465 $ 224 $ 111 $ 32,578

2 20,725 249 100 20,874
53,190 473 211 53,452

4,810 55 57 4,808

1,891 17 1 1,907

481 22 - 503

FFELP 8 1,580 1 28 1,553
8,762 95 86 8,771

61,952 568 297 62,223

30,145 568 52 30,661

2 12,589 151 57 12,683
42,734 719 109 43,344

768 22 1 789

43,502 741 110 44,133

$ 105,454 $ 1,309 $ 407 $ 106,356

2020
2020
441

240/424
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
12 $ 151 $ - $ 4,793 $ 28
12 - - 7,904 83
151 - 12,697 111
12 5,808 22 2,641 20
12 1,168 3 7,697 80
6,976 25 10,338 100
12 5,959 22 7,434 48
12 1,168 3 15,601 163
7,127 25 23,035 211
12 2,779 9 2,294 26
12 46 - 681 31
2,825 9 2,975 57
12 - - 194 1
12 31 - 44 —
31 - 238 1
12 86 — — _
12 36 1 - -
122 1 - _
FFELP
12 - — 91 —
12 1,077 26 1,165 28
1,077 26 1,256 28
12 2,865 9 2,579 27
12 1,190 27 1,890 59
4,055 36 4,469 86
12 8,824 31 10,013 75
12 2,358 30 17,491 222
$ 11,182 $ 61 $ 27,504 $ 297

241/424
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2020 12 31
26 CECL 2020
2019 12 31
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

VIE
FFELP 16
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31
1

$ 14,813 $ 14,888 1.1

25,630 26,401 1.4
10 4,902 5,066
45,345 46,355

6 6 1.4

173 177 1.5

10 1,247 1,283 1.7

10 35,963 36,660 1.5
37,389 38,126

82,734 84,481 1.4

95 96 1.2

1,385 1,400 1.0

10 14,123 14,544 1.4

10 4,379 4,398 1.3
19,982 20,438

286 289 2.4

1,193 1,224 2.6

10 204 212 2.6

10 11 11 1.7
1,694 1,736

3 3 1.8

28 29 1.7

10 87 91 2.4

10 1,343 1,440 2.7
1,461 1,563

FFELP

90 86
10 239 228
10 1,406 1,402
1,735 1,716
3 3
446 446
449 449

25,321 25,902 1.5

108,055 110,383 1.4

243/424



10

10

10

10

10

10

10

10

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
2020 12 31
1

$ 3,146 $ 3,174 2.3
17,302 18,111 1.9
7,816 8,655 2.2
1,082 1,299 2.5

29,346 31,239
604 623 2.0
38,347 39,024 1.6

38,951 39,647
68,297 70,886 1.8
21 21 2.4
1,215 1,215 1.4
1,164 1,167 1.3
232 231 1.6
2,632 2,634 1.3
153 153 4.5
35 35 3.2
618 671 3.8
36 41 4.4
842 900 3.9
3,474 3,534 2.0
71,771 74,420 1.8
$ 179,826 $ 184,803 1.6

2441424
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D000000000(ESS7L)
Doooooo
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 168 $ 113 $ 12
3D (10) 4
$ 137 $ 103 $ 8

245/424
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OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)

OooooOodd
( )

2020 12 31
1
$ 264,140 $ (147,906) $ 116,234  $ (114,108) $ 2,126
124,921 (12,530) 112,391 (107,434) 4,957
$ 198,493 $ (147,906) $ 50,587 $ (43,960) $ 6,627
20,261 (12,530) 7,731 (7,430) 301
C )
$ 1,870
596
6,282
128
( )
2019 12 31
1
$ 247,545 $ (159,321) $ 88,224  $ (85,200) $ 3,024
109,528 (2,979) 106,549 (101,850) 4,699
$ 213,519 $ (159,319) $ 54,200  $ (44,549) $ 9,651
11,487 (2,981) 8,506 (8,324) 182
C )

$ 2,255
1,181
8,033
101

246/424
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O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
( )
2020 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 84,349 $ 60,853 $ 26,221 $ 27,070 $ 198,493
15,267 247 - 4,747 20,261
$ 99,616 $ 61,100 $ 26,221 $ 31,817 $ 218,754
16,389 - - - 16,389
$ 116,005 $ 61,100 $ 26,221 $ 31,817 $ 235,143
( )
2019 12 31
30 30 90 90
$ 67,158 $ 81,300 $ 26,904 $ 38,157 $ 213,519
2,378 3,286 516 5,307 11,487
$ 69,536 $ 84,586 $ 27,420 $ 43,464 $ 225,006
23,877 - - - 23,877
$ 93,413 $ 84,586 $ 27,420 $ 43,464 $ 248,883

2471424



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 94,662 $ 68,895
505 905
71,140 109,414
1,230 2,218
5,287 6,066
24,692 25,563
977 458
$ 198,493 $ 213,519
$ 3,430 $ 3,026
16,536 8,422
295 39
$ 20,261 $ 11,487
$ 218,754 $ 225,006
$ 16,365 $ 23,873
24 4
$ 16,389 $ 23,877
$ 235,143 $ 248,883
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 30,954 $ 41,201
- 750
$ 30,954 $ 41,951

248/424



2019 12 31

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 724,818 $ 679,280
523,648 539,412
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 34,106 $ 25,061
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
10 10
12 12
2020 12 31

249/424



10

14

16

VIE

ELN

250/424

EDINETOOOO

D000000000(ESS7L)
Doooooo
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 74,714 $ 31,916




EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
( )
2020 12 31

$ 6,046 $ 8,580 $ 14,626
25,727 3,296 29,023
7,346 822 8,168
35,268 48 35,316
64,232 67 64,299
138,619 12,813 151,432
(835) (835)
$ 137,784 $ 12,813 $ 150,597
$ 32,796
117,801
21,081

251/424



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2019 12 31

$ 5,426 $ 6,192 $ 11,618
24,502 4,200 28,702
7,859 2,049 9,908
30,184 13 30,197
50,438 123 50,561
118,409 12,577 130,986
(349) - (349)
$ 118,060 $ 12,577 $ 130,637
$ 22,716
107,921
21,617

15

252/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd

( )

2020 12 31
$ 1,138 $ 3,231 $ 4,369
2020 585 80 665
2019 204 202 406
2018 195 - 195
2017 - 64 64
2016 115 - 115
2015 132 100 232
$ 2,369 $ 3,677 $ 6,046
( )

2020 12 31
$ 4,711 $ 14,510 $ 19,221
2020 162 253 415
2019 260 1,904 2,164
2018 614 1,432 2,046
2017 245 581 826
2016 - 654 654
2015 - 401 401
$ 5,992 $ 19,735 $ 25,727
( )

2020 12 31
2020 $ 95 $ 943 $ 1,038
2019 1,074 1,848 2,922
2018 746 774 1,520
2017 412 387 799
2016 100 594 694
2015 - 373 373
$ 2,427 $ 4,919 $ 7,346

253/424



2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
2020 12 31
FICO
740 680 739 679 80 80
$ 85 $ 32 $ 5 $ 122 $ - $ 122
8,948 1,824 149 10,338 583 10,921
5,592 1,265 168 6,584 441 7,025
2,320 604 75 2,756 243 2,999
2,721 690 89 3,251 249 3,500
3,324 884 118 4,035 291 4,326
4,465 1,626 284 5,684 691 6,375
$ 27,455 $ 6,925 $ 888 $ 32,770 $ 2,498 $ 35,268
)
2020 12 31
2
1
$ 51,667 $ 4,816 $ 555 $ 57,038
- 1,073 590 1,663
18 1,156 623 1,797
232 407 403 1,042
- 654 122 776
- 566 111 677
16 1,066 157 1,239
$ 51,933 $ 9,738 $ 2,561 $ 64,232
2020 12 31

254/424



-90

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31
1
$ 6,046 $ - $ 6,046
25,727 - 25,727
7,346 - 7,346
34,936 332 35,268
64,201 31 64,232
$ 138,256 $ 363 $ 138,619
60
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

$ 164 $ 299

152 85

97 94

178 5

$ 591 $ 483

$ 90 $ 120

( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

$ 167 $ 92

27 32

36 16

CARES TDR

255/424



2019 12 31

CECL

2020 12 31

2018 12 31

2019 12 31

2017 12 31

2018 12 31

1. 2018

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn

)
$ 115 101 $ 75 25 $ 33 349
@ (42) 34 21 @ 9
39) - (64) @ @ (105)
4 - - - 4 8
(35) - (64) @ 3 €Cl))
225 136 197 14 (13) 559
6 3 31) - 37 15
$ 309 198 $ 211 59 $ 58 835
)
$ 62 60 $ 67 20 $ 29 238
- - - ) - @
59 42 8 7 4 120
® @ - - - )
$ 115 101 $ 75 25 $ 33 349
)
$ 63 4% 70 24 $ 26 224
@ - - @ ® ®
54 - - - - 54
53 - - @ ) 48
(53) 20 5 ®) 7 24)
@ @ ® - - (10)
$ 62 60 $ 67 20 $ 29 238
2017

256/424



2019 12 31

CECL
« D

2020 12 31

2018 12 31

C )

2019 12 31

2017 12 31

C )

2018 12 31

2020

31

2020

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

oOoOooodn

201 $ 27 $ 7 $ - 6 241
(41) an 1 2 () (50)
161 22 7 [€)) 14 203
2 - 4) - 4 2
323 $ 38 $ 11 $ 1 23 396
177 $ 16 $ 3 $ - 7 203
27 11 4 - - 42
©) - - - @ *
201 $ 27 $ 7 $ - 6 241
177 $ 12 $ 3 $ - 6 198
3 4 1 - 1 9
3 - @ - - )
177 $ 16 $ 3 $ - 7 203

COVID-19

COVID-19
2020
2020 12
2021
CECL

257/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
1 $ 3,100 N/A
2 140 N/A
$ 3,240 $ 2,980
3 (165) (61)
$ 3,075 $ 2,919
() 5.3 4.8
1.
2. 90
3. 2020 CECL 124
2020 12 31 CECL 2019 12 31
CECL
11
( )
2018 12 31 1 $ 274 $ 5,533 $ 881 $ 6,688
(13) €Y) - 14)
2 _ 469 — 469
2019 12 31 1 $ 261 $ 6,001 $ 881 $ 7,143
15 7 - 22
3 200 4,270 - 4,470
2020 12 31 1 $ 476 $ 10,278 $ 881 $ 11,635
4 $ 673 $ - $ 27 $ 700
1.
2. 2019
3. 2020
4. 2020 2019 2018
2020 2019
( )

258/424



2018 12 31

1

2019 12 31

2

2020 12 31

2019

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood

$ 270 $ 1,828 $ 60 $ 2,158

3 270 - 273

(29) - - (29)

(35) 271) ®) (314)

18 1 - 19

$ 227 $ 1,828 $ 52 $ 2,107

14 3,309 - 3,323

@) - - (79)

(35) (330) ®) (373)

_ 2 - 2

$ 127 $ 4,809 $ 44 $ 4,980
2020

( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

$ 460 $ 82 $ 291 $ 71

7,420 2,984 4,321 2,703

178 120 482 327

187 79 217 103

$ 8,245 $ 3,265 $ 5,311 $ 3,204

$ 470

259/424




12
¢
1.
2018
MUMSS
)
(
60
MUMSS

UFJ
MUMSS

40

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 2,410 $ 2,363
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ — $ (81) 20
2019 41
46
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 80 $ 17 $ 105
( MUFG UFJ
MUFG ( MSMS
40 MUFG
MSMS 51

MUFG

260/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 4,419 $ 3,998
5,327 4,778
9.5 9.7
3.2 3.6
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 $ - $ 763
2021 841 703
2022 793 646
2023 740 593
2024 639 524
2025 532 439
2,685 2,406
6,230 6,074
(903) (1,296)
$ 5,327 $ 4,778
$ 278 $ 55
( )
2020 2019
$ 762 $ 670
154 152
®) ®
$ o1l $ 816
( )
2020 2019
$ 765 $ 685
991 514

261/424



13

FDIC
FDIC

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

262/424

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

2018
$ 753

( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

$ 279,221 $ 149,465
31,561 40,891

$ 310,782 $ 190,356

$ 234,211 $ 149,966
$ 16 $ 12

( )
2020 12 31

$ 18,477
4,982
4,094
2,718

778
512
$ 31,561




EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
14
( )
2020 12 2019 12
1 2 1 2 31 31
12 $ - $ 1 $ - $ 3,690 $ 3,691 $ 2,567
2020 5 $ - 8 - s - $ - % 2040
2021 14,341 3,329 616 5,955 24,241 26,085
2022 6,909 9,703 764 4,833 22,209 19,888
2023 10,853 6,299 123 5,615 22,890 14,615
2024 14,096 2,013 387 5,231 21,727 21,106
2025 10,719 617 1,547 5,753 18,636 14,642
76,499 4,444 8,301 14,441 103,685 73,322
$ 133,417 $ 26,405 $ 11,738 $ 41,828 $ 213,388 $ 190,060
$ 133,417 $ 26,406 $ 11,738 $ 45,518 $ 217,079 $ 192,627
3 3.3 1.0 0.9 N/M 2.9 3.4
1.
2.
LIBOR SOFR
3.
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 202,305 $ 179,519
11,083 10,541
$ 213,388 $ 190,060
() 7.3 6.9

263/424



2022

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
94 290
$ 1,483 $ 1,344
2020 2019
4.5 4.5
2027
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 2018 12 31
2.9 3.4 3.5
1.7 2.9 3.6

264/424
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2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

12

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

$ 10,453 $ 7,103

5,410 7,595

$ 15,863 $ 14,698

1,529 1,115

1
( )
2020 12 31
2019 12 31
2

$ 6,099 $ 4,354 $ 10,453 $ 7,103
$ - $ - $ - $ 1,663
1,270 385 1,655 1,110
605 800 1,405 227
191 88 279 2,655
- 96 96 12
38 - 38 36
23 385 408 77
$ 2,127 $ 1,754 $ 3,881 $ 6,480

N/M 0.5 0.6 2.4

LIBOR

265/424



EDINETOOOO

15

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
VIE
VIE
16
1
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
2020 $ - $ 208
2021 303 225
2022 159 46
2023 626 334
2024 14 _
2025 _ _
427 302
$ 1,529 $ 1,115
1.
( )
2020 12 31
$ 15,362 $ 37,720 $ 39,886 $ 5,896 $ 98,864
5,574 4,790 1,399 271 12,034
432 244 88 244 1,008
12,178 3,063 225 483 15,949
57,164 - - - 57,164
1 300 - - 9,286 9,586
3,037 - - - 3,037
804 215 73 316 1,408
174 1 - 3 178
$ 95,025 $ 46,033 $ 41,671 $ 16,499 $ 199,228
$ 9,035
$ 54,542
1. 2020

266/424
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oOoOooodn
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2020 12

31

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

$ 24,428
1,308,747

! 1,136
87

4,425

$ 43,350

194

1,010,126

1,395
25

$ 116,780

337,949

1,217

24

32

$ 38,830 $ 223,388
91 285
805,802 3,462,624
3,676 7,424

- 112

- 4,425

23,157 23,181
66,556 66,556
118 420

— 87

81

268/424

CDS

2020 12 31

( )

$ 1,227
©)
(65, 640)
111

5

(42)
(70)




EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

SPE

SPE

SPE

SPE

SPE

269/424



FICC

2019

270/424

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn

FICC
FICC
FICC
2020 FICC

FICC



EDINETOOOO

D000000000(ESS7L)
Doooooo
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 336 $ 221 $ 206

271/424



2010 15 CDIB

STACK 2006-1 CDO

STACK 2006-1 CDO

CDIB 12
2018 12 21
2019 18
2019 18 CDIB
2020 24
240
2014 23
ABS
876
23
2018 12 20
FGIC

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
275 CDS
CDIB
CDIB CDS CDO
CDS 228 CDIB
2011 28
cbiB 2018 12 21
2019 24 CcbiB 2018 12 21
2019
2020 21
2020 19
FGIC
2007-NC4
ABS
FGIC
2017
2017 24
2017 11 22 2018 13
277

FGIC

272/424



2015 23
ABS
ABS
( 10.5
2015 12 11
2018 10 19
17
)
2007 2013
2018 26
2020
18/00318 18/00319
16
SPE
VIE

VIE

2007-NC4

2019 17
2019

15/3637

12

273/424

124

EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd
2019
2020 19
277 (
15/4353
152

2020 22
VIE



EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
VIE
VIE
CLN
VIE VIE VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
CDO
CDO
VIE
VIE
CLN
VIE

CLN

274/424



VIE
OSF
MABS 1
2
OSF—
1.
2.
VIE
VIE

VIE

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
)
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
VIE VIE VIE VIE
$ 551 $ 350 $ 696 $ 391
590 17 265 4
977 47 987 66
$ 2,118 $ 414 $ 1,948 $ 461
VIE VIE
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 269 $ 488
1,445 943
23 18
98 111
283 388
$ 2,118 $ 1,948
$ 366 $ 422
48 39
$ 414 $ 461
$ 196 $ 192
VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE

275/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
VIE
( )
2020 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 184,153 $ 3,527 $ 6,524 $ 2,161 $ 48,241
3
$ 26,247 $ 257 $ - $ 1,187 $ 11,008
- - 4,425 - 5,639
929 - - - 749
$ 27,176 $ 257 $ 4,425 $ 1,187 $ 17,396
$ 26,247 $ 257 $ - $ 1,187 $ 11,008
_ — 5 - 851
$ 26,247 $ 257 $ 5 $ 1,187 $ 11,859
VIE 4 $ 20,019
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 222
( )
2019 12 31
MABS 1 CDO MTOB OSF 2
VIE $ 125,603 $ 2,976 $ 6,95 $ 2,288 $ 51,305
3
$ 16,314 $ 240 $ - $ 1,000 $ 11,977
- - 4,599 - 2,995
631 - - - 266
$ 16,945 $ 240 $ 4,599 $ 1,009 $ 15,238
$ 16,314 $ 240 $ - $ 1,008 $ 11,977
_ — 6 - 388
$ 16,314 $ 240 $ 6 $ 1,008 $ 12,365
VIE 4 $ 11,453
$ - 3 - s - 3 - S 4
MTOB—
1.
2.
3.
4. VIE VIE SPE

276/424



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
VIE VIE
VIE
VIE
VIE VIE
VIE
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31

$ 17,775 $ 3,175 $ 30,353 $ 3,993

62,093 4,131 53,892 3,881

99,182 17,224 36,366 6,365

5,103 1,717 4,992 2,075

$ 184,153 $ 26,247 $ 125,603 $ 16,314

SPE SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE
SPE

2771424
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0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
VIE
VIE
VIE
CLN
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE
SPE
SPE SPE

SPE

278/424



CLO CDO

SPE

SPE

ELN
ELN

2020 12 31 2019

SPE

12 31

279/424

SPE

CLO

SPE

ELN

EDINETOOOO
O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31
c CLN
RML ML o .

SPE 2 $ 7,515 $ 84,674 $ 21,061 $ 12,978
$ 49 $ 822 $ 615 $ -
16 195 - 114

$ 65 $ 1,017 $ 615 $ 114
$ - $ 96 $ 116 $ -
43 80 - 21

$ 43 $ 176 $ 116 $ 21
$ - $ - $ - $ 400
— - — 436

( )
2019 12 31
RML ML oLy
¢ CMO 1

SPE 2 $ 9,850 $ 86,203 $ 19,132 $ 8,410
$ 29 $ 720 $ 2,376 $ 1
17 254 - 92

$ 46 $ 974 $ 2,376 $ 93
$ 6 $ 197 $ 7 $ -
75 51 - -

$ 81 $ 248 $ 77 $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ 339
- — - 145

280/424



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
( )
2020 12 31
$ 663 $ - $ 663
6 63 69
$ 669 $ 63 $ 732
$ 196 $ 16 $ 212
62 82 144
$ 258 $ 98 $ 356
$ 388 $ 12 $ 400
435 1 436
( )
2019 12 31
$ 2,401 $ 4 $ 2,405
6 97 103
$ 2,407 $ 101 $ 2,508
$ 278 $ 2 $ 280
68 58 126
$ 346 $ 60 $ 406
$ 337 $ 2 $ 339
144 1 145
RML
CcML
1. CLO
2.
SPE
( )
2020 2019 2018

! $ 51,814 $ 34,464 $ 23,821
281/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
9,346 7,403 2,904
CLO SPE 12 763 2 317
1. CLo
15
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
! $ 45,051 $ 38,661
$ 46,609 $ 39,137
1,592 647
64 152

282/424



EDINETOOOO

OO00O000000O(E5871)
ooooooo
1956
MSBNA MSPBNA
RWA
Tier 1 Tier 1 Tier 2
2020 CECL
2020 31 2020 12 31
RWA
CECL
2019
2020 12 31 12 31
— 2.5 2.5
SCB 5.7 N/A N/A
G-SIB 3.0 3.0 3.0
1 0 0 0

283/424



Tier 1
Tier 1

2.5 G-SIB

RWA

RWA

2020 12 31

Tier

EDINETOOOO

DOO0O00O00OO0O0O0O(ES871)
ooooooo
2019
2020 12 31 12 31
4.5 13.2 10.0 10.0
6.0 14.7 11.5 11.5
8.0 16.7 13.5 13.5
2.5
Tier 1 2020 10
SCB  G-SIB
(
)
() RWA
() RWA
RWA
2019 12 31
Tier

284/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OoOoOoOoOodno
( )
2020 12 31
1
Tier 1 13.2 $ 78,650 17.4
Tier 1 14.7 88,079 19.4
16.7 97,213 21.5
RWA 453,106
( )
. 2020 12 31
2 $ 1,053,310
Tier 1 4.0 8.4
3.4 $ 1,192,506
3 5.0 7.4
( )
2019 12 31
1
Tier 1 10.0 $ 64,751 16.4
Tier 1 11.5 73,443 18.6
13.5 82,708 21.0
RWA 394,177
(
. 2019 12 31
2 $ 889,195
Tier 1 4.0 8.3
N $ 1,155,177
5.0 6.4
1.
2. Tier 1
3. 2020 12 31 2021 31
4. Tier 1

)

285/424

)



EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)
oOoOooodn
()
2020 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA
MSBNA MSPBNA
G-SIB
2020 12 31 2019 12 31 MSBNA MSPBNA
2020 12 31
CECL MSBNA MSPBNA
MSBNA
( )
2020 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 17,238 18.7
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 17,238 18.7
10.0 10.5 17,882 19.4
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 17,238 10.1

6.0 3.0 17,238 8.0

286/424



EDINETOOOO

000000000 O(ES871)
ooooooo
( )
2019 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 15,919 18.5
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 15,919 18.5
10.0 10.5 16,282 18.9
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 15,919 11.3
6.0 3.0 15,919 8.7
MSPBNA
( )
2020 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 8,213 21.3
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 8,213 21.3
10.0 10.5 8,287 21.5
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 8,213 7.2
6.0 3.0 8,213 6.9
( )
2019 12 31
1
Tier 1 6.5 7.0 $ 7,962 24.8
Tier 1 8.0 8.5 7,962 24.8
10.0 10.5 8,016 25.0
Tier 1 5.0 4.0 $ 7,962 9.9
6.0 3.0 7,962 9.4
1.

287/424



MSé&Co.

MS&Co.

SEC

MSEHSE
MSSB

2020 12 31

MSIP MSESE

MS&Co.

15¢3-1 E
MS&Co.
2019 12 31

MSEHSE

288/424

EDINETOOOO

0000000000(E05871)
ooooood
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 12,869 $ 13,708
9,034 10,686
SEC CFTC
1934
MS&Co.
SEC
MS&Co.
MSSB SEC
MSIP



0000000 000O(Ess71)
ooOoooOoo
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 40,502 $ 33,213
18

( )

2020 12 31 2020 2019

« ) 12 31 12 31
A 44,000 $ 25,000 $ 1,100 $ 1,100
Ct 519,882 1,000 408 408
E 34,500 25,000 862 862
F 34,000 25,000 850 850
H 52,000 25,000 1,300 1,300
| 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
J 60,000 25,000 1,500 1,500
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 500
M 400,000 1,000 430 —
N 3,000 100,000 300 —
$ 9,250 $ 8,520

1. ¢ MUFG
30
17 Tierl
2019 11 25 G G
2020 15 500

289/424
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EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
Ogoooood
12 ( ) 4
A 44,000 1,000 $ 25,000
Cs 1,160,791 N/A 1,100
E 34,500 1,000 25,000 2023 10 15
F 34,000 1,000 25,000 2024 15
H 52,000 25 25,000
1 40,000 1,000 25,000 2024 10 15
J 60,000 25 25,000
K 40,000 1,000 25,000 2027 15
Le 20,000 1,000 25,000 2025 15
M7 400,000 N/A 1,000 2026 15
N7 3,000 100 100,000 2025 10
1. 0.01
2. A c L
3. A c
4. A c H
J )
)
90
5. C
1,000 10
6. L 2019 11 25
7.0M N 2020 10
( )
2020 2019
1,59 1,700
(39) (135)
233 _
2 29
1,810 1,594
1.
2.
( )
2020 2019
$ 1,347 $ 5,360

290/424



2019
60
18
2020 15
2020 25
2020 30
2021
MUFG
MUFG
MUFG
24.9

0.35

2020

MUFG

291/424

EDINETOOOO
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2019 2020 30
2019
CCAR
2020
2020 12 18
2020 12 10
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EPS
( )
2020 2019 2018
1,603 1,617 1,708
RSU
PSU 21 23 30
1,624 1,640 1,738
( EPS ) 5 2 1
1
2020 2019 2018
1 1 1
A $ 1,017 $ 44 $ 1,014 $ 44 $ 1,011 $ 45
c 100 52 100 52 100 52
E 1,781 60 1,781 60 1,781 61
F 1,719 60 1,719 60 1,719 58
G2 - - 1,242 24 1,656 33
H 1,143 60 1,418 74 1,363 71
I 1,594 64 1,594 64 1,594 64
Js 1,213 74 1,388 84 1,388 83
K 1,463 59 1,463 59 1,463 59
L 1,219 23 169 3 . -
M 4 _ _ _ _ _ _
E _ _ _ _ _ _
$ 49 $ 524 $ 526
$  1.40 $ 2,295 $  1.30 $ 2,161 $ 1.10 $ 1,930
G 2020 G
2019
3. J 2020 15
LM 2021 15 2026 15
5. N 2021 15 2023 15
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0Cl
2018 12

ocCl
2019 12

0Cl
2020 12

31

31

31

31

AOCI

2018
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( )
2020
$  (100)
( )
2019
$ 63
( )
2018

$ (32

99)

443

(6)

$ 306

( DVA OCI

( )

DVA

(67) $  (547) (91) $ (1,155) $ (3,060)
() (111) (124) (194) 437)
(114) (272) 137 1,454 1,205
(889) (930) (578) 105 (2,292)
() 1,137 (66) (1,559) (496)
(897) 207 (644) (1,454) (2,788)
102 1,580 146 (1,002) 826
(795) $ 1,787 498) $ (2,456) $ (1,962)

293/424
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ocCl
( )
2020
C ) C ) C )

ocl $ 74 $ 9 $ 173§ 68 $ 105

3) - 3) — 3)
ocl $ 71 $ 99 $ 170 $ 68 $ 102
ocl $ 2,194 $ (508) $ 1,686  $ - $ 1,686

137) 31 (106) - (106)
ocl $ 2,057 $ (@) $ 1,580 $ - $ 1,580
ocl $ 162 $ @) $ 128 3 - $ 128

23 5) 18 - 18
ocl $ 185 $ (39 $ 146 S - $ 146

DVA

ocl $ (1,385) $ 337 $ (1,048) $  (26) $ (1,022)

26 (6) 20 - 20
ocl $ (1,359) $ 331 $ (1,028) $  (26) $ (1,002)

( )
2019
C ) C ) C )

ocl $ 6 $ O 33 113 (8)
ocl $ 6 $ O 3 8 11 $ )
ocl $ 1,588 $ (373) $ 1,215 $ - $ 1,215

(103) 25 (78) - (78)
ocl $ 1,485 $ (348) $ 1,137 $ - $ 1,137
ocl $ (98 % 25 % @) 3 - $ (73)

12 ) 7 - 7
ocl $  (86) $ 20 3 66) $ - $ (66)

DVA

ocl $ (2,181) $ 533 $ (1,648) $  (80) $ (1.568)

11 0 9 - 9
ocl $ (2,170) $ 531  $ (1,639) $  (80) $ (1,559)

294/424
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0Cl
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0ocCl

0Cl

1.

DVA

2018
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( )
2018 1
) C ) C )
an s @9 $ (90) 24§ (114)
an s @9 $ (90) 24 $  (114)
(346) % 80 $  (266) - $  (266)
(®) 2 (6) — (6)
(354) % 82 $ (212) - $  (272)
156 $ @G $ 119 - $ 119
26 ) 18 - 18
182 $ 45) $ 137 - $ 137
1,947 $  (472) $ 1,475 63 $ 1,412
56 (14) 42 - 42
2,003 $ (486) $ 1,517 63 $ 1,454
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ (1,406) $ (1,874)
611 977
$  (795) $  (897)
$ 15,746 $ 13,440
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( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 2,282 $ 2,175 $ 1,744
4,142 4,783 4,249
1 (194) 3,485 1,976
2,417 2,899 2,392
2 1,515 3,756 3,531
$ 10,162 $ 17,008 $ 13,892
$ 953 $ 1,885 $ 1,255
3,250 5,052 5,031
3 983 2,609 1,898
4 (1,337) 2,858 1,902
$ 3,849 $ 12,404 $ 10,086
$ 6,313 $ 4,694 $ 3,806
1.
2.
3.
4.
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 1,652 $ 1,661
2,119 2,223
RSU PSU
( )
2020 2019 2018
RSU $ 1,170 $ 1,064 $ 892
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2020
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142 89 28
$ 1,312 $ 1,153 $ 920
$ 157 $ 1 $ 110
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 270 $ 243 $ 193
( )
2020 12 31
1
$ 383
159
28
$ 570
2021
( )
2020 12 31
110
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18
RSU
RSU
RSU
2020
( ) (D)
RSU 65 $ 44.38
21 55.01
(25) 39.81
@ 48.29
RSU 1 60 $  49.82
RSU $ 4,087
2019 RSU $ 43.05
2018 RSU 55.40
1. 2020 12 31 RSU 1.2
RSU
2020
( ) C )
RSU 37 $ 44.58
21 55.01
24) 44.12
@ 48.29
RSU 1 33 $ 51.27
1. RSU

298/424
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RSU

( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 1,295 $ 1,497 $ 1,790
1,289 1,292 1,504
PSU
PSU
0 150
MS ROE S&P500
MS TSR
PSU RSU 2020 12 31
PSU
PSU
2020 2019 2018
MS ROE $ 57.05 $ 43.29 $ 56.84
MS TSR 65.31 48.28 65.81
MS TSR

2020 1.6 24.0 0.88
2019 2.6 26.5 0.89
2018 2.2 26.8 0.89

S&P500
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( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 1,263 $ 1,233 $ 1,174
856 645 (48)
$ 2,119 $ 1,878 $ 1,126
! $ 194 $ 195 $ 193
1.
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 215 $ 534 $ 156
21
C )
( )
2020 2019 2018
( ) $ 17 $ 16 $ 16
121 139 134
an (114) (112)
/( ) 1 1 €))
26 13 26
$ 88 $ 55 $ 63
2007
401(a)
SEREP 401(a)
AOCI
( )
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2020 2019 2018
$  (877) $  (779) $  (947)
161 (112) 158
@ - 15)
1 1 [€H)
26 13 26
186 (98) 168
$  (691) $ (877) $  (779)
10
2020 2019 2018
3.08 4.01 3.46
2.35 3.52 3.50
3.28 3.34 3.38
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( )
2020 2019

$ 4,026 $ 3,563
17 16

121 139

362 497

2 —
2 ©
(222) (191)

30 11

$ 4,334 $ 4,026
$ 3,553 $ 3,203
600 499

35 36
(222) (191)
@ ©)

21 15

$ 3,985 $ 3,553
$  (349) $  (473)
$ 283 $ 98
(632) (571)
$  (349) $  (473)

( )

2020 2019
12 31 12 31

$ 4,318 $ 4,013




2020
12 31
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2019
12 31

$ 708
692
76

$ 637
624
66

12 31

2020
12 31

2019
12 31

2.43
3.25

3.08
3.28

Aa
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( )
2020 12 31
! $ 4 $ - $ - $ 4
3,038 321 — 3,359
CDO — 4 — 4
- 2 - 2
_ — 61 61
1 - 53 - 53
$ 3,042 $ 380 $ 61 $ 3,483
NAV
48
169
54
250
$ 521
1 — (19) - (19
$ - $ (19 $ - $ (19
$ 3,985
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( )
2019 12 31
! $ 3 $ - $ - $ 3
2,658 292 - 2,950
CDo - 9 _ 9
- - 53 53
- 48 - 48
$ 2,661 $ 349 $ 53 $ 3,063
137
136
30
240
$ 543
- @ - @
- (52) - (52)
$ - $ (53) $ - $ (53)
$ 3,553
( )
2020 2019
$ 53 $ 48
« ) 5 3
3 2
$ 61 $ 53

2019
87

305/424
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NAV

NAV
NAV

2020 12 31
2021 2021 50
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( )

2020 12 31
2021 $ 153
2022 155
2023 161
2024 163
2025 171
2026 -2030 940

401(K)

( )

2020 2019 2018
$ 293 $ 280 $ 272

401(K)
401(K)
401(K) 2020 2019
2018 IRS
100,000
401(K)
401(K)

( )

2020 2019 2018

$ 130 $ 121 $ 116

307/424
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2020

2019
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( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 1,641 $ 873 $ 686
399 260 207
395 166 328
185 177 268
185 82 94
684 341 318
$ 3,489 $ 1,899 $ 1,901
$  (249) $ 185 $ 330
(38) 46 56
) 54
12 11 (10)
3 €))
30 (82) 22
$  (250) $ 165 $ 449
$ 3,239 $ 2,064 $ 2,350
$ - $ $ €))
2018
2020 2019 2018
21.0 21.0 21.0

2.0 2.2 2.0

0.8) (1.6) 1.3)

1.7 (0.8) 1.3

0.7 a.n (1.5

0.7 1.9 (0.6)

22.5 18.3 20.9
2020 122
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2019 2018
475 368 2019
2018 158 111
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 330 $ 287
2,248 2,075
669 318
19 368
43 -
3,309 3,048
236 156
$ 3,073 $ 2,892
1,130 983
1,156 411
$ 2,286 $ 1,394
$ 787 $ 1,498
2020 12 31
50

2020 12 31

309/424
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( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 755 $ 1,080 $ 1,504
139 57 83
178 61 34
26 _ _
(297) (419) (404)
(36) an (139)
(10) ) (88)
$ 755 $ 755 $ 1,080
$ 665 $ 549 $ 746
12
12

( )

( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 56 $ 8 $  (40)
134 ) o1
2017
2010
2014
2011
2015
IRS

310/424
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( )

2020

$ 7,204 $ 559 $ - $ (8 $ 7,674
13,106 844 (34) 76 13,992
166 12 808 - 986
2,935 2,291 1 (376) 4,851
461 10,955 3,013 157) 14,272
(214) 372 (39) ) 110
23,658 15,033 3,749 (555) 41,885
5,809 4,771 14 (432) 10,162
3,519 749 29 (448) 3,849
2,290 4,022 15) 16 6,313

$ 25,948 $ 19,055 $ 3,734 $  (539) $ 48,198

$ 9,151 $ 4,387 $ 870 $ 10 $ 14,418

2,040 1,026 171 2 3,239
7,111 3,361 699 8 11,179
7,111 3,361 699 8 11,179

99 — 84 - 183

$ 7,012 $ 3,361 $ 615 $ 8 $ 10,996

311/424
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( )
2019

$ 5,734 $ 509 $ - $ (80) $ 6,163
10,318 734 () 51 11,095
325 2 1,213 - 1,540
2,484 1,726 1 (292) 3,919
413 10,199 2,629 (158) 13,083
632 345 (46) (6) 925
19,906 13,515 3,789 (485) 36,725
12,193 5,467 20 (582) 17,098
11,713 1,245 46 (600) 12,404
480 4,222 (26) 18 4,694

$ 20,386 $ 17,737 $ 3,763 $ (467) $ 41,419

$ 5,490 $ 4,832 $ 985 $ (6) $ 11,301

769 1,104 193 @ 2,064
4,721 3,728 792 ) 9,237
4,721 3,728 792 0 9,237

122 - 73 - 195

$ 4,599 $ 3,728 $ 719 $ O] $ 9,042

312/424
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( )
2018
$ 6,088 $ 475 $ - $ (8) $ 6,482
11,191 279 25 56 11,551
182 1 254 - 437
1 2,671 1,804 - (285) 4,190
1 421 10,158 2,468 (149) 12,898
535 248 (30) (10) 743
21,088 12,965 2,717 (469) 36,301
9,271 5,498 57 (934) 13,892
9,777 1,221 28 (940) 10,086
(506) 4,277 29 6 3,806

$ 20,582 $ 17,242 $ 2,746 $ (463) $ 40,107

$ 6,260 $ 4,521 $ 464 0 $ (8 $ 11,237

1,230 1,049 73 0 2,350
5,030 3,472 391 ) 8,887
®) - 2 - O]
5,024 3,472 393 (6) 8,883
118 - 17 - 135

$ 4,906 $ 3,472 $ 376 $ (6) $ 8,748

2019 172

124 37 11

( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 2,008 $ 2,116 $ 2,436
5,196 3,618 3,652
92 90 86

313/424
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( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 2,978 $ 2,773 $ 2,696
902 395 914
6,200 5,246 6,157
1,771 1,438 1,174
2,141 1,243 610
$ 13,992 $ 11,095 $ 11,551
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 735 $ 774
( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 135 $ 43 $ 56

314/424



EDINETOOOO

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
OooooOodd

( )

2020 2019 2018
$ 35,017 $ 30,226 $ 29,301
EMEA 6,430 6,061 6,092
6,751 5,132 4,714
$ 48,198 $ 41,419 $ 40,107
( )

2020 2019 2018
$ 10,027 $ 9,464 $ 7,804
4,391 1,837 3,433
$ 14,418 $ 11,301 $ 11,237

1.

( )

2020 2019 2018
$  (68) $  (400) $  (286)
(50) (50) (50)
O] (25) (32)
$  (122) $  (475) $  (368)

315/424
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( )
2020 2019

$ 2,298 $ 2,705
( )

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 3,200 $ 2,916
( )

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 753,322 $ 691,201
355,595 197,682
6,945 6,546
$ 1,115,862 $ 895,429
( )

2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 815,048 $ 622,979
194,598 185,093
106,216 87,357
$ 1,115,862 $ 895,429
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( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 2,811 $ 3,531 $ 2,969
1,170 1,998 2,004
3,981 5,529 4,973
(244) (54) 54
51 80 )
3,788 5,555 5,022
3,666 5,121 5,172
3,087 4,661 4,816
579 460 356
4,367 6,015 5,378
387 300 225
3,980 5,715 5,153
(109) 73) 22
4,089 5,788 5,131
6,907 3,254 3,617
10,996 9,042 8,748
102 ®) (114)
1,580 1,137 72)
146 (66) 137
(1,002) (1,559) 1,454
$ 11,822 $ 8,546 $ 9,953
$ 10,99 $ 9,042 $ 8,748
496 530 526
$ 10,500 $ 8,512 $ 8,222

317/424
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( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 7,102 $ 8,010
6,862 5,747
(20,037 19,824
24,248 4,606 39,225 37,253
)

34,698 10,114

22,602 27,667

121,731 104,345

52,0951 36,003

47,450 43,667

454 244

$ 333,165 $ 273,140

$ 1,623 $ 1,130

24,349 4,631

43,252 35,470

2,181 2,153

(18,804 20,461 ) 159,979 148,207
231,384 191,591

15
9,250 8,520
0.01
© 3,500,000,000 © 2,038,893,979 20 20
1,809,624, 144 1,593,973, 680

25,546 23,935

78,694 70,589

3,043 2,918
C ) (1,962) (2,788)
229,269,835 444,920,298'01 ) (9,767) (18,727)
(3,043) (2,918)

101,781 81,549

$ 333,165 $ 273,140
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( )
2020 2019 2018
$ 14,202 $ 24,175 $ (1,136)
(9,310) (22,408) (8,155)
2,013 4,671 1,252
5,651 3,157 3,729
(24,584) 15,422 13,057
19,719 4,631 (8,753)
(13,832) (9,210) 11,841
(20,343) (3,737) 12,971
- 497 -
25,587 8,337 14,918
(22,105) (24,282) (21,418)
(1,890) (5,954) (5,566)
(2,739) (2,627) (2,375)
7,194 4,378 2,122
(498) 12 -
5,549 (19,639) (12,319)
(316) (271) (166)
(908) 528 (650)
8,010 7,482 8,132
$ 7,102 $ 8,010 $ 7,482
$ 20 $ 9 $ 6
7,082 8,001 7,476
$ 7,102 $ 8,010 $ 7,482
$ 381 $ - $ _
$ 3,472 $ 4,677 $ 4,798
1,364 1,186 437
2019
15 G
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( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 148,885 $ 137,138
11,094 10,570
$ 159,979 $ 147,708

320/424



2019

LLC

IHC

IHC

321/424

EDINETOOOO

000000000 m0(eos871)
ooooooo
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 39,745 $ 32,99
( )
2020 12 31 2019 12 31
$ 865 $ 925
2019
IHC
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13a-15(e)
( GAAP
)
GAAP
2020 12 31
(C0S0) (2013 )

2020 12 31
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( C0S0 )
(2013 ) ( )
2020 12 31 C0S0
(2013 ) 2020
12 31
C X PCAOB ) 2020 12
31 2020 12 31 2021 26
PCAOB PCAOB

PCAOB
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LLP

2021 26
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Consolidated Income Statements Morgan Stanley
 rndlioees, except per shae dals 2020 2019 2018
Revenuss

Invvisiment banking 5 T.GT4 3 B163 § 6,462
Trading 13,902 11,085 11,551
Invisiments 386 1,540 437
Commizssons and lees 4,851 3,918 4, 100
sgal managemani 14,272 13,083 12,838
D 110 925 T4l
Todal nom-nlarssl ey amuas 41, B85 18,725 35,301
Interest ncorma 10,162 17,088 13,892
Intareal BKpanss 3,848 12,404 10,088
Halinteras] E.E'I!ﬁ & 654 3,806
Netrevenues 48,198 A1 4007
Honsinterest expenses '
Campansaton and banafits 20,554 18,837 17,1632
Brokerage. cleanng and axchange fees 2,929 2483 2303
Informaton proceasing Bnd communicabons 465 2,154 26
Profedsional sarvicas 2,205 2483 2,565
Oocupancy and ecuipment 1.559 1,428 1301
Markating and businass davelopment 434 () L=}
Oitfhesr 3334 2,368 2482
Total non-interest expenses 33,780 0,118 28,870
Incorma bafone provision for incoma taxes 14,418 11,301 11,237
Provasion for mcome lass 3,239 2,064 2350
Incorn from conBnuing operations 11,178 9,237 8 8ar
Instoorma (lass} from discontirnsd oparations, mil of incom axes == _ ] 4y
Hal incams 5 11,179 5 9,217 % 8,883
Ml incoma applicable 1o noncondnolling nterests 183 105 135
Hal inczarmd applicable 1o Morgan Stanley H 10,996 § 9,042 § 8,748
Praferrad stock deadends and olher 406 530 526
Earnings applicable i Morgan Stanley comman share halders $ 10,500 5 A,512 § 8222
Earnings per cornmon share

Basic § 6.55 § 5% § 481
Caluted 6.46 519 4.73
Average commaon shares outstanding

Basic 1.603 1,817 1,708
Cilutad 1.624 1,640 1,738

Zew Motes to Consclidated Financial Statements | Drevember 2020 Form 10-K
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Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statements Morgan Stanley
5 i milers 2020 2014 2018
Hai incama $ 1M.179 % 9237 % 8,883
Ot compralsangiva incorms {kaas}, nal of tae:
Feraign curmency ranslation adustmants 170 3 (111
Changs in net urmsaleed gains (losses ) on availabledor-sale securitss 1.580 1137 {272)
Pangion and oher 14 (B8} 137
R kD vk on i {2.028) f1.55) L0
Tolal ofher comprstndiva ncoms (1oss) 5 68 § (566) § 1.0z
Caomprehensive incoma ) £ 12,047 % 8,672 § 10,175
Mt incarma apglicable o ronconinlling nbaressbs 183 185 135
Other comprabansive income (loas) applcable 1o nonconirolling interssts 42 [E8) ar
Comprehensive income applicable to Morgan Standey § 11,622 § 8546 § 9,853

December 2020 Form 10-K B2

326/424
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Consolidated Balance Sheets Morgan Stanley
At Al
December 31,  Decembar 31,

§ i B, exapd share date 2020 218
Asaets
Cash and cash aquivalants H 105,654 § B2
Traeding assets al lnie value ($132,578 and $120.386 wern pledged 1o various parties) Mrraa T 0
Inwasiment secunbes (inchates $110,383 and $62 223 al lar valua) 182,154 105,725
Sacuritins purchased undier agreaments o resall {indudes 515 and 34 3l fair valua) 116,234 B8 224
Securilien bonmawid 112331 106,548
Customer and ather recaivables or.TIT 55,645
Lcdirii:

Hedd fer inveatrment (nal af allowancs of $835 and $349) 137.784 118,060

Hedd lor sale: 12,813 12,577
Gaocaall 11,635 7,143
Intangiile aasels nal of acowmulalsd aesorization of $3,265 and $3,204) &880 2107
Crihar assets 1,742 20,117
Total asseis 3 1115862 § BA5420
Liabildties
Drapoasits finchudes §3,521 and 52,095 a1 Tair valu) § oTez 3 190,356
Tranfing habdites &l fair value 15763 133,356
Securilies sold undar agreements 1o repurchasa (inchades §1,115 and §733 al tair value) 50,587 54,200
Securitises Moaad A 8,508
Ciher secured financings fncudes $11,701 and $7.808 at tar value) 15,063 14,658
Customar and ather payables a2rAaT a7 B
Oiher Eabliies and socroed axpendes 25,603 21165
Borrowings (includes §7 3,70 and $64.467 at Trer value) 217,079 192 627
R e ey Ty
Cammitments and contingent liabilities (ses Note 15)
Equity
Muangan Stanley shareholdars’ aouily:

Prafamad siock 8,250 8,520

Comemon stock, $0.00 par value:

Shares authonsed: 3,5000000,000; Shares maued: 2038803878, Sharas owtslanding: 1,800,624 144 and
1,503,973, 680 20 0

Adchtional pasd-in capital 15,546 23,535

Ruatainad sarrings TE04 70,688

Ernployee slock trusls 1,043 2818

Acoumulalad olher comprehensive incomea (loss) {1.962) {2 FEh)

Cewrwmson siock bl in raazury al cesl, $0.00 par value [220,260,835 and 444,920 200 shanas) [BLTET) {18,727

Conrmon slock issuad 1o emplapae stock rusts [ 3.0:43) {2,918
“Total Morgan Stanley shareholders’ equity 101,781 81,540
Manconinoling inlanmasls 1.368 1,148
Total equity i 103149 82,667
Todal liabilities and equity 5 1115862 5 095479
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Total Equity Morgan Stanley
5 i milieres 2020 2ma e
Prefemed Stock
Bisginning balanca BEI § B520 § 8,520
e af prafarad stock’ 730 500
Redermpion of preferrad stock’ - {500} —
Erifing balainas B 250 8,520 8,520
Common Stock
Beginning ard andng balance 20 20 20
Additional Paid-in Capital
Begmning balance 23935 23,704 23,545
Share-based award acivity 518 1M 245
lssuance of pralfarmad alock - {3 -
tesuance of comman slock for the acquisition of E*TRADE' 1,003 - -
Oiffwir na incriases (decnivies) = 13 -
Ening bilance 25,545 nws  nm
Ratained Esrnings
Bagprveng balancs 70589 84,175 57.577
Cumulative adustmants for accounting changes” {100) 3 306
Hat income applicable 10 Morgan Stanley 0,546 9,042 8748
Praferred stock deidends® {406 (524} {526)
Common stock dividends’ |2,295) 2,161} [1.530)
Dhar rml incraases. (decraases ) = 18} =
Eniing balands THE94 0,563 B4. 175
‘Emplayer Stock Trusts
Baginring balanca 2918 2,838 2807
Shara-based award ackvly 125 B2 (1)
Erufing balance 3,043 2,918 2,836
Accurmulated Other Comprehensive Incame [Loss)
Bagnring balance {2.788) 2,262) (3,060)
Curnlative sdusinants for aceounting changes” - . {437}
Nal change in Accumulatad alher comprabansie incomea {loss} BIG (=BG} 1,205
Engting balance (1.862) {2,788} (2.292)
Common Stock Held in Treaswery at Cost
Begnring balance (18.727) {13,874} [321)
Shari-based smard ackvity 812 1,188 ane
Rapurchasses af common slock and amployes 1ax withhaldings {1.500) {5,954} {5.566)
tssuance of comman stock for the acquisition of E*TRADE' 9,918 - —
Erfing balances {3, 767) {18,727} {13.971)
Common Stock Issued to Employes Stock Trusts
Beginning batance (2518} {2,836) 2.907)
Share-based award ackvity {125) (B2} |
Ending halance (3.043) {2.918) (2.836)
Hoencontrolling Interesis
Beginning balance 1,148 1,160 1,075
Hal incama applicable 1o nencantrolling ntarests 183 185 135
Hal changa in Accumulated alhisr comprebensive incomas {loss) applicable 10 rancantralling
intarests 42 (&8 a7
Cher nel increases (decreases) 5 {128} {137
Ending balancs 1.368 1,148 1,160
Total Equity _ 3 1031483 G267 5 B1406

1. The 330 Ewanoes of Prefered ang Sommor Siock were minted 5o the soguisiion of E*TRADE . See Motss 3 arg 18 for further infommation.
2. Sae Mote 18 forinfamiation regarsirg e notics of mdsmpion and medasaification of Sades G Prefermed Siock

3. Sas Motes 2 and 18 for furber inf don mecarding curmul i for sccounting changes.

4, Sas Moa 18 foe ik et PagARing Shidends per shame for aech cless of modk,

December 2020 Form 10-K 24
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statements Morgan Stanley
5 i milers 2020 2014 2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Hal incama 5 11,179 § .27 3 8,883
Adfusimants to recancle nal incoma 1o ned cash provided by (used for) opeming activiies
Defisrriad income Laes {250) 165 444
Stock-based companaabon axpense 1312 1,153 H20
Dupraciston and amartization 3,768 2,843 1,844
Provision for (Release of) cradit lases on lendng aclivilies Tez 162 (15)
Other oparaling adusiments 274 {185} 193
Chargas in astats wnd lishilifeasg:
Tradng assats, nel of Trading habikties 15,550 {13.668) 23,752
Secunbes borrowed {5.078) 0,764 7807
Securibas leaned {1.541) {3,400} {1.684)
Cushomer and othar recenables and ather asesla (28.774) 23 {728)
Cuslomer and othar payablias and ofhar liabilities 10,187 19,542 {13.063)
Secunites purchasad under agrasments ba resell {28,010) 10,268 (14.254)
Sacunbes ackl under Bgreaments 1 repurchase {LE13) 4441 {B,8B5)
Het cash provided by (used for) operating activities (25.231) 40,773 7305
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceads from {payments for}
Othes assata--Pramises, squipmant and solbwane, el {1.444) {1.826) {1.865)
Changas in loans, nel {17,849) {17,359} (8,794)
Irvestment secunties
Purchases 158,777) {42 588) {27,800
Procesads from salés 13,750 1713 3,208
Proceads fram paydowns and maturifies 24,517 12,012 12668
Cash actusred as parl of the E*TRADE acoquisbon 3807 - -
Other irvasting activilins (E02) {853} {296)
Met cash provided by (used fer) investing activities (37,508 [ [22.851)
Cash flows from financing activities
Ml procasds from {payrents Tork
Other sacured Snancngs Tad 3,665 {1.226)
Deaposils T541T7 2,613 28,384
Issuancs of prafarmad slock, nal of issuance cosls - 4457 —
Proceads from ssuance of Bomowings 60,726 30,605 40,055
Paymanis for:
Borravwings (50, 484) {40,548) [34,781)
Repurchases of common slock and employes lax withholdinga {1.800) {5.954) {5,566)
Cansh dividends (2.739) (2627} {2375
Othher ﬁnanu:‘ng BClvibas (4a) {147} {200y
'Hat cash provided by (used for) linancing activities 83,784 {11,968} 24,205
Effecl ol sxchanga raba changes on cash and cash equivilents rE23 {271} {1.828)
Halincrease (decraasa ) in cash and cash equivalents 23,483 15.025) G001
Gl it acy st it 21 bighookogr of paiod : L ity )6
Cash and cagh equivalents, at end of period £ 105,554 5 8211 § BT 1598
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
Cash paymants for-
Intenast L4 4120 § 12511 § 84877
Incone tares, nel of refurds 50 1,908 1377
Bee Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements 85 Devember 2020 Form 10-K
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Introduction and Basis of Presentation

The Firm

Morgan Stanley s a plobal financial services firm that
maintains significant market positions in each of its business
segments—Inatitutionnl Securities, Wealth Management and
Investment Management. Morgan  Stanley, through us
subsidiaries and aflibates, provides a wide vanety of products
and services to a large and diversified group of clients and
customers, including corporations, governments, financial
institutions and individuals Unless the context otherwise
requires, the terms “Morgan Stanley”™ or the “Firm”™ mean
Morgan Sunley {the “Parent Company™) together with s
consolidated subsidiaries. See the “Glossary of Common
Terms and Acronyms" for the definstion of certain terms and
acranyms wsed throughout this Form 1K

A description of the clients and principal products and
services of each of the Fom's business sepmenis is as
follows:

Institutional Securities provides investment banking, sales
and trading, lending and other services o corporabions,
governments, financial institutions and high to ultira-high
net worth cliemts. Investment banking services consist of
capital raesing and financial advisory services, meluding
services relating to the underwriting of debt, equity and
olher securities, as well as advice on mergers and
acquisitions, restruciunings, real estate and project Nnance.
Sales and trading services include sales, fmancing, prime
brokerage and market-making activities in the equity and
fixed income businesses. Lending  activities  include
onginating corporate loans and commercial real estate
loans, providing secured lending facilities, and extending
financing to sales and trading customers, Other activities
include Asia wealth management services, mvestments and
rescarch.

Wealth Management provides a comprehensive amay of
financial services and solutions 10 individual myestors and
small 10 medium-sized busimesses and instilations covening:
financial advisor-led brokerage and investment advisory
services;  self-directed brokerage services, including
threweh the E*TRADE plafosm. francial amd weslth
planning services, workplace services including stock plan
admimstration; annuity and msurance products; securities-
based lending. ressdential real estate Joans and other lending
products; banking; and retirement plan services

Investment Management provides o broad range of
investment strategies and procducts that span geographies,
asset classes, and public and private markets to a diverse
group of cliens acress mstitutional and  intermediary
channels. Strategies and products, which are offered
through a vanety of mvestment vehscles, include equity,
fixed income, lguidity and aBlernative’other products.
Institutional  clients  include  defined  benefiv'delined
contribution plans, foundations, endowments, government
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entities, sovereign wealth funds, insurance companies,
third-party  fund sponsors and corporations. Individual
chients are generally  served through inermediaries,
including affilisted and non-affiliated distributors.

Basis of Financial Information

The financial statemenis are prepared in accordance with 115,
GAAF, which requires the Firm to make cstimates and
assumptions regarding the valumtions of certain [inancial
instruments, the valuations of goodwill and intangible assets,
the outcome of legal and tax matters, deferred tax assets,
ACL, and other matters that affect its firancial statemerts and
related disclosures. The Firm believes thal the estimates
uiilized in the preparation of s [nancial stalements are
prudent and reasomable. Actual resubts could differ materially
from these estimates,

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior peniods to
conform o the current presentation. The Noles are an integral
part of the Firm's [inancel statememts, The Firm  has
evaluated subsequent events for adjustment to or disclosure in
these financial statements through the date of this report and
has not identified any recordable or disclosable events mot
otherwise reported in these financial statements or the notes
thereto.

Consolidation

The financial statements melude the accounts of the Firm, its
whelly owned subsidienies and other entities i which the
Firm has o conrolling Bnancial interest, including certain
VIEs (see Nate 16). Intercompany balances and transaclions
have been eliminated. For consolidated subsidiaries that are
mat wholly owned, the third-party holdings of equity interests
are referred to as Noncomrolling interests. The netl income
attnibutable to Moncontrolling mterests for such subsidiaries is
presented as Met mcome applicable to noncontrolling interests
in the income statements. The porton of shareholders” equity
that 15 atinbutable to noncontrolling interests for such
subsidiaries = presented as noncontroiling  mterests, a
component of Total equity, in the balance sheets.

For entities where the toial equity investment at risk is
sufficient to enable the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support and the egquiy
holders bear the residual economic risks and returns of the
entity and have the power to direct the activities of the entity
that most sipmibcantly affect s economie performance. the
Firm consolidates those entitics it controls either through a
majonity voling interest or otherwise. For VIEs (ie., entities
that do not meet the aforementioned criteria), the Firm
consolidates those entitics where 1t has the power 1o make the
decmwons  that most  sigmbficantly  affect the economic
performance of the VIE and has the obligation 1o absorh
losses or the nght to receve benefits that could patentially be
significant o the VIE.
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Far investments in entities in which the Firm does not have a
controlling [inanceal interest but has significant influence over
operating and financial decisions, it applies the equity method
of accounting with net gams and losses recorded within Other
revenees (see Note 12) unless the Firm has elected 10 measure
the imvestment at faar value, in which case net gains and losses
are recorded within Investments revenues (see Note 5).

Equity and partnership mterests held by entities qualifying for
ACCOUNUNE PUrposes as ivestment companies are camied al
fair value,

The Firm's sigmificant regulated US and intemnational
subsidiaries include:

+ Morgan Stanley & Co, LLC ["MS&Co.™),

+ Morgan Stanley Smith Bamey LLC (“MSSE™),

+ Morgan Stanley Europe SE ("MSESE™),

Morgan Stanley & Co. Intermational ple (“MSIP™),

Morgan Stanley Bank, NoA. ("M3BNA"),

Morgan Stanley  Private Bank, National Assocmtion
“MSPENA™,

E*TRADE Bank ("ETB"),

E*TRADE Savings Bank ("ETSB”) and

E*TRADE Securities LLC

-

-

2. Significant Accounting Policics
Revenue Recognition

Bevenues are recognized when the promised poods or
services are delivered to our customers, in an amouni that is
based on the consideration the Finm expects 1o receive in
exchange for those goods or services when such amounts are
not probable of significant reversal.

Tivestrment Banking

Revenues [rom investmenl banking activities consist of
revenuecs camed from underwriting, primarly equity and
fxed meome securibes and loan syndications, and advisory
fees, primanly for mergers, acquisitions and restructurings

Underwriting revenues are generally recognized on trade date
if there 15 no uncertamty or contingency related to the amount
to be pud, Underwriting costs are deferred and recognized in
the relevant non-interest expenses line items when the related
underwriting revenues are recorded.

Advisory fees are recognized as advice s provided 1o the
client, based on the estimated progress of work and when
revenwes are not probable of a significant reversal. Advisory
costs are recognized as incurmed m the relevant non-interest
expenses line fems, meluding these reimbursed

Commissions and Fees
Commission  and [ee revenues generally result  from

transaction-based armangements in which the chent 15 charged
n fee for the execution of transactions. Such revemues
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primarily arize rom transactions in equity ScCurilies, services
related to sales and trading activities: and =sales of mutual
funds, altermative funds, futures, insurance products and
oplions, as well as revenues from crder flow payments for
directing customer arders to broker-dealers, exchanges, and
market centers for execution. Commission and fee revenwes
are recogmized on trade date when the performance ohlgation
is satisfied,

Asser Maragement Revenues

Asset management, distnbutton and sdministration fees are
generally based on related ssset levels being managed, such as
the AUM of a customer’s account or the net asset value of a
fund. These fees are generally recogruzed when services are
performed and the fees become known, Management fees are
reduced by estimated fee waivers and expense caps, if any,
provided o the customer.

Performance-based fees not in the form of carmed interest are
recorded when the annual performance target s met and the
revenues are not probable of a sipmlicant reversal

Sales commissions pard by the Firm i connection with the
sale of certain classes of shares of s open-end mutual fund
products are accounted for as deferred commission assets and
amortized 10 expense over the expected life of the conract
The Firm pericdically tesis deferred commission assets for
recoverability based on cash flows expected to be received in
future periods. Cither assel management and distribution costs
are recognized as incured in the relevant non-interest
expenses line items.

Carried [nterest

The Firm is entitled to receive performance-based fees in the
form of carried inlerest when the retum in certain funds
excecds specihed performance targets. When the Firm earmns
carried inferest from  funds as  spectfied  performance
thresholds are met, that caried interest and any related
general or limited pariner interest is accounted for under the
equity method of accounting and measured based on the
Firm's claim on the NAY of the fund @ the reporting date,
taking imto aecount the distribution terms applicable 1o the
interest held.

See MNote I3 for information regarding the net cumulative
unrealized amount of performance-based fee revenues at rsk
of reversal, See Note 15 for information regarding general
partner guarantees, which melude potential obhgations 10
return performance fee distnbutions previously received

Other Items
Fevenues from certain commodities-related contracts are
recognized as the promised poods o services are delivered 1o
the customer.

Receivables from contracts with customers are recogrized in
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheets when

BT December 2020 Form [{-k
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MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

the underlying performance obligations have been satisfied
and the Fim has the nght per the confract to ll the
customer. Contract assets are recognized m Other assets when
the Fim has sabisfied s performance obligations but
customer paymert s conditional Contract habalities are
recognized in Other linbilities when the Firm has collected
payment rom a customer based on the terms of the contract,
bt the underlving performance oblgations are net yet
satisfied

For comracts with & term of less than one vear, incremental
costs 1o obtain the contract are expensed as  ncurred.
Revemues are neil discounted when payment is expected
within cne yvear.

The Fim generally presents, net within revenues, taxes
assessed by a povemmenial authority that are both mposed
on and comcurrent with a specific  revenue-producing
transaction and collected by the Firm from a customer.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Instruments within Trading assets and Trading liabilities are
measured at fair value, cither as required or allowed by
accounting puidance. These fmancial instruments primarily
represent the Firm's trading and invesiment positions and
mclude both cash amd denvatve products. In addition,
securities classified as AFS are measured at Tair value.

Gams and losses on nstruments carned at far value are
reflected in Tradimg revenues, Investments revenues of
Investment banking revenues in the income statements, exeept
for AFS  securities (see  “Avmlable-for-Sale (“AFS™)
Investment Secunities™ section herein and Note 8) and
dervatives accounted for as hedges (see “Hedge Aceounting”
herein and Noge 7).

Interest mcome and interest expense are recorded within the
income statements depending on the nature of the nstrument
and rebated market corventions. When imerest is included as a
component of the instruments’ Fair value, interest is recorded
within Trading revenues or Investments revenues. Otherwise,
it 15 recorded within Interest income or Interest expense.
Dividend income i3 recorded in Treading reverues of
Investments revenues depending on the business activity.

The fair value of OTC financial mstruments, ncluding
denvative comtracts related to [nancml mstruments and
compnodities, is presented in the accompanying balance sheets
on @ net-by-counterparty  basis, when  approprmie.
Additionally, the Firm nets the [aar value of cash collateral
paid or recerved sgamst the fair value amounts recogmized for
net dervative positions executed with the same counterpanty
under the same master nelling agreement.

Fair Value Option

The Firm has elected 1o measure certain eligible instruments
a1 fair value, mcluding Securities purchased under agreements
e resell, Loans and lending commitments, equity method
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investments and certain other assets, Deposits, Secunties sold
under agreements 1o repurchase, Other secured linancings and
Borrowings.

Fair Value Measurement—Definition and Hierarchy

Fair value 15 defined as the price that would be recenved o sell
an asset of paid 1o transfer a lability (£e., the “exit price™) in
an orderly transaction between markel participants @t the
measurement date.

Fair value 15 a market-based measure considered from the
perspective of @ market participant mther than an entity-
specific measure. Therefore, even when market assumplions
are nol readily available, assumptions are set o rellect those
that the Firm believes markel participants would wse in
pricing the asset or Lability at the measurement date. Where
the Firm manages @ proup of [(nancial assets, linancial
liabalitees, and nonfinancial tems accounted for as derivatives
on the basis of its net exposure to either market risks or eredit
risk, the Firm measures the fair value of that group of
financial  nstruments  consistently  with  how  market
participants would price the net nsk exposure at the
measurement date

In determining fair value, the Firm uses various vahmtion
approaches and establishes a hrerarchy for mputs used in
measuring fair valee that requires the most observable inputs
be used when available,

Observable inputs are mputs that market participants would
use in pricing the asset or lability that were developed based
on markel datn obtmned from sources independent of the
Firm. Unchservable inputs are inputs that reflect assumptions
the Firm believes other markel parbapants would use in
pricing the asset or lability that are developed based on the
best information available in the circumstances. The fair value
hierarchy 15 broken down into three levels bazed on the
ohservability of inputs as follows, with Level 1 being the
highest and Level 3 being the lowest level:

Level .  Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets
that the Firm has the ability 1o access for wentical assets or
liabilities.  Valuation adjustrents, block  discounts  and
discounts for entity-specific restrictions that would not
transfer to market participants are not applied io Level 1
instruments. Since valuations are based on quoted prices that
are readily and regularly available in an active market,
valuation of thess products does not entail a significant degree
of judgment

Level 2. Valuations based on one or more quoted prices in
markets that are not active or for which all siemificant inpuls
are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3. Valuations based on inputs that are unobservable
and significant to the averall fair value measurement,

The availability of ob=ervable inputs can vary from product to
product and is alfected by a wide varety of factors, including
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the type of product, whether the product & new and not yet
established i the marketplace, the hquidity of markets and
other chamactenistics particular 1o the product. To the extent
that valuation 15 based on models or inputs that are less
observable or unobservable in the market, the determination
of fair value requires more judgment. Accordingly, the degree
of judgment exercised by the Firm in determining fair value 1s
greatest for instruments categonized n Level 3 of the far
value hierarchy,

The Firm considers prices and inputs that are current as of the
measurement  date, including durmg  periods  of market
disloeation. In periods of market dislocation, the observability
of prices and inputs may be reduced for many mstruments.
This condition could cause an instrument to be reclassified
from Level 1 to Level 2 or from Level 2 to Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure (air value may fall
into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy. In such cases,
the total fair value amount s disclesed in the level appropriate
for the lowest level mput that s signilicant 1o the total far
value of the asset or lability,

Faluarion Technigues

Many cash instruments and OTC denvative contracts have bid
amd] ask prices that can be observed in the marketplace. Bid
prices reflect the highest price that a party is willing to pay for
an assel Ask prices represent the lowest price that a parly is
willing te accept [of an assel. The Firm carmies positions al the
point within the bid-ask range that mects its best estimate of
farr value. For offseiting positions in the same financial
instrument, the same price within the bid-ask spread is used 10
measure both the long and short positions.

Fair value for many cash mstruments and OTC denvatve
contracts is denved using pricing models. Pricing models take
into account the contract terms, as well as multiple inputs,
including, where applicable, commodity prices, equity prices,
interest  rate  yield curves, <redit  curves,  coarelation,
ereditworthiness of the counterparty, creditworthiness of the
Firm, option volatility and currency rates.

Where appropniate, valuation adjustiments are made to account
for various factors such as  liquidity nsk  (bed-ask
adjustments),  credit  quality, model uncertainty and
concentration risk and funding. Adjustments for liquidiny nisk
adjust model-derived mid-market amounts of Level 2 and
Level 3 financial instruments for the bid-mid or mid-ask
spread reguired 1o properly reflect the exat price of a sk
position. Bid-mid and mid-ask spreads are marked to levels
observed m trade activity, broker quotes or other external
third-party data, ‘Where these spreads are unobservable for the
particular position in question, spreads are derived from
observable levels of smilar positions.

The Firm applies credit-related valuation adjustments to its
Borrowings for which the fair value option was ¢lected and 1o
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OTC derivatives. The Firm considers the impact of changes in
its own credit spreads based upon observations of the
secondary bond market spreads when measuring the fair valee
for Borrowings.

For OTC derwatives, the impact of changes 1n both the Firm's
and the counterparty’s credit rating 15 considered when
mensuring fair value, In determining the expected exposure,
the Firm simulstes the distnbution of the future exposure to a
counterpanty, then apphes markel-based default probabilities
to the future exposure, leveraging extemnal third-party CDS
spread data. Where CDS spread data are unavalable for a
specific counterpanty, bond market spreads, CDS spread daia
based on the counterparty s credit rating or CDS spread data
that reference a comparable counterparty may be utilized The
Firm also considers eollateral held and legally enforceable
muaster netting agreements that mitigate its exposure to each
CCURLETparty.

Adjustments for model uncertmnty are taken for positions
whose underlying models are reliant on significant mpuls that
are netther directly nor mdirectly ohservable, hence requinng
reliance on established theoretical concepts in their derivation
These adjustments are derived by making assessments of the
possible depree of vanabilny using statistical approaches and
miarket-based information where possible,

The Firm may apply concentration adjusimenis to certain of
its OTC denvative portfolios to reflect the additional cost of
closing out a particularky harge nsk exposure. Where possible,
these adjusti ents ane based  on abservable
market information, but in many instances, significant
Judgment is regquired o estiimate the cosis of closing
cut concentrated nsk exposures due 1o the lack of hquidity in
the marketplace

The Firm applies an FVA in the fair value measurements of
OTC uncollateralized or partially collsteralized derivatves
and in collmeralized derivatives where the terms of the
agresment do not permat the reuse of the collateral receved.
In general, FVA reflects a market funding risk premium
inherent in the noted derivative instruments. The methodology
for measuring FVA leverages the Firm's existing credit-
related valuation adjustmemt calculation  methodologies,
which apply to both assets and liabilities

See Mote 5 for a description of valuation techrigues applied to
the major categeries of financial instruments measured at fair
value,

Assees and Linbilities Measured af Fair Valwe on a Non-
recurring Hasis

Ceratn of the Firm's assets and liabilitees are measured at fair
value on a non-recurring basis. The Firm incurs Josses or
gans for any adjustiments of these assets or labilines 1o fair
value,

For assetz and liabilities measured a1 fair value on & non-
recurming basis, far value 15 determined by using various
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valuation approaches. The same hicrarchy for imputs as
desenbed above, which requites that observable mputs be
used when available, is used in measuring fair value for these
items.

For further information on (inancial assets and habilities that
are measursd at fair value on a recumng and non-recurmng
basis, see MNote 5.

(MTsetting of Derivative Instruments

In connection with iis derivative activities, the Firm generally
enters  into master netting  agreements and  collateral
agreements with 1ts counterpartics. These agreements provide
the Firm with the mght, in the event of a defoult by the
counterparty, o net a counterparty’s rights and obligations
under the agreement and to hguedate and set off cash
collateral against any net amount owed by the counterparty,
Dermvatives with enforceable master nettmg agreements are

reported net of cash collateral recerved and posted.

However, i cenaim crcumstances, the Firm may not have
such an agreement in place; the relevant insolvency regime
may not supporl the enforceability of the master netting
agreement o collateral agreement; or the Firm may nod have
sought legal advice to support the enforceability of the
agreement. In cases where the Frm has not détermined an
agreement ie be enforceable, the related amounts are not
offaet (see Note T

The Firm's policy s generally to receive cash andor
securities posted as collateral (with nghts of rehypothecation),
irrespective of the enforceability determmntion regarding the
master netting and collateral apreement. In certain cases, the
Firm may agree for such collateral to be posted to a third-
party custodian under a control agreement that enables it o
take control of such collateral i the event of a counterparty
default. The enforceabality of the master nettme agreement is
taken into account in the Firm's risk management practices
and applicatzon of counterparty credit hmits,

For information related to offsetting of derivatives, sce Nole

¥

Hedge Accouniing

The Firm apphes hedpe sccounting using varous denivalive
financial instruments for the following types of hedges:
hedges of changes m the fair value of assets and habilities due
te the nsk being hedged (fair valee hedges). and hedges of net
investments in foreign operations whose functional currency
is different from the reporting currency of the Farent
Company (net  mvestment  hedges).  These financial
instruments are inchsded within Trading assets—Denivative
and other contracts or Tradmg labilites—Derivative and
other contracis in the balance sheets. For hedges where hedge
accounting s being applied, the Firm performs effectiveness
testing and other procedures.

Diecember 2020 Form [0-E
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Fair Value Hedges—Imterest Rate Risk

The Firm's designated fair value hedges consist of interest
rate swaps designated as hedges of changes in the benchmark
interest rate of cerain fixed rate AFS securities and senior
borrowings, In the fourth quarter of 2019, the Firm also began
desipmating interest rate swaps as fur value hedges of changes
in the benchmark interest mate of certain fixed mte deposits
The Firm is permitted to hedge the full, or part of the,
contraciel term of the hedged instrumemt. The Firm uses
regression analysis o perform an ongoing prospective and
retrospective assessment of the effectiveness of these hedging
relationships. A hedgmg relationship is deemed effective if
the change in fair value of the hedging instrument (derivative)
and the changee in fair value of the hedged stem (AFS security,
deposit liahility or borowing), due to changes in the
benchmark mierest rate, oifset within a range of 808 10
125%. The Firm considers the mpact of valushon
adjustments related to counterparty credit spreads and its own
credin spreads 1o determine whether they wauld cause the
hedging relationship o be ineffective

For qualifving fair value hedges of benchmark interest rates,
the change in the fair value of the derivative, offset by the
change in the fair value astnbwtable to the change in the
benchmark interest rate risk of the hedged asset (liability), is
recognized in eamings cach period as a component of Interest
income (expense ). For AFS securities, the chamge in fair value
of the hedged item due to changes other than the risk being
hedged will continue (o be reported in OCL When a
dervative 15 de-designated as a hedge, any basis adjustment
remaining on the hedged asset (habilty) is amortized 10
Interest income (expense) over the remaining life of the asset
(liability) using the effective interest method

Met Tnvestmunt Hedges

The Firm uses forward foreign exchange contracts to manage
a portien of the cumency exposure relating to its met
investments in foremen opemtions. To the extent that the
notional amounts of the hedging instruments equal the pertion
of the investments being hedged and the underlying exchange
rate of the derivative hedgmg instrument is the same as the
exchange rate between the functional currency of the investee
and the mtermediate parent entity’s functional currency, it is
censidered 1o be perfectly effective, with no income statement
recognition. The gain of loss from revaluing hedges of net
investments in foreign operations at the spol mte 15 reported
within AQCT The forward points on the hedging instruments
are excluded from hedge effectiveness testing and changes in
the far value of this excluded component are recorded
currently in Interest income,

For further information on derivative instruments and hedaing
activities, see Note 7.

AFS Invesiment Securitics

AF3 securities are reported at fair value in the balance sheets.
Interest income, including amorization of preémiums and
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accretion of discounts, 15 included m [nterest income o the
Income statements. Unreahzed gams are recorded m OC] and
unrealized losses are recorded eiher in OCT or in Ciher
revenues as described below.

AFS secunbties i an unrcalized loss postion are first
evaluated 10 determine whether there is an intent 1o sell or it is
more likely than not the Firm will be required to sell before
recovery of the amortized cost basis. If so, the amortized cost
basis is written down 1o the fair value of the security such that
the entire unrealized loss is recognized in Other revenues and
any previously established ACL is written off.

For all ather AFS securities in an unrealizad loss position, any
portion of unrealized losses representing a credit loss is
recognized in Other revenues and as an increase to the ACL
for AFS secunities, with the remainder of unrealized losses
recognized wn OCL A credit loss exists if the Firm does not
expect to recover the amortioed cost basis of the security.
When considermp whether a credit loss exists, the Firm
considers relevant information, including:

-

puarantees (implicit or explicit) by the U5 Governmend,
the extent to which the fair value has been less than the
amortized cost basis;

adverse conditions specifically related to the security, ils
industry or geographic ares;,

changes in the [mancial condition of the isswer of the
security, o, in the case of an asset-backed debt security,
changes in the Onancal condition of the underlying loan
obligors,

* the payment structure of the debl secunty and the likelihood
of the 1ssuer being able to make payments that increase in
the future.

failure of the 1ssuer of the secunty to make schedubed
interest of principal pavments,

the cumrent rating and any changes to the rating of the
securily by a raling agency

If & credit loss exasts, the Firm measures the credit loss as the
difference between the present value of cash flows expected
to be collected (discounted at the implicit interest rate at
acqusition of the security or discounted a1 the effective vield
for securities that incorporate changes in  prepayment
assumpticns) and the amortized cost basis of the security.
Changes in prepavment assumptions alone are not considered
to result in a credit loss. When estimating the present value of
expected cash flows, information wtilized includes the
remaining pavment terms of the secunty, prepayment speeds,
financial condition of the 1s=zuer, expected defauls and the

value of any underlying collateral.

Presantation of ACL and Prevision for Cradit Losses

Proision for
ACL Cormaii; Losass.
Contra
S SerueTEs LS Crhr rvanun
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Nonacerna! & ACL Charge-offs on AFS Securities

AFS sccunties follow the same nomaccrual and wrie-off
puidance as discussed in “Allowance for Credit Losses™
herein, except as el forth in “Modifications and Nonacensl
Status for Borrowers Impacted by COVID-19" heremn

HTM Securitics

HTM secunties are reported al amortizged cost, net of any
ACL, in the balance sheets. Refer to “Allowance for Credit
Losses” herein for guidance on the ACL determination
Interest income, including amortization of premiums and
aceretion of discounts on HTM securities, 15 meluded in
Initerest income in the neome stalements.

Lavans

The Frm accounts for loans based on the followmg
categories: loans held for investment; loans held for sale; and
loans st Fuir valee

Nonacernal

All loan categories deseribed below  follow the same
monacerual and write-off guidance as discussed m * Allowance
for Credit Losses™ herein.

Loans Held for Investment

Loans held for investment are reported at owtstanding
principal adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan
losses, any unamortized deferred fees or costs for eniginated
loans, and any unamorhized premivms or discounts for
purchased loans.

Interest Iaconre.  Inmterest income on performing loans held
for investment is accrued and recopnized as interest income at
the contractual rate of interest. Purchase price discounts or
premiums, a3 well a2 net delerved loan fees or costs, are
amortized imo interest income over the hfe of the loan to
produce a level rate of return

Lending Commmitments.  The Firm records the liahility and
related  expense for the credn  exposure  related 1o
commitments to fund loans. For more information regarding
lcan commitments, standby letters of credit and financial
guarantees, see Node 15

For more information regarding allowance {or credit losses,
refer to " Allowance for Credit Losses™ herein

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for zale are measured at the lower of cost or fair
value, with valuation changes recorded in Other revenues.
The Firm determines the valuation allowance on an indmvidueal
loan basis, except for residentinl mortgage loans for which the
valuation allowance 15 determined al the lean product level
Any decreases in fair value below the initial carmymg amount

December 2020 Form 10-K
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and any recoveries in fair value up to the mitial camying
amount are recorded 1n Other revenuwes. Increases in bar value
above initial carmying value are not recognized

Trverest income, Interest income on loans held for sale is
accrued and recogmzed based on the contractual rate of
imterest. Loan ongination fees or costs and purchase prce
discounts or premiums are deferred as an adjustment 1o the
loan’s cost basis until the related loan 15 sold and, as such, are
meluded in the penodic determmation of the lower of cost or
fair valie adjustments and the gain or loss recognized at the
tme of sale,

Lending Commitments, Commitments to fund morgage
loans held for sale are dervatives amd are repoarted in Trading
azsets or Trading liabilities in the balance sheets with an
offset 1o Trading revenues in the inceme statements.

For commitments to fund non-mortgage loans, the Firm
records the liability and related expense for the fair value
exposure below cost of such commutments i Other habalities
and accrued expenses in the balance sheets with an offset to
Caher revenues in the income salements,

Because loans and lending commitments held for sale are
recognized at the lower of cost or fair value, the allowance for
loan losses and charge-off policies do not apply to these
hoans.

Loy af Fuir Value

Loans for which the fair value option is elected are carmed o
fair value, with changes in fair value recopnized i earmings.
Loans carried at fair value are not evaluated for purposes of
ecording an  allowanee for loan Josses. For  further
information on leans carmed at far value and classified as
Trading assets and Trading liabilities, sce Noate 5.

Lending Commitments.  The Firm records the Liability and
related expense for the fair valwe exposure related to
commitments to fund loans that will be meanwed at fair
value. The ligbility is recorded in Tradmg liabilities in the
balance sheets, and the expense is recorded in Trading
revenues i the income statements.

Because such loans and lending commuatm ents are reported at
farr value, the allowance for loan losses and charpe-off
pelicies do not apply to these loans,

For further information on beans, see Note 10,
Allowanee Nor Credit Losses

The ACL for fnancml instruments measured al amortized
cost and certam off-balance sheet exposures (e.g., HFI loans
and lending commitments, HTM securitics, customer and
other receivables and certain  guaraniees) represenis an
estimate of expected credit losses over the entire life of the
financial iInstrument.

Diacember 2020 Form H-E
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Factors considered by management when determining the
ACL mclude payment status, far valuwe of collateral and
expected payments of principal and anterest, as well as
imermal or external information relating 1o past events, current
conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts. The
Firm uses three forecasts that include assumptions about
certam macroeconomic vanahles including, but not imited to,
U5, gross domestic product (“GDP™), equity markel indices
and umemployment rates, as well as commercial real estate
and home prce indices, At the conclusion of the Firm's
reasonable and supportable forecast period of 13 quarers,
there is a gradual reversion back to hstoncal averages.

The ACL 13 measured on a collective basis when similar risk
charactenstics exist for muliple nstruments considering all
available information relevant to assessing the collectabality
of cash flows Generally, the Firm applies a probability of
defaultloss given default model for instruments that are
collectively assessed, under which the ACL is calculated as
the product of probability of default, loss given default and
exposire a1 defaull. These parameters afe forecast for each
collective group of assets using a scenario-hased statistical
maodel.

If the mstrument does not share similar nsk chamctenstics
with other instruments, including when 11 1s probable that the
Firm will be unable to collect the full payment of principal
and interest on the instrument when due, the ACL 15 measured
on an individual basis. The Fim generally applies a
discounted cash flow method for mstruments that are
inddiv idually asessad

The Firm may also elect to use an approach that considers the
fair volue of the cellateral when measurng the ACL if the
loan is collateral dependent (Le. repayment of the loan is
expected 1o be provided substantially by the sale or operstion
of the underlying collateral and the borrower is expeniencing
financial difficulty).

Additionally, the Firm can elect 1o wse an approach to
measure the ACL using the fair value of collateral where the
borrower 5 required to, and reasonably expecied o,
contimually adjust and replenish the amownt of coltateral
securing the nstrument 10 reflect changes in the fair value of
such collateral, The Firm has elected 1o use this approach for
certmin  securities-based  loans, margin  loans, Scouritics
purchased wnder agreements W resell and  Securities
borrowed,

Credit quality indicators considerad in developing the ACL
include;

* Corporate loans, Secured lending facilities, Commercial
real estate loans and secunties, and Chher loans: [ntemal
nsk ratings developed by the Credit Rsk Management
Depariment that are refreshed at least annually, and more
frequently as necessary. These ratings penerally cormespond
to external ratings publshed by S&P. The Fom also
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considers transaction strecture, including type of collateral,
collateral terms and posiion of the obligation withm the
eapital structure, In addition, for Commercial real estate,
the Firm considers property type and location, net operating
income and LTV ratics, among other factors, as well as
commercial real estate price and credit spread mdices and
capitalization rales

Reswdential real estate loans: Loan orgmnation Far [sasc
Corporation (“FICO") credit scores as determined by
independent credit agencies in the United States and LTV
ratios

Emplovee loans: Employment status, which mcludes those
currently emploved by the Firm and for which the Firm can
deduct any umpaid amounts due to it through certain
compensation arangements; and those no longer employed
by the Firm where such amangemenis are no longer
applicable.

For Securities-based loans, the Firm generally measures the
ACL based on the far valbue of collateral.

Cumalitative and environmental Factors such = economic and
husiness conditions, the nature and volume of the portfolio,
and lending terms and the volume and severity of past due
loans are also considered in the ACL calculations,

Presantation of ACL and Provision for Cradil Losses

Proveision lor
il ACL Credit Loasss
Insrrmants madsumed Al ANvTara st
(g, HF|Iaens, AT geouriios and Conra assa) CrPf revaria
cusiomar &nd other mosivables)
Compansation
Engloyns lars Corira asas) ars beeabis
B[R
Offbalance skest insiruments {e.g., HF1 Other Enbides
langing comniimerts and cern e Cribar nparias
[ E T ] LT

Troubled Debt Restructurings TR

The Firm may modafye the tlerms of cenmn leans for economic
or legal reasons refated to a borrower's financial difficulties
b granting one of more concessions that the Firm would not
otherwise consider. Such modifications are aceounted for and
reported as a TDR, except for certam modifications related 1o
the Coronavires Disease ("COVID=19") as noted in
“Modifications and MNonacerual Stats  for  Bomowers
Impacted by COVID-19" herein. A loan that has been
modified ina TR 18 generally considered to be impaired and
is evaluated individually,. TORs are also generally classified
a5 nonacerual and may be returned 10 accrual status only after
the Firm espects repavment of the remaining contractual
principal and interest and there 15 sustained repavment
performancs for a reasonable period.

MNenacerual

The Firm places financaal instruments on nonacorual status if
principal o interest i not expected when contractually due or
s past due for a period of %0 days or more unless the
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chligation is well-secured and in the process of collection. For
borrowers mpacted by COVID-19, see “Modifications and
Monaccrual Status for Bomrowers Impacted by COVID-19"
herein for additonal consaderations.

For any wnstrument placed on nonaccrusl status, the Firm
reverses any unpand anterest scorued with an offsetling
reduction 1o [nterest meome. Principal and imerest payvments
recerved on nonaccrual instruments are apphied to prmcipal if
there 15 doubt regarding the ulumate collectabality of
principal. If collection of the principal is not in doubt, interest
income 15 realized on a cash basis. If the instrument 15 brought
current and neither principal or interest collection is in doubt,
instrumients can genemally return 1o acerual status and interest
income can be recognized.

Modificatiens and Nongcorual Status  for  Boerrewers
Trmipacted by COVID-19

In the first quarter af 2020, the Firm elected to apply the
guidance issued by Congress in the Coromavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Secunty Act (“CARES Act™) as well as by the
175, banking agencies stating that certain concessions granted
to borrowers that are cumrent on existing loans, either
indwvidually or as pant of a program for creditworthy
borrowers who are expeniencing short-term  financial or
operational problems as a result of COVID-19, generally
would mot be considered TDEs, Additionally, these loans
generally would mot be  comsidered nonaccrual  unless
collectability concerns  exast  despite  the modification
previded. For loans remaining on accrual status, the Firm
elected 1o continue recognizing interest income during the
madification periods.

ACL Charge-offs

The principal balance of & financial mstrument 15 charged off
in the period it 15 deemed uncollectible resulting mn o
reduction in the ACL and the balance of the financial
instrumient m the balance sheel. Accrued mterest receivable
balances that are scparately recorded from the related
financial nstruments are charged off against Interest income
when the related financial instrument = placed on nonacerual.
Accordingly, the Firm elected not to measure an ACL for
accrued mterest receivables, However, m the case of loans
that are modified as a result of COVID-19 and remain on
accrual status due to the relief noted i “Modifications and
Monaccrual Status for Bomowens Impacted by COVID-157
herein, accrued interest receivable balances are assessed for
any required ACL.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when
the Firm has relmgquished control over the transferred assets.
Any related gain or loss on sale 15 recerded in Net revenues.
Transfers that are not accounted for as sales are treated as
collateralized financings, Securities borrowed or purchased
under agreements o resgll and securities baned or sobd under
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agreements o repurchase are treated as  collateralized Estimated Usaful Lives of Assots
Gnancings (see Note 9). ey Extienaind Usail Lita
£ Budkcings. 0
Securities purchased under agreements 1o resell (Mreverse > niding e
repurchase  agreements™) and  Securities  sold  under Lasahold Improvanseris-—Gther M
agreements 1o repurchase (“repurchase apreements™) are Farmilre and Riirss :
carmied in the balance sheets at the amount of cash paid or Conpuier and & fons squipnset FTrS
received, plus sccrued imterest, except for certain reverse Power gereration assels 15100
repurchase and repurchase agreements for which the Firm has Capiraliead 2ofwine coss Za 0

elected the far value option (see Note 6). Where appropriate,
repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements
with the same counterparty are reported on a net basis.
Securities borrowed and securities loaned are recorded at the
amount of cash collateral advanced or recewved.

In irstances where the Firm is the lender v secursties-for-
securities transactions and s permitied to sell or repledge
these securities, the fair value of the collateral received is
reported in Trading assets, and the related obligation to return
the collateral i reported in Trading liabilities in the balance
sheets, Secunties-for-secunties iransachions where the Firm is
the borrower are not incladed in the balance sheets.

In order to manage credit exposure arising from these
transactions, I approprate crrcumslances, the Firm emters
mto masier netting agreements and collateral agreements with
its counterparties. These agreements provide the Fum with
the right, in the event of a default by the counterpany, tonet a
eounterparty’s rights and obligations under the agreement and
1o lgueidate and set off collateral held by the Frrm against the
el am oul owed by the counterparty.

The Fimi's pohey 15 penerally 1o take possession of secunities
purchased or bommowed in connection with reverse repurchase
agreements and securiies borrowed transactions, respectively,
and fo receive cash andor securities delivered under
repurchase agreements or secunties loaned transactions (with
rights of rehypathecation).

For information related 1o offsetting of certain collaterahzed
transactions, see Mote 9,

Premises, Equipment and Capitalized Software Costs

Premases, equipment and capitalized software cosls consist of
buildings, leasehold improvements, fumiture,  fixteres,
computer and communicalions cquipment, power generalion
aszets amd capialized software (extemnally purchased and
developed for mternal use) Premises, equipment and
capitalized software costs are stated at cost less accumulated
deprecintion and amertization and are included in Other assets
m the balimce sheets Depreciation and amoriimbion are
provided by the straight-line method over the estimated useful
life of the asset,

Discember 2020 Form H-E

Premises, equipment and capiialized software costs are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
sugpest that an asset’s camying value may not be fully
recoverable

Goodwill and Intangible Asseis

The Firm tests goodwill for imparment on an annual basis
and on an interim basis when certain events or circumstances
exast. The Firm tests goodwill for impairment at the reporting
unit level, which 15 generally at the level of or one level below
its busingss segments. For both the annual and mtenim tests,
the Firm has the option to either (i} perform a quantitative
impairment st or (1) first perform a qualitative assessment
to determime whether it 15 more bkely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit 15 less than ils carrving amount, in
whach case the quantitative test would be performed

When performing & quantitative impairment test, the Firm
compares the fair value of a reporting unit with its camying
amount, ncluding goodwill If the fair valee of the reporting
unit &= less than its carmving amount, the goodwill impaiment
loss 15 equal to the ¢xcess of the carmying value over the fair
value, limited 1o the carrving amount of goodwill allocated 1o
that reporting unit

The estimated fair values of the reporting units are denved
based on valuation techmiques the Firm believes muarket
participants would use for each respective reporting unit. The
estimated fmr values are generally determined by utilizing a
discounted cash flow methodolopy or methodologies that
incorporate price-to-book and price-to-earmings multiples of
certain comparahle companies.

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful
lives and are reviewed for impairment on an interim basis
when imparment indicalors are present. Impairment losses
are recorded within Other expenses in the income statements,

Earnings per Commaon Share

Basic EFS 15 computed by dividmg carmings avalable to
Morgan Stanley common sharcholders by the weighted
average number of commaon shares cutstanding for the perisd
Earmings avalable to Morgan Stanley commen sharcholders
represents net income applicable to Morgan Stanley reduced
by prefemmed stock dividends Common shares ouistanding
include common stock and vested BESUs where recipients

a4
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have satisfied the relevant vesting terms. Diluted EPS reflects
the assumed comverston of all dilutive securities.

Share-based awards that pay dividend equivalents subject to
vesting are included in dilwed shares outstanding (1 dilutive)
under the treasury stock method,

The Firm has granted PSUs that vest and comvert to shares of
common stock anly if predetermined performance and market
goals are satished. Since the issuance of the shares is
contingent upon the satisfaction of certain conditions, the
P5Us are included in diluted EPS based on the number of
shares (if any) that would be issuable if the reporting date was
the end of the performance period.

For further information on dibted earnings (loss) per
common share, see Note 1510 the financial sialements.

Deferred Compensalion
Steck-Based Compensation

The Firm measures compensation expense for stock-based
awards a1 fair value, The Firm determines the fair value of
RSUs {including P3Us with non-market  performance
conditions) based on the prant-date fair value of its common
stock, measured as the volume-weighted average price on the
date of grant ("VWAP™), The Fair value of RSUs pot entitled
to dividends until conversion s measured at VWAP reduced
by the present value of dividends expected 1o be paid on the
underlyimg shares prior to scheduled conversion date. PSUs
that contain market-based conditions are valeed wsing a
Marite Carlo valustion model.

Compensation expense 15 recopmzed over the vesting penod
relevant to each separately vesting portion of the award,
Compensation  expense  for  awards with  performance
conditions 15 recognized based on the probable outcome of the
performance condition at each reporting date. Compensation
expense [or awards wih  market-based conditions s
recognized imespective of the probability of the market
condition being achieved and is not reversed if the market
condition 13 not met. The Firm accounts for forfenures as they
OCCAE

Stock-based  awards  generally  comtain  clawback  and
cancellation provisions. Certain awards provide the Fim
diseretion to claw back or cancel all or & portion of the award
under specified circumstances, Compensation expense for
those awards 15 adjusted for changes in the far value of the
Firm's common stock or the relevamt model valuation, as
appropriate, unti] conversion, exercise of expration

Entplayee Stock Trusts

In comnection with certain siock-based compensation plans,
the Firm has established emplovee stock trusts to provide, st
its discretion, common stock voting nghts to certain RSU
holders. Follewing an RSU award, when a stock trust is
utilized. the Firm contributes shares 1o be held in the stock
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trust until the BSUs comvert to commoen shares. The assets of
the employes stock trusts are consobdated with those of the
Firm and are generally accounted for in & manner similar to
treasury stock, where the shares of common stock cutstanding
reported in Common stock ssued to emplovee stock trusts are
affset by an egual amount reported in Emploves stock trusts
in the halance sheets.

The Fum uses the grant-date far value of stock-based
compensation as the basis for recording the movement of the
assets to or from the employee stock trusts. Changes in the
fair vahse are not recognized as the Firm's stock-based
compensation must be setiled by delivery of a fixed number
of shares of the Firm’s common stock.

Deferred Cash-Based Compensation

Compensation expense for deferred cash-hased com pensation
awards 15 caleulated based on the notional value of the award
pranted, adusted for changes i the fair value of the
referenced investments that emplovees select. Compensation
expense 15 recogmzed over the vesting perrod relevant to each
separately  vesting portion of the award,  Compensation
expense for these awards is adjusted based on notional
earmings of the referenced investments until distnbution.

The Firm mvests dircctly, as a pnncipal, in financial
instruments and other invesiments to economically hedge
certain of its obligations under its deferred cash-based
compensation plans. Changes m the value of such investments
are recorded in Trading revenues and [nvestments revenues.
Although changes in compensation expense resulting from
changes in the farr value of the referenced invesiments will
generally be offset by changes in the fair value of investments
made by the Fim, there is typically a tming difference
between the immediate recognition of gains and losses on the
Firm’s investments and the deferred recognition of the related
compensalion expense over the vesting period

Retirement-Eligible Employee Compensation

For year-end stock-based awards and deferred cash-based
compensation awards anticipated to be pranted to retirement-
eligible emplovees under award terms that do not contain a
future service requirement, the Firm accrues the estimated
cost of the awards over the course of the calemdar vear
preceding the grant date, which reflects the period over which
the compensation is camed.

Carried Interest Compensation

The Fum generally recogmizes compensation expense for any
portion ol carmed interest (both realized and unrealized) that
is allocated to emplovees, For information on performance-
based fees mn the form of carried interest, which are drectly
related o camied anterest compensation, see “Revenue
Recognition—Carmied Interest” herein

a3 December 2020 Form [{-k
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Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and habalitses are recorded based upon the
temporary  differences between the financil statement and
income tax bases of assets and liabilties using currently
enacted tax rates in effect for the vear in which the differences
are expected o reverse. The effect of a change in tax rates on
deferred tax assets and habilitics is recognized in income tax
expense (benefit) in the period that mcludes the enactment
date. Such effects are recorded In income lax expense
{benefit) from continuing operations regardless of where
deferred taxes were anginally recorded.

The Firm recogmizes net deferred tax assets to the extent that
it believes these assets are more likely than not 1o be realized.
In making such a determimation, the Firm considers all
available postive and megative evidence, mchading fufure
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected
future taxable income, tax planning strategies and results of
recendl operations. When performing the assessment, the Firm
considers all types of deferred tax assets in combination with
each other, regardless of the ongm of the underlying
temporary difference. 16 a deferred 1y asset is determined 1o
be unrealizable, a valuation allowance = established, 1 the
Firm subsequently determines that it would be able to reahze
deferred tax assets in excess of their net recorded amount, it
would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation
allowance, which would reduce the provision for income
Laxces.

The Firm recogmizes tax expense associated with Glabal
Intangible Low-Taxed Income as it is incurred as part of the
current income taxes to be paid or reflunded for the current
period.

Uncertain 1ax positions are recorded on the basis of a two-step
process, whereby (1) the Fim determines whether 1t 15 more
likely than not that the tax positions will be sustained on the
basis of the technical merits of the positeon and (i} for those
tax positions that meet this threshold, the Firm recognizes the
largest amount of tax benefit that is more likely than not 1o be
realized uvpon ultimate settbement with the related tax
authonity. Interest and penalties related 10 unrecogrized tax
benefits are recognized as a component of the provision for
Income taxes.

Foreign Currencics

Assets and liabilities of cperations with non-ULS. dollar
functional currencies are translated m year-end rawes of
exchange. Gains or losses resuling from translating foreign
currency financial statements, net of hedge gains or losses and
related tax effects, are reflected i AOCT in the balance
sheets. Gains or losses resulting from remeasurement of
forergn currency transsctions are included m net income, and
amounts recognized in the ncome stalement are translated at
the rate of exchange on the respective date of recognition for
each amount.

Diacember 2020 Form H-E
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Morgan Stanley
Accounting Updates Adopted in 2020
Heference Rate Heform

The Firm has adopied the Reference Rate Reform accounting
update. There was no impact to the Fim's financial
statements upon mitial adoption.

Thes sccounting update provides optional accounting relief 1o
entities with comracts, hedge accounting relationships or
other transactions that reference LIBOR or other interest rate
benchmarks for which the referenced mate s expected to be
discontinued or replaced. The Firm s applying the accounting
relief as relevant contract and hedge accounting relationship
mendifications are made duning the course of the reference rate
reform transition pencd. The optional reliel generally allows
for contract modifications solely related to the replacement of
the reference rate 1o be accounted for as a continuation of the
cxisting contract instead of as an extinguishment of the
coentract and would therefore not trigger cerain accounting
impacts that would otherwise be required. Tt also allows
entitics 1o change certan cnitical terms of existing hedgae
aceounting relationships that are affected by reference rate
reform, and these changes would not require de-designating
the hedge scoountmg relstionshap. The optional relief ends
December 31, 2022,

Fimancial Instruments—Credit Losses

The Firm has adopted the Financial Instruments—Credit
Losses.

This aceounting update impacted the imparment meodel for
certain financial assets measured at amortized cost by
reguiring a CECL methodelogy to estimale expected credit
losses over the entire life of the financial asset recorded at
neeption or purchase, CECL replaced the incurred loss model
previously applicable to loans held for mvestment, HTM
securities and other rece vables carned at amortized cost, such
as emplovee loans.

The update also eliminated the concept of other-than-
temporary impairment for AFS securities and instead requires
impmirments on AFS secunities to be recognized in camings
through an allowance when the fair value 15 less than
amortized cost and a credi loss exasis, and through a
permanent reduction of the amortized cost basis when the
securities are expecied w0 be sold before recovery of
amortized cost,

At transiion on January 1, 2020, the adoption of this
accounting standard resulted in an ncrease in the allowance
for credit losses of S131 milhion with a coresponding
reduction in Retained carmings of 5100 millon, net of 1ax
The adoption impact was prmarly atinbutable o a
5124 million increase in the allowance for credit bosses on
employee loans.
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Leases

Upon the adoption of Leases, the Fam began recognizing in
the balance sheet leases with terms exceeding one year as
right-of-use (“ROU™) assets and corresponding labilities, The
adoption resulted in an increase to Retained carnings of
approcamately 563 million, net of o related to deferred
revenue from previously recorded sale-leaseback transactions.
AL transition on January 1, 2019, the adoption also resulted in
it balance sheet gross-up of approxomately 54 billion reflected
in Other assets and Other linhilities and accrued expenses. See
Mote 10 for kease disclosures, ncluding amounts reflected in
the December 31, 2009 balance sheet. Prior period amounts
were not restated.

Az allowed by the guidance, the Firm clected not to reassess
the following at transition: whether existing contracts are or
contain leases; and for exastng lenses, lease classification and
mnitial direct costs. In addition, the Firm continues to account
for existing land easements as service contracts.

Both at transition and for new leases thereafter, ROU gssets
and lease liahilities are initially recognized based on the
present value of the future minimum lease payments over the
lease term, including mon-lease components such as fixed
common area mamntenance costs and other fixed costs such as
real estate 1axes and msurance,

The discount rates used in determinng the present value of
leases are the Firm's mcremental bomowing rates, developed
based upon each lease’s term and currency of payment. The
lease term includes options to extend or terminate the lease
when it 1s reasonably certain that the Firm will exercise that
option, For operating leases. the ROU amets akeo include any
prepaid bease payments and initial dirsect costs incurred and
are reduced by lease meentives. For these leases, lease
expense i recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term if the ROL asset has not been impaired or abandoned

Derivatives and Hedging (ASU 2018-16)

The amendments in this update permit use of the OIS rate
based on the Secured Cwvemight Financing Rate as a U5
benchmark interest rate for hedge accounting purposes. The
Firm adopted this update on a prospective basis for qualifying
new or redesignated hedging reletionships. This update did
et impact the Firm's pre-existing hedges.

3. Acquisitions
Acquisition of E*TRADE

Cm October 2, 20240, the Firm completed the acqusition of
104 of E*TRADE Financial Corporation {“E*TRADE™) in
n stock-for-stock transaction, which increases the scale and
breadth of the Wealth Management business segment. Total
consideration for the transaction was approximately $11.9

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley
billion, which principally consists of the 311 billion fair value

of 233 million commeon shares issued fom Commaon stock
held in treasury, at an exchange ratio of 1.0432 per
E*TRADE common share. In addition, the Firm 1ssued Series
M and Series N preferred shares with a fair value of
approcaimately 0.7 billion i exchange for E*TRADE's
exasting prefered stock.

Upon acquisition, the assels and habilites of E¥*TRADE wers
adjusted to their respective fair values as of the closing date of
the transaction, including the identifiable intangible assets
acquired. In addition, the excess of the purchase price over the
fair value of the net assets acquired has been recorded as
pgoodwill. The fair value estimates used in valuing certain
acquired assets and linbilinies are based, in part, on inputs that
are unobservable, For intangible assets, these melude, but are
meot limited to, forecasted future cash flows, revenue growth
rles, cudomer attribon rates and discount rates,

E*TRADE Purchase Price Allocation

At
October 2,
§n mitions 2020
Assais
Cash and cash squivalents $ 3,807
Trading assets al far valua:

Loans and lending commitriinis 1,424

Inwaatments A4
Irvraalmant sacurilias 48,855
Sacurilies borawed ars
Customes and olher racevailas 12,267
Loans:

Hald for irvestman 462
GMM 4270
Intarpble assels’ 3282
Olhar assets 1,351
Total assals 3 76,437
Liabdlities
Depasits 5 44,580
Sacurities loaned TE6
Cuslamer and alher payablas 15,480
Oithar lishilitas and pocrued Bxpanses 1,688
Borowengs 1865
Total liabilities 5 64,487
1 Acquamd inlangdin assals i of 528 blion mdiied b

anm-mn&;;ﬂmﬂm
E*TRADE's results are mcheded in the Firm's consolidated
results for the persod from October 2, 2020 10 December 31,
220, For this penod Net revemues were approximately
S600 mallion and Met income {loss) was not material

a7 December 2020 Form [{-k
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Morgan Stanley and E'TRADE Proforma Combined Financial
Irfonmaticn (Unaudited)

Sy oy 2020 Eoal ]
Mat reverass 5 50,201 3 44,192
Mal incoma 11450 9,839

The profesma financial information presented in the previous
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Morgan Stanley
& Fair Values

Recurring Foir Value Messurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring
Basis

o GEr ; ™ et Larve | wz Humting'  Toeml
!:mbl‘n: was mmpuu:d by combining the hJslm] financial : AT e tamd Het
information of the Firm and E¥*TRADE along with the effecs Tratiing assatx:
of lh_rc muisuian method of am:_mmting fior bl.ulm LS. Tradeury ad
combinations as though the companies were combined on 'P"“-'!"“‘“_'“'j"‘ FA0M ENRA-E 2 F = SHEMT
Tamwary 1, 2019, The proforma information does not reflect O
the potential benefits of cost and funding syrergies, ohligaians ELHEC TN YL — WA
apportunities to earn additional revenues, or other factors, and Stats and municipal - s [ —. e
therefore does not represent what the actual Net revenues and HARS = iph s — 1%
Met income would have been had the companies actually been Lors and Meirg
combined as of this date, commmiment = 5383 5783 = 1048
cmu” et g 30,003 3435 33,528
4. Cash and Cash Equivalents Garporait squibes® 11878 M2 7 - 1M
: : Crariwative anid o oontrsds-
Cash and cash e-quwnlem;: Eofsist (_'-I' C‘.@h and due from Intarwst rate 4458 227818 1,210 — 13,488
banks and Interest beanng deposits with banks. Cash Crmdit —  apm Tl —  7maq
ecquivalents are highly ligmd mvestments with remainng Fernign axchangn 23 mgIR 280 - 4053
maturities of three months or less from the acquizition date Equiy 1,132 B5543 1,369 —  EBd44
that are readily convertible 1o cash and are not held for trading Commodiy and other 1,818 10408 2723 - S
purpeses. Masing’ (S488) [MO834) {1.381) (62086 (380,229)
Tolal dervative ara
= " othar coracs 1,040 P30S 4992 [EZO0S6) 3T ES0
Bac #H, Db b 31, Iremsmsnts" 24 234 828 - 138
& it e 20 2010 Physical coemadiies — 3,260 ay s 3,780
Cash and dus fom barks 5 8.TH: 3 BE3 Eonl Facing azseis’ 183,406 1TZBAD 15819 [62056) 308,509
Brrperuat Doaming. o wposty: vith bevkcs — I 1040 At hecurmie. -~
Total Cash ard casty soulvmbens 5 105658 5 Bz _'“S__ - e i R e el
FRoaswid csh 3 39,202 § 325102 mm.;mlau-_a
sl —_ 12 - | _ 15

Caszh and cash equivalents also include Restricted cash such
as cash sepregated in compliance with federal or other
regulations, including minmum reserve requirements set by
the Federal Reserve Bank and other central banks, and the
Firm's mitel margin deposited with clearing organizalions

Discember 2020 Form H-E
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A Dacambeer 31, 2020

Morgan Stanley

A1 Decamber 31, 1019

5 & g Lovell  Lewal 2 Leval 3 Mesing' Tetal & in mifions Lowal 1 LavalZ Levedd  Haiting' Total
Liabdlbes 21 falr value Liabilities at falr vakin
Dapoans. 5 = % 3335 § 126 § = § 3,511 Duapeaits 5 = % 190 5 172 % = § 24
Tracing Bk ithes: Trading Rabikties:
ULE, Tresxseay sng LIS, Teaasuny ana
R Gy SRCUT 10,204 1 - - 10,208 AgRrcy MeCuida LER L] 34 — -_—
Oty soversign Crihar sovansign
[rss—— (TS
obligations 24,209 1738 16 - 25863 Etlur.nns .57 1,532 1 - ZAT0
Compomis and othar Corporate ang ofer
ekl - B AR = - BAGH s - F A = — Fd[n]
Componte equtes’ 67822 172 3 —  EBBET Corporate squibe BB o :hu — AT
Diarivative and other conmcis Dwrivatien and oie conirads:
Iribrms] e 4,70 HALAM L] — Mg Intnness rile i 17.0RE 452 —  iTREN
Craciit — T80 652 — B8z Credi - 7,301 E] = rex
Forsige exchangs 14 B4e5e 189 - 34508 Foraign axchange & GrAra b - A
Exuity 1,245 B9y 600 —  EhAI0 Equdty 1200 £0.062 206 — GlEd
Commaoaity end othar 1,788 G418 1044 - 12184 Conmadiy and ooher 1,064 e a2 - B
Hutting' (5,808) (WG] (1.391) {38105 ITEATE) Nesing' (2P (235,07 (9] (425 ) (T35}
Tenad certeathve and Tatal darteatios ard
other Conmecs 218 DAGEE L84 (58,105 44038 nther oorracis RO ORET22 A0 (4253 AN
Tozal racing kabisins 104,550 106,465 &,7TH (58,105 157,631 Total wacing Babdies GETE0  T4OTT 4030  [42531) 133088
mmﬂmw Smm:;hunc#
AGTHETIETS agresEments o
rejruIchace: —_ LTal 444 —_ 1,115 TepLrTnREa — 733 — _ 733
e sacurad finARcngs - 1imE 516 - 11,701 Crhaf sacuned fRancings - 7,00 108 P -]
Bomowiegs — a3z 4amd — T Bommeings — 60413 404 = tadh
Todnl liabilites ut fair Tatsl Hubil#ias an fair
walun B104,850 $199.043 $10,109 S{80,104) $247.660 viilue 5 OE TR0 8146700 £ AALE S(426M) S04 L5
A Dacenbar 31, 2015 MADS—Martgage. s dmsel backad seaetiag
| 1 Fov posions with e sare countsrpaety hal ross ower the levels of tha T woles
Assats wt fuir valus codamin Stisd “Neting * Posions cliasifed within B same leesl ol boe wih e
. s e Smdaiparty b fitac aithin Bt el Fir furthes infermation on decketive
) : Insframanis and hadging acieities, ses Mola 7
U.E, Tremsuary and 2 Fow a dode beaakdown by typs. ses the Sllowing Detad of Loans and Lendieg
WGy SRCUT S 36066 F20502 F3 0§ — 5 65880 Commimests  Fusr 'Yl abia.
T ——— A T wadng puipoies the Ter holds or sals short aquily securtio issund by
i vl i v okt el A ying sacen
obligations 3,402 4y & P 4 Amounhs achxle certain nvesiranis Sl o resueed based on A per sbars,
St dind rericiod which am N0t classfied in the for valun tiararchy. For adSeonal dsclasurs about
sncuritiss — b 1 — 2704 such invesimesis. see Het Ascl Vahem Maasrements hersn
"""'““ \ = 1M R —  EWP petail of Loans and Lending Cemmitrmants at Faie Value'
..Dﬂ = L
it L — B3 5@ — nams a e
Cwih-‘ﬂﬂ“f December 31,  Dacember 31,

: oL L - B5 i miton 2020 otk
Companie squdes’ 123,582 Ba2 ] - 124 E0 [o—— 1 i3 5 20
Drrivalios afd other corraciy Snoured langing fadities B4B o51

ISt e 1,46 18xary 1858 - 1BS4R1 Comernis] real ssiata MHE 2008
Crnalit — G5 854 - Tae Rogssicin tind raal a5ae 2,145 1,192
Foregr sochangs 15 B4 45 —  EAID Saoufitesdhased lBnEng and (her Bars 7436 ¥ DB
Ecuity 120 dBSET  0R — 51068 Tatsl 5 11,148 § 11328
Commaodly and ather 1ME 72N 290 = 11288
N h (2.70d) (EAS GATy  chid) i Bdap (2RF ADA) 1 Leans pravicondy ciiadfed an Sorpiride hiva bisio fodler deiiggregated. prios
'.i."“""-'-' v . E pariod Balances haes besn swsisad o confem with ok pasiod pressntafion
orad carteative ana
ol CorTRsE TR FANED S RS4 (ar oM} E2O04 "
sttt Y 353 A58 — 1504 Unsattled Fair Value of Futures Contracts
Fiysioal commeoaites — 1507 — —_ 1 0¥ AR A
Tesal irnding meses” 1REA76 143037 12781 (47804} 209580 December 31,  Dacember 31,
™ 5 i el 2020 2019
WA TR AL s — Lo - - e=r=— iRl Skt -
A=E a2anr 2901 —_ — B33 Coslonues and o sy ades, ral 3 438 5 365
Sacurties pumhasag
LI AgrRamerts i 2 i 1 Thess cosioects ane gamaily Level 1 adtively Waded vaked brsed on quoted

Todal aasatn ot falr vibue  S12377 S172 462 §12.784 5’4.?.&:4! SaL5.A16

price frory the axthangs and e axchced e e pravious mcoring i vaks
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Valuation Technigues for Assels and Liabilities Measured MABS

at Fair Value on o Recuriing Basis Valuation Techmgues:

+ Mortgage- and asset-backed securitics may be valued
based on price or spread data obtained from cbserved
transactions of  independent external pames such as

Morgan Stanley

LLS, Treasury amd Agency Securities
L5, Treasnry Securilies

Valuation Technique:

+ Fur value s determmed using quoted market prices.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification

* Level I—as mputs are observable and 1n an active market.

LL8, Agency Securilies

Valuation Techniques;

* Non-callable agency-issued debt secunties are generally
valued wsing quoted market prices. and callable agency-
issued debt securities are valued by benchmarking model-
derived prices 1o quoted market prices and trade data for
comparable instruments,

* The far valee of agency morgage pass-through pool
securities is model-driven hased on spreads of comparable
to-be-announced securities,

+ CMOs are generally valued using quoted markel prices
and trade data adjusted by subsequent changes in related
indices for comparable mstruments,

Valuntion Hierarchy Classification

* Level 1—on-the-run agency issued debt securities if
actively traded and mputs are observable

* Level 2—all other agency issued debt secunitics, agency
mortgage pass-through pool secunties and CMOs of
actively traded and mputs are observable

* Level 3—m instances where the trading activity is lmited
or inputs are unobservable

Other Sovereign Government Ohligations

Valuation Techniques:

+ Fair value is determined using quoted prices in active
markets when available. When not available, quoted prices
in less-active markeis are used. In the absence of position-
specific quoted prices, fair value may be determined
through benchmarking from comparable instruments.

Valuation Higrarchy Classification

+ Level I—if actively traded and mputs are observahle

s Level 2—if the market iz less active oF prices afe
dispersed

+ Level 3—in instances where the prices are unobservable

State and Municipal Sccurities

Valuation Techniques:

* Fair walue s determined wusing recently executed
transactions. market price quetations or pricing models
that facter in, where applicable, interest rates, bond or
CDE spreads, adjusted for any basis difference between
cash and derivative mstruments,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level 2—if value based on observable market data for
comparable instrumenls

* Level 3—in imstances where market data are not
observable

Diecember 2020 Form H-E

vendors or brokers

* When posibion-specific external price data are not
observable, the far value determimation may reguire
benchmarking  to  comparable instruments,  and‘or
analvaing expected credit losses, default and recovery
rates, andlor applying discounted cash flow technigues.
When evaluating the comparahle instruments for use in the
valumtion of each secunity, secunty collateral-specific
attributes, including payment pricnty, credit enhancement
levels, type of collsteral, delinguency rates and loss
sevenity, ane considered. [n addition, for RMBS borrowers,
FICO scores and the level of documentation for the loan
are considered

« harket standard cash flow models may be utilized 10
model the specific collateral composition and cash flow
structure of cach trnsaction. Kev inputs to these models
are market spreads, forecasted credit losses, and default
and prepayment rates for each asset category,

* Valuation levels of RMBS and CMBS indices ase used as
an additional data point for benchmarking purposes or 1o
price cutrpght index positions.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

= Level 2—if value based on observable market data for
com parsble instruments

* Level 3—if external prices or sigruficant spread inputs are
unebservable, or if the comparability assessment involves
sigmificant subjectivity  related o property  tvpe
differences, cash flows, performance or other inputs

Loans and Lending Commitments

Valuation Techmgues:

= Fair value of corposate loans is determ ined using recently
executed transactions, market price guotations (where
observable), implied yvields from comparable debt, market
observable CDE spread levels obtaimed from independent
external parties adjusted for any basis difference between
eash and derivative instruments, along with proprietany
valuation models and default recovery analysis where such
transactions and quotalions are unobservable

« Fair value of contingent corporate lending comm itments is
determined by using executed transactions on comparable
loans and the antcipated market price based on pricing
mdications from syndicate banks and customers. The
valuation of loans and lending commitments also takes
into account fee income that is considered an attribute of
the confract.

Fair value of moreage kans 15 determined using

observable prices based on transactional data or third-party

pricing for comparable instruments, when available.

* Where posttion-specific extermal prices are nol observable,
fair value is estimated based on benchmarking to prices
and rates observed in the primary market for similar loan
or bomrower types or based on the present value of
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expected future cash flows using the Firm s best available
estimates of the key assmmptions, ncluding forecasted
credit fosses, prepaviment rates, forward vield curves and
discount rates commensurate with the nsks nvolved ora
methodobogy that utilizes the capital structure and credit
spreads of recent comparable seouritization transactions

 Far value of eguity margin loans s determined by
discountimg Naure mterest cash fows, net of potential
losaes resulting from farge downward price movements of
the underlving margin boan collmeral. The potential losses
are modeled wsing the margin loan mte. which is
cahbrated from market observable CDS spreads, impled
debt yvields or volatility metrics of the loan collateral,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification

* Level 2—if value based on observable market data for
comparable nstrum ents

+ Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread
inpats are unchservable or if the comparability assessment
invalves significant subjectivity

Corporate and (ither Debt
Carporate Bonds

Valuntion Technigues:

+ Fair wvalue i determined uwsing recently  executed
transactions, market price gquotations, bond spreads and
CDS spreads obtained from mdependent extemal parties,
such as vendors and brokers, adjusted for any basis
difference between cash and derivative instruments.

* The spread data used are for the same maturity as the
bond. [f the spread data do not reference the 1ssuer, then
data that reference comparable 1ssuers are used. When
position-specific external price data are not ohservable,
fair value 15 determined based on either benchmarking 10
comparable instruments or cash flow medels with yield
curves, bond or single-name CIS spreads and recovery
rites as significant inputs,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification

* Level 2—if value based cn observable market data for
comparable nstruments

* Level 3—in instances where prices or significant spread
inpaits are unchservable or if the comparability assessment
invaolves significant subjectivity

CIv

Valuation Technigues:

+ The Firm holds cash CDOs that typically reference a
tranche of an underlying synthetic portfolio of single-name
CD5 spremds collateralized by corporate bonds (CLN) or
cash portfolio of ABS/loans (“asset-backed CDOs™)

* Credit correlation, a primary input used to determine the
fair value of CLNz, is usually unobservable and derved
using & benchmarking techmique. Other model inputs such
as credit spreads, ncluding collateral spreads, and mterest
rates, are typically chservable.

= Asset-backed CDOs are valued based on an evaluation of
the marker and model mpat parameters sourced from
comparable instruments as indicated by market activity.
Each asset-backed CDX  postion 15 evaluated
independenily  taking  mio  consideration  available
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comparable  market  levels, underlymg  collateral
performance and pnicing, deal structures and hguasdaty.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level 2—when either comparable market transactions are
observable, or credit correlation input is insignificant

* Level 3—when cither comparable market transactions are
unobservable, or the eredit correlation input = sigrificant

Equity Contracis with Farcing Featres
Vabeation Technigues:

+ Fair value of certsin equity contracts, which are not
classified as OTC derivatives because they do not meet the
net investment critena, 15 determined by discounting
fumare interest cash flows, inclusive of the estimated valuwe
of the embedded apticnality, The valuation uses the same
denvative pricing models and valuation techniques as
deseribed under “OTC Derivative Contracts™ herein

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification

= Level 2—when the contract 15 valeed using observable
inputs or where the unohservable inpul is not deemed
significant

= Level 3—when the contract is valsed wing an
unchservable input that is deemed significant

Corporate Equities

Valuation Techmgues:

= Exchange-traded equaty secunties are generally valued
based on quoted prices from the exchange. To the extent
these secunities are actively traded, valuation adustments
are not applied

* Unlisted equity securities are generally valued based on an
assessment of each secunty, corsidering rounds  of
financing and third-party transactions, discounted cash
flow analyses and market-based information, ncluding
comparable transactions, trading multiples and changes in
market outlook, amang other factors.

» Lasted fund units are generally marked 1o the exchange-
traded price i actively traded, or NAV if not Unlisted
fund units are generally marked to NAV.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

« Level T—actively traded exchange-traded securities and
fund units

« Level 2—if not actively traded, inputs are observable or if
undergoing & recent M&A event or corporate action

= Level 3—if not actively traded, inputs are unobservable,
or if undergoing an aged MEA event or corporate action

Derivative and Other Contracts
Listed Derivatvve Coniracis

Valuation Techmgues:

* Listed denvatives that are actively traded are valued based
an guoted prices from the exchange.

+ Listed derivatives that are not actively traded are valued
using the same techniques as those apphed to OTC
derivatives as noted below.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

* Level 1 —histed denvatives that are sctively traded

= Level 2—when not actively raded

a1 December 20200 Form [{-k
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CC Devivative Confracts * For non-exchange-traded nvestments either held directly

Valuation Technigques:

« OTC denvative contracts nclude forward, swap and
option  contracts  related to interest rates,  forepn
currencies, credit standing of reference entilies, equity
prices or commodity prices,

* Dependirg on the product and the werms of the transaction,
the fair value of OTC dervative products can be modeled
using a series of techmigues, mcluding  closed-form
analytic [ormulas, such as the Black-Scholes option-
pricing model, simulatton models er a combination
thereof. Many pricing models do not entail matenal
subjectivity as the methodologies employved do not
necessitate sipnificant judgment since model inputs may
be observed from actively quoted markets, as s the case
for genenc interest rale swaps, many equiy, commodity
and foreign curmency option contracts, and certain CDS. In
the case of more established derivative products, the
pricing models wsed by the Firm are widely accepted by
the financial services industry.

+ More complex OTC denvative products are tvpically less
liquid and require more judgment in the implementation of
the valuation techrigue since direct trading actwvity or
quates are unchservable, This includes certain types of
interest rate denivatives with both volatility and correlation
exposure,  equily, commodity or  foreign  curmency
derivatives that are either longer-dated or include exposure
to multiple underlymges, and aedit denvatives, meluding
CDS on certam mortgapge- or assel-backed securities and
basket CID8. Where required inputs are unchservable,
relationships 1o ohservable data points, based on historical
andior amplied observations, may be employed as a
technigue to estimate the model mput values. For further
nformation on the valuation  techniques for OTC
derivative products, see Mote 2

Valuation Hierarchy Classification

* Level 2—when valued using ohservable inputs or where
the unohservable input is net deemed significant

= Level 3—if an unobservable input 15 deemed sigmficant

or held within intermally managed funds, farr value after
initial recognition is based on an ssessment of each
underlymg imvestment, comsidenng rounds of financing
and third-party transactions, discounted cash flow analvses
and market-based information, mcluding comparable Firm
transactions, tracing multiples and changes i market
outlook, among other faciors.

Valuation Hierarchy Classification;

+ Level 1—if actwvely traded

« Level 2—when not actively traded and valued based on
rounds of financing or third-party transactions

* Level 3—when not actively traded and rounds of
financing or third-pasty transactions are not available

Physical Commodities

Valuation Techmigues:

+ The Firm trades vanious phvsical commodities, including
natural gas and precious metals

+ Fair wvalue is determined using observable inpus,
including broker quotations and published indices,

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

= Level 2—valued using chservable inputs

Investment Securities—AFS Securities

Valuation Technigues:

* AFS securities are composed of U5 povernment and
agency securities {eg. U5 Treasury secunilies, agency-
msued debt, agency morigage pass-through securities and
Chi0s), CMBS, ABS, state and municipal secuntics, and
coqporate  bonds. For  further information on  the
determimation of fair valee, refer to the corresponding
asselliability Valuation Technique described herein for
thee same instruments

Valwation Hierarchy Classification:

+ For further information on the determnanion of valuation
hierarchy classification, see the comesponding Valuation
Hierarchy Classification described herein.

Deposiis
Vahmtion Technigques:
* The Firm issues FDIC-insured certificates of deposit that

Investments
Valuation Technigues:

+ Investments include direct investments in equity securities,
as well as vanous investment management funds, which
include Investments made in connection with certain
employee deferred compensation plans.

* Exchinge-traded direct equily investments are generally
vahued based on quoted prices from the exchange.

* For direct investments, imtially, the transsction price is
generally considered by the Firm as the exil price and s its
hest estimate of far value.

+ After mnitial recogmition, in determining the fur value of
nep-exchange-traded internally and extemnally managed
funds, the Firm generally considers the NAY of the fund
provided by the fund manager 10 be the best estimate of
fair value, These investments are included in the Fund
Interests table in the "Net Asset Value Measuremends”
section herein

Diecember 2020 Form H-E

pay either fixed coupons or that have repayment terms
lhinked to the performance of debtl or equily secwilies,
ndices or currencies. The Farr value of these certilicates of
deposit 13 determined wsing  valuation models  that
incorporate  observable inpuis referencing  identical or
comparable secunties, including prices o which the
deposits are linked, interest rate yield curves, oplion
volatility and currency rates, equity prices, and the impact
of the Firm's own credit spreads, adjusted for the impact of
the FDIC insurance, which is based on vanilla depost
ISsuanCce rates.

Valeation Hierarchy Classification
* Level 2—when valuation inpuls are observable
* Level 3—in instances where an unobservable mput is

deerted signifieant
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Securities Purchased under Agreements 1o Resell and
Seeurities Sold under Agreements 1o Repurchase
Valuation Technigques:

Fair value = computed wsing a standard cash flow
discountimg methodology.

The imputs to the valuation mclude contractual cash flows
and ¢ollateral funding spreads, which are the meremental
spread over the OIS mte for a specific collateral rate (which
refers to the mate applicable to a specific type of security
pledged as collateral).

Valuation Hierarchy Classification:

Level 2—when the valuation inputs are observahle
Level 3—in instances where an unchservable input is
deemed significant

Other Secured Financings
Valuation Techruques:

Oither secured financings are composed of shon-dated motes
securad by Corporate equities, agreements o repurchase
Physical commodities, the labilities related to sales of
Loans and lending commitments sccounted for as
financings, and contracts which are not classified as OTC
derivatives because they fail net investment criteria. For
further information on the determnation of fair value, refer
to the Valuation Technigues described herein for the
corresponding  instruments  which  are  the  collateral
referenced by the other secured financing liability,

Valuatton Hierarchy Classification:

For further information on the determmation of valuation
hierarchy classiflication, see the WValuation Hierarchy
Classification  desceibed  herein for the  commesponding
mstruments which are the collateral referenced by the other
secured financing liabality,

Borrowings
Valuation Techniques:

The Firm cames certann bommowings st far value thal are
prmarily composed of: instruments whose payments and
redemption values are linked to the performance of a
specific index, a basket of stocks, a specific equity secunity,
a commedity, a credit exposure of basket of credit
exposures; and mstruments with various  interest-rate-
related Features, including step-ups, step-downs and zero
CONPONS,

Fair value is determined using valuation models for the
derivative and debt portions of the instruments. These
models incomorate ohservable inputs referencing identical
or comparable secunies, including prices to which the
instruments are linked, interest mate yield curves, oplion
volatility and currency rates, and commodity or equity
prices.

Independent, external and traded prices are considered, as
well as the impact of the Firm's own credit spreads, which
are based on chserved secondary bormd markel spreads

Valuation Hicrarchy Classification:

Level 2—when valued using observable mputs, or where
the unobservable input is not deemed sigraficant

Level 3—in instances where an unchservable input 1s
deemed siruficant
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Morgan Stanley
Rollforwand of Lavel 3 Assels and Liabilities Measured at Fair
Value on a Recurring Basis
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§ ¥ g HE0 2018 2018 £ et 2020 2e 2013
Corporate squiths Fiet darivatives: Equity
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2 Inchides davivislied CONUACES with raltiple rishs o, Iybiid products)

The previous tables provide imformation on the valuation
techmiques, sigmificant unobservable inputs, and the mnpes
and averages for each major category of assets and labilities
measured at fair value on a recurring and nonrecurring hasis
with a significant Level 3 balance. The level of agpregation
and breadth of products cause the range of inputs to be wide
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and not evenly distibuted across the inventory of financial
instruments. Further, the range of unchservable mputs may
differ across firms in the financinl services industry because
of diversity in the types of products meluded m each firm's
inventory, Generally, there are no predictable relatonships
between multiple significant unobservable inputs attributable
1o & given valumtion technigue.

Cither than as follows, dunng 2020, there were no sigmficant
revistons made to the desenptions of the Firm's smznificant
unohservahle inputs, For margin loans, the margin loan rate is
the annualized rate that reflects the possibility of losses as a
result of mevements in the price of the underlying margin
loan collateral. The mate is calibrated from the previoushy
disclesed discount rate, credit spread and'or vollny
memsUres.

An increase  (decrease) to the following  skznificant
unobservable mputs would generally result in a higher (fower)
fair value.

+ Comparable bond or lean price: A pricing input used when
prices for the identical instrument are mot avalable.
Significant subjectivity may be involved when far value is
determined using pricing data availsble for comparable
instruments. Valuation using comparable instruments can
be done by calculating an mphed yield (or spread over a
liquid benchmark) from the price of a comparable bond or
loan, then adjusting that yield (or spread) to derive a value
fior the bond or loan, The adjustment to yvield (or spread)
should aceount for relevam differences in the boads or
loans such as maturity or credit quality. Altematively, a
price-to-price  basis can  be assumed between the
comparable instrument and the bond or lean being valued in
order to establish the value of the bond or loan

+ Compavable equity price; A price denved from equity
raises, share buybacks and external bid levels, eic. A
discount or premium may be included in the fair value
ashimate.

Contimgency probabifity: Probability associted with the
realization of an underlving event upon which the value of
an asset iz contingent

EBITOA mniltiple / Exit muudtiple: The mtio of Enterprise
Value to EBITDA, where Enterprise Value is the aggregate
value of equity and debl minus cash and cash equivalents.
The EBITDA multiple reflects the value of the company in
terms of iis full-vear EBITDA, whereas the exit muluple
reflects the value of the company n terms of its full-vear
expected  EBITDA at ot Either multiple  aliows
companisen  between companies  from  an operational
perspective as the effect of capital strecture, taxation and
depreciafion/'amartization 15 excluded.

Recavery rate: Amount expressed as a percentage of par
that 15 expected 10 be received when a credit event oocurs
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An increase  (decrease) to the following  =ignificant

uncbservable mputs would generally result ina lower (lugher)
fair value,

Cash-synthetic basisy The measure of the price differential
between cash financial instruments and therr synthetic
denvative-based equivalents. The mnge disclosed in the
previous table sgnifies the number of points by which the
synthetic bond equivalent price 15 higher than the quoted
price of the underlying cash bornds

+ Funding spread: The cost of borrowing defined as the
incremental spread over the OIS rate for a specific
collateral mte {which refers to the rate applicable 1o a
specific type of secuirty pledged as colleral)

Margtn loan rate; The annualized rate that reflects the
possibility of losses as a result of movements in the price of
the underlying margin loan collateral. The rate 18 calibrated
from the discount rate, credit spreads andior volatility

MEeasures.

WACC: WACC represenis the theoretical rate of retumn
required to debt and equity mvestors. The WACC is used in
a disecunted cash flow model that caleulates the value of
the eguity. The model assumes that the cash flow
assumptions, including projections, are fully reflected in the
current equity value, while the debt to equity matio is held
constant.

An  increase  (decrease) to the  following  =ignificant
unobservable imputs would generally result inan impact to the
fair value, but the magnitwde and direction of the mpact
would depend on whether the Firm 15 long or shori the

SXPOSUre.

+ Correlation: A pricing input where the payofT 15 driven by
mare than one underlying risk. Comrelation is & measure of
the relationship between the movement of two vanables
(fe., how the change in one varable influences a change in
the ather variahle).

Creclt spread: The credit spresd reflects the additioral net
vield an investor can earn from a security with more credit
risk relative 1o one with less credit fisk. The credit spread of
a particular security is often quoted in refation to the yield
on @ credit nsk-free benchmark security or reference rate,
tvpically eather 1.5, Treasury or LIBOR.

-

Interest rate curve: The term structure of inlerest rates
(relationship  between interest rates and the time to
maturity) and a market's measure of future interest rates at
the time of chservation. An interest rete curve is used 1o set
interest rate and foreign exchange derivative cash flows and
i5 a pricing input used in the discounting of any OTC
derivative cash flow

-

Folatility: The mensure of vanability @ possible returms for
an tnatrument given how much that mstrament changes in
value over time. Velatiliy 15 a pricing mput for options

EDINETOOOO
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and, generally, the lower the volatility, the less nsky the
option. The level of volatilty used i the valuston of a
particular option depends on a number of factors, including
the nature of the nsk underlying that option, the tenor and
the strike price of the option.

+ Folatility skew: The measure of the difference in imphied
volatility for options with identical underliers and expiry
dates but with different strikes.

Net Asset YValue Measurcments

Fund Intarasts
At Docambar 39, 2020 A% Dwcarnibar 11, 2000
Ca i
£ o ‘J:yu:g Coarminean| ﬂ'ﬂ Coamimitnen|
Private squity 3 2367 § B 5 2078 § A5
Fisal mstatm 1,400 138 1,346 160
Hecge® ) = u :
Tatsl 5 3,55 § TBD % as2i 5 L]

Amounts in the previous table represent the Firm's carrying
value of general and himited parnership interests in fund
invesiments, as well as any related performance-based fees in
the form of carried interest The camying amounts are
measured based on the NAY of the fumnd taking imo account
the distbution terms applicable to the nterest held This
same measurement applies whether the fund investments are
sccounted for under the equity method or fair value.

FPrivate Equitv. Funds that pursue multple strateges,
including leveraged buyouts, venture capital, infrastructure
growth capital, disressed investments and mezzamne capital.
In addmen, the funds mav be structured with a focus on
specific geographic regions.

Real Estate,  Funds that mvest in real estate assets such as
commercial office buildings, retm] properes, multi-famaly
residential properties. developments or hotels. In addition, the
funds may be structured with a focus on specific gecgraphic
TERKINS.

Investments m prvale equity and real estate funds generally
are not redeemable due 1o the closed-end nature of these
funds, Instead, distributions from each fund will be received
as the underlying investments of the funds are disposed and
manetized

Hedge, Funds that pursie vanous mvestment strategies,
including long-short equity, fixed income/credit, event-driven
and multi-strategy

See Mote 15 for information regarding gencral partner
guarantees, which include potential obligations o retum
performance fee distributions previously received. See MNote
23 for information regarding carmed interest at nsk of
reversil

107 December 2020 Form [{-k
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Honredesmable Funds by Contractual Maturity Gaing (Losses) from Fair Value Remoeasurements’
Carrying Walun at D bar 31, T020
— L -] Farl ] 200%
§in iy Private Eouizy Rnal Estate ':'F' = . .
Las than 5 yeurs H 1480 3 e Loars 3 ey 1 % 158}
510 yoars i e ntargibins i
::::mm T -ill:; P Lk Cither arssnts—Other irvastments’ 156) (55} (85}
ik Crtr maanls—Praminas, scui[ert
and softedrs’ [45) 22 (48}
Monrecurring Fair Value Measurements Crhar assas—ROU swas’ 15 = =
Totel % “q % § (178]
Carrying and Fair Values Lizbilitles
Cihar mﬂ-ﬂlr\-dlﬁﬂ\r‘d LRSI
A1 Docember 31, DD —L AN COMmE s ;] 5 & ar s (4}
& iy g Ll 2 Lol 3" Toca Tatal 5 [5 § & 5 {43}
Apsaty
1 Gains and losses for Loans and Dther dssets—Dfher irmshments wn cdlassiied in
Loang $ 66 & Eat S.700 oty raveivumes Fow other e, aim and leaes ane secarded in Othis (eveie
Ot assats—Orihar imvasimns - 1% 16 ¥ ths e i Dk Tow e offirwin, i sin ancorded in Other aepenme
(riber assets-—RCA aneais 39 — » 1 Monmecurving changes m the falr value of kodns and landing cormitmants. wane
calkuiated as ‘clioes. 1o the hekd for awestreend category, based on the vale of
Total § _TEET 3 A4S0 3 STW e underying colateral. and foe e held forsale Catagory, bassd on recently
Liabiihies izt ITaNSMCETE, Ml price guItMiors, wiksicn mdet Mol coiperae
Otbar ligkd em— Tmmmmwnrwﬂhmwﬂhwm
Sansas—l arcing commimanis & 181 § TZ & 25 spotict leresls fcjusind cermini %0 bt
of defmiltl pectly analyss whens sach inansactions and
Toaal 5 133 % 72 5 6L ARSI (A (e ikl
am-mmmm—mmm"cwm
Af Dwcembar 31, 215 that | cash fSow podel, emthodologes Bol
‘“: 0z L P Toral ) :mwmmﬂmmmnmmmm
Assats 4 Lessas ralaingd %0 Ol ascets—Fremises, sqepmant and sobvane Jenamly
inchide ipaimants an well an wiit-aF oelabed 82 thiy gl of canin smast
o ) L L 5 Losaik ibitnd b Offve rsiirii—FIOU abain el Wygaries eelind 12 e
Oriber assats-—{ther imestments — 135 13 dacortinesd ms of ceriain lsassd popariss
Todal S 1543 § 15613 § 3,156
Liabiinias Financial Instruments Mot Measured at Fair Value
Cribeer habskias and acon:ag
sapensas—! wnding conmitmoents § 132 s o At Ducember 31, 2020
Toasl 5 132 % 5 01 X Fsir Vil
1. For sgnificank Lessl 3 balances. s ko “Sgnificant Unobsenvable nputs Used in Ly ] LMi L*“" bl
Facusring and Horrecasring Laval 3 Fak Valus Messeamenis® saction hasin e Fimanetial ridola
dwinds of the signficen onobservabls inputs usad Yor noeoscuring Tar value Gashand cash squivalents. § 205854 §108,654 § - - §105654
T— it anc—
HTM ™I MEH 4281 W00 7440
Shcuwiies puethanad
i agpweiai i
ircsal 8.9 — MBE  2ATA eI
St [adafiranid Fidie4 — i —  Tiaa
Customies s oty
incetabies Bz.907 —  BOEIE 3541 AT
Lo 150,297 —  16EIE 1AENT 1512
Cthar nssats 488 - 435 - 485
Finanial habaditias
Dinposis £ MTHT ¥ — EXNTH0T % — S307807
Gesurities sekd nde
-qa..-:mql " 49472 = 4amMs 195 4810
Senukities lcansd TN - b r | - 71
Cihesr sacared fnancings A AB2 e A18F - 4962
Cumlgmes and pftar
Pyt 224931 - XA - 224851
Bommwings 141378 - 18004 5 150828
Ciat it i
- . L
Landing commiments’ 5 125498 § — § T § 393 § 1104
Deecensber 2020 Form B-K L1
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it Dcrribar 30, 2018

Fals Vi

CW Lol | Lewmll Loveld Tl

¥ & iy
Finmncaal assots
Caah nnd cash oquivalents. 5 BT SH21T1 5 = § = § B2
eeaairant Lecundies
T 43507 30 EEN 12683 THY L8130
St purchised
LN apreaments ko
reell L ¥ - BT 1z BH TN
Tty Bdrisriecd 106, 543 —  HEE — 1655
Customar and cher
iy sk S0 — 4B QETZ  OKT
Lo’ 13GR3T — 2233 1C8.058 13035
R s &B5 - 485 - LS
Fansncial labilitios
Daposits 5 18T % - S1BEEG § - 5158 638
Sacuriian sold undar
g

ShuabT L] L ]
Securis koo B.506 —_ &S00 - B.508
e smcured financings EBER - EBOD @2 GEE
Cumbomar and ciher
Feiyblas 195,035 — RS 0A5 — 19503
Boameings 18, 16 — 133863 1 133,573

Tl
Aot

tmﬂm’ 5 'I'ID.!KU- i - i ?il i JBE 5 mm

1 Actrued interedl and Svidens) el paalbles haww bedn sxcckeied
Cmmwmwmfhmmmm

2. Aamiounits. ievchuda loans messarnd o T valis onoa RoBcETeg basis.

3 Rapiksants Léndag corestewmnts soccuningd fof s Held for eeeimenl s Held

For Sala. Fow  fusrths os) o7k O WendBing COrWTH sl Blotw 15

The previous tables exclude eertain financial instruments such
a5 equity method investments and all non-fimancial assets and
lbilities such as the value of the long-term relationships with
the Firm s deposit customers.

6. Fair Value Option

The Firm has elected the fair value option for certain eligible
instruments that are risk managed on a fair value basis 1o
mitigate income statement volatility caused by measurement
basis differences between the elected instruments and their
nssociated risk management trarsactions of o eliminate
complexaties of applymg certain accounting meshe s

Borrowings Measurad at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis
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Gains (losses) from changes n fair value are recorded in
Trading revenues and are mamly atinbutable to movements in
the reference price or index, interest rates or foreign exchange
rates.

Gains |Logses) Due to Changes in Instrument-Spocific Cradit
Risk

Tracing
% i Ml Rerveniis 0
]
Loars ard ofhar deb!’ 5 (118] § -
Larding connuliebsss o 1] —
Duprassiie - (e
Blomrmings (Fi 4] 11.,340)
o ]
Lnars ard ohar debt’ -4 e i 4 -
Larding connilnses &} =
Duaprsine - 30y
Blormowings 111} {21407
i1 ]
Loars ard ofher deb’ 5 15 5 -
Landing coninmitnisrs 3 -
Drapariiis, - o
Bofemwings (24} 1662
Otar 32} a2

An ]

F 1 o e 31, 2020 D ieer 3. 2010
Curvadatea pos-tax DWVA gain (loss)
Tecigrarad In ALCH (2257) 5 13,963}

1 Loans and othed Sstl idinames? Specitc oned® gins (oasas] i Selaimanad by
eethuding e Non-redi componants of g and losses

Difference batwoen Contractual Pringipal and Fair Value'

At Al
F i [n? 3, 2020 Dwcenber 31, X115
Loars ard ohaer gebt ] !4,0&-_5 13037
Monsocruad loans” 11,551 10,845
Berrraings’ 3,773 (1.565]

1A ' | ipal greatar than Gr {less Than Sl sk
mmmnﬂmmmﬂ.ﬂ‘ummmm
and oifer debt anlales In disiressad debd posiions purchassed ol amoints. well
Ealerw pi.

3 Exchotin bertwings whetin o cegoryrsnnd 1 thiy witial principad Rrecuit et
Based on changes in A rvsrence prica of indas

The previcus tables exclude non-recowrse debt  from

At AL consolidated VIEs, habilities refated to transfers of financial
:*"ﬂ'“" — mm‘:‘:"‘"" M. 200 ODscambardt. M8 gocets  tremted  as  collateralized financimgs, pledged
v o commaodities and other liahilities that have specified assets
Enity % "4 5 0214 atiribiitable to them
intmrest rates 3,222 27208 ’
Commicdities 5,078 4501 .
F
Cracht T REY Y air Value Loans on Noenaccrual Status
Enrsigr mchargs 2,105 1.311:_? AL A
Teaal 3 ,hm 5 [TPTL 5 i iy Decasbar 31, 2020 Decambaer 11, 2019
Merpsorusl loans ] 1407 & L[]
Met Revenues from Barrowings under the Fair Value Option "ﬁ:’,"’;‘:?‘"’m Pa e . o5 ki
& ey i H0E0 2010 2018
Tracing e § (5135 5 (6932 § 2670
Interesl sxpansn 341 ars a2
Mot reveniung & (sdTH) § (7007 8§ Lasm
1 Amcunts 30 il mBect any gains o Kesis. i rebated sconaric Redges.
[y December 2020 Form 10-K
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7.  Derivative Hedging
Activities

Instruments  and

The Firm trades and makes markets globally in listed futures,
OTC  swaps, forwards. oplions and other denvatives
referencing, among other things, interest rates, equities,
currencies, investment prade and non-investment grade
corporate  credits, loans, honds, 1.5 and other sovereign
securities, emerging market bonds and loans, credit indices,
ABRS mdices, property indices, mongage-related and other
ABS, and real estate loan products. The Firm uses these
mstruments for market-making, foreign cumrency  exposure
management, and assetTiability management,

The Firm manages is markel-making positions by emploving
w variety of risk mitigation strategics. These strategies include
dwversification of risk exposures and hedging. Hedging
activities consist of the purchase o sale of positions in related
securities and financial instruments. including a vanety of
denvative products (eg., [utures, forwards, swaps and
options). The Firm manages the market risk associated with
its market-making sctivities on a Fimwide basis, on a
worldwide rading division level and on an individual preduct
hasis,

Diecember 2020 Form H-E
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Falr Values of Daerivative Contracts
At December 31, 2020
Assets
Biatoral Clsared Exchange-
§ i mi aTe aTe Trasieg Tiral
Dhealy ™ g g
] G § i % - ]
5 2 - T
o 4 L3
24,255 10,343 300 233538
B34 3108 — Tkl
8133 1,630 T 4082
34,278 - MAGE B4l
11008 - 3554 14840
IE4.045  14,1B0  3B00D 497,224

SM05AB0 314184 § 38090 $418.170

{2T6.582) (11,801) (35260 (323543
A el —  EATen

Total in Trading assets % 34791 3 7B 5 2838 § 3850

Amourits not offset’

Firancisl insinments oollaismal (13318} - — MM
Crhar cash colateral a1 - - {281
Ml amaunts $ 20883 § mB 5 2830 § M40
o Tor e pace o ey ot be egaly aarcnatie - 8 3743
]

Bdatorel  Cleared Eschange-
$in miions aTc aTc Traced Toal
Demigrsted an accounting hadges
ntaoes? min 3 — % 1% == ¥ 10
Fermigh xtange 8 1 - 380
T Fol 1a = 40
Mot designated as accounting hadges
Inignes] mie 290018 7,865 638 HBE18
Cradit 5793 1,850 — &152
Foraign axchanpe 92575 1,500 43 58
Eouity 45,543 - Ioa0n BEA20
Conmngity ard athar 253 -_ X %55 42,180
o ITRST 1232 4DEZ6 420,007
Totsl gross dervatives SI6THE 312442 §  ADG26 S420418
Amounts offset
Corisparty ralting (276.682) (11,601) (35,2600 (32,549

Cash colistem| natting (51912} {823 — (81935
Totalin Tradiog Bablies  § 3554 § 18 3 5266 § 4493
Amounts nat aMsat’

Firarcial nstuments wllaieml (10,558 _ (1,520 (12,118
Criher cash colateral 2k LEH) — (5]
o .

S 20354 8 15 8 3sdn § 32788

Mt amaunis for witich naiter natling or collalenl agreenierts.
e ] i placs of may nod be legally sr'oroanble § &748

110
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Al December 31, 2019 Motionals of Derivative Contracts
Assas At December 31, 2020
Cleared Exchange-
oOTC Tratea Toml Anarln
- orc. oTC. Trde  Tou
5 =3 -5 & e E— i
1 e H - as - -
Inisred! s 5 B3 1215 — % 129
1 — 715 Foraon anchnie 2 pE = 2
Total 2 an - 1M
nlams! re 170450 2890 510 184808 ‘Mot dasignated as @ hedges o
et 4808 2417 — ran Intermst min IEAT G048 400 91202
Forsign inchargs B2 EhT 1308 ] AR Crmdi 140 88 s 228
Einey Zrea - Th4T s10E8 Frrsign mechangs 1046 103 10 3,158
Commadity and odhes %08 = s 1LEsE Euiy 444 — 36T 11
ol o M BESh s DiEd Eeramacity and aher Aoy = L 178
Todal gross derlvatives $IB450 § B5B6 5 2540 SIIREW L T TN BB 13478
Arvoiats oFEat Totsl gross derivativas 3 7582 3 TG0 § 54 § 15,708
Cauniarpary nesing (ZINTION (F204)  G2A037) (245.041) Lisk{Briny
Cash colaiersl nesing 4R (1278 - (4248Ty Bdateral Claared Exchange-
Teaal In Tracing asssts & o % ar s 103 § oo 5 o DTy T (4 [+ [#] 1= T Todal
D-lmmn- lmﬂulﬂillﬂ LE3
Amauris net offae’
n Intaresl i 3 — % @805 — 5 BO
Financial mstrumenss collateral {18 806} - - B, Forsian sk 11 3 o 14
e o= = " R 1 om = 54
Hat brcyiis 3 Moe s 67 5 L3 3 15 -ﬁmvlwumnﬁg hadges B N
Mol anvwrts for which masier ra colatesn| agreemants -
arwnot in place or rnl-pmr'o'.b. IIJ::11:'|:|'|:\Q.|.I:Iln . 1500 e 4000 &Md LU L
Cradit 143 98 - 241
Liabdms - Forsign sxchange 14ED 102 11 3293
Biaiwal Claares Excrange- " =
&% N OTC oTc Tracad Teral Bty e 4:: !::_ 1‘::
Designated as sccounting hedges - —
g i &3 " ol TR0 748 1481 16188
il % V8 =¥ =3 L Tatsl gross derivatives § 701 37408 § 1,481 § 16280
Fomgr aicharge 121 ] — 150 —
Tozal 122 a5 — 160
KMot deslgmutid b8 Bessinting hadgaa
Inimrast ratn 188,567 3867 43 1T2630
Crait 4758 323 — 782
Enmigr amchargs Ba0ds 1402 W OArate
Ecuity A5 = 2 ra B2 AR
Camamatity and o o - 1,591 : X-r )
Toal 2ITata A aE11e  JIEM
Total gross derlvatives Sarraan § adeh § S5 310850
Amaurils ofast
Countarpary nefing (RIBTI0) (IS4 (2403T) [245.044)
SEWh coAm g (36367 2y — I35.280y
Tedal in Trmding lisbdiies 21 F 1205 082 3 204
Amaouris not olfsst’
Fingrcial ingrumants coligheral (7147 - (B}
Siker cash oollaieml {14 — = 114]
Ket ameuris 5 10467 § 1M § o8 % 0,088
Ml ancarts foe which maier Berng of colaen] agheemens
arwnol in place of My rol b wnicedable A
1. Aty islate B Fasher nalling agrasmnts. snd collitersl agremensts that hiv
Endn detsrriinad by the Fam i ke egally snfcaabis in the soaid o dalad b
whess cerisin ofher cribiris ans not el in accordsncs with applicabls offsafiing
agoonting guadince.
See Note 5 for information related to the unsettled Cair value
of fuures contracts not designated as accounting hedges,
which are excluded from the previous tables.
11 December 2020 Form 10-K
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At December 31, 2009 Fair Value Hedges—Hedged Hems
A Al
Decembar 31, December 31,
Biateral Claared Exchangs- Fomboem 20 ELE
£in bahons: oTC O Traced Tt Irvpsiment sacuritlss—AFS
— e Foprey 5
g @ heedgy Amorired cos! s cumenily oF praiously
lrimrast rale 5 14 5 54 5 - % e heagea 5 16,288 5 :1F
Eomagn anchargs z — == 2 Basés adusrnents rchuded in anonized conl’ § 38 § 1
e — ” = == ——
:md-ldgmdn aocounting hedges mmr'-mnmh' o sty s ; s —
irrhyibicte oy O o L Bass agjusimants incucad n camyl
et 1348 [] - 215 amﬂ* i g 25 {7}
Forsigr anchargs 2REF o1 [} F¥ Morrowings
Egney aze - g i Carrying amaur? curmrdy of praviously
Sommadity and ot e i 1] 18 "m'ﬁ } : ; 3 114,48 5 102458
Tl 1561 7sse taz 16480 e s e s mmss  sm
Tofal gross derlvatives § THIT 5 TESR § 1222 5 16451 Basis sk Frckutud In ZAT0D
L ln'lqu.l::—'l'mlnluc hq.#_u. 8 [:l'_}_‘;t 5 =
Biateral Clsamed Exchanges 1 Haigh oS ciunting hasis sdustrents s pricirily mlsted D cutstanding Racdges
5 dy ey OTG oTo Traces Teovia
Daslgnated s tng hedg Derivatives with Credit Rsk-Related Contingencies
brieias! e -1 -— % - % i |
Fit wnharge & A - 1 Net Derivative Liabilities and Collateral Postad
Toml a ] — 6 o °
Mot designsted as accounting hedgas Decambar 3, Decembar 31,
Interast rate 4185 6858 66 117 ECL o L L
Mt crivacive Babdiies with orecit risk-
?:':' mchargs z;:{: :: " zﬁ reatea coningent eanres 5 wmdn % g
- L Collatiral
Ecuy TR s a7 it et e i
Commodity ana ot A - 1] Hadid . . 5
Tocal TTI8 P41 1255 160018 The previcus table presents the aggregate fair value of certain
Tonal gross derlvatives $ 7722 57414 § 1385 § 16008 dervative contracts that contain credit risk-related contmgent

The Firm belwves that the notional amounts of denvalve
contracts  generally  overstate its  exposure.  In most
circum stances. notional amounts are used only as a reférence
peint from which to caleulate amounts owed betwean the
parties to the contract Furthermore, potional amounts do not
reflect the benefit of kegally enforceable netling arrangenients
of pisk mitigating transactions,

Galns (Losses) on Accounting Hadges

5 &1 s 2020 2018 2018
Falr valiun hedg A lzed lin | I

Inisneal e conmracls 3 TR (0§ )
Invesimand Seruries—ASE {33y 0] 4

Falr valus had ges—Recognized in Interest axpenss
Iiilaia! fre Safrass § ABTE 5 4212 § (1520

Dmposics’ {100y T =
Borrowrgs (4582 (4208 1,611
Kt invaatmaent hedges—Forsign sxchangs contracts

Rsoognired in OC1 5 {366} 5 4§ 295
Forwans poirs seclused fom hedge

s*activenass lesting=Ruscogriesd in

Irfaras! noome 16 136 Rl
1 Thi Fuirt bighi diiphiling aibidil (8 fwds i G vl i ¢ Coin
Crpsiis in the foth guader &f 2013

Diecember 2020 Form H-E

features that are 0 a net lisbality position for which the Firm
has posted collateral m the normal course of business.,

Incremental  Collateral and Termination Paymenis upon

Potential Fulure Ratings Downgrade
At
December 31,
& meons 200
Ora-ratch downgrads & Bl
Teo-nolch cowrgmde 134

Biataral dowrgrads agresments induded i the smounis
above” o 352

1. Amcund g - = bty on Firrn el offusr Parles wheen Uon
e dovninds of one party, the downgrded pty st Sebor colatenal 1o e
i ity These bt dewngrode derangenients sow used by ®a Tem
ranags tha sk of countenpaty downgeades

The additional collateral or terminstion payments that may be
called in the event of a future credit rating downgrade vary by
contract and can be based on ratings by either oc both of
Moody"s Investars Service, Inc. and 3&P Global Ratings. The
previous table shows the future potential collateral amounts
and termanation payments that could be called of required by
counterparties or exchange and clearing organizations in the
event of one-notch or two-notch downgrade scenarios based
on the relevant contractual downgrade triggers
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Maximum Potemtial PayoutMotional of Credit Protection Protection Purchased with CDS
Homsral
Yoars o Muturity ot December 31, 250 At ]
i ssicnns 1 1 365 Overs  Tooml - Decambaryl, Dutabacal
Sy 00 ‘Eingle rame s s
v Grace $ 9% 19% 2% 95 69 B ot Bk P o
Mon-irvesmen! grade L4 10 " 2 kL] Tranched ihdax snd baskel " 15
Total 5 6% 2% 4% 15 108 Total T 3 246 3 iaﬁ_
Inciex and basket COS
Imvesimacd gace 5 2% 53 W3 1435 60 Fair Valus Axsat [Liabdny)
Nondrvesment grade_ 6 9 B 14w Dacombar 31, Decsniber 31
Toal $ B3 145 683 25 1A S s 020 019
Todal CIOS sald 8§ 24 % 4% 4TS 2§ A3 Singhe nama ] 01450 § (Faay
e s s SO T e IO~ OO okl e D Ll (1.1
Todnl crecit protectionsold  § 24 & 43 & 497 3 30 § 333 Tranched inoax and basks! 1328 bl
CDS protecion sokl with Kerticsl proteciion purchased 5 196 Tatal 3 (1838 § [EELE

& iy DRy <1 1= -5  Owert  Total
Single-nama CDS

Brvedimen] Grade 5 ®Bs TE 1S 85 B
Man-drwmsiment grade £ L] 1153 ] as
Toeal § /% S 49 % 105 110
Inchex snd basket CDS

Invesimand grace g 45 TS5 46 % 11 % 68
Mondmrmsiment grade T 4 b W kL
Tezal § s 11§ 6335 295 108
Todal COE sold § 96 F W 5§ 112 % 31 § 26
Crber coesti conirasts - - - - -
Towlcrecitprotectionsold  § 3 5 37 § 112 8 31 5 216
COS protecion sold with kKectical protection purchassd 5 187

Fair Value Asset (Liability} of Credit Protestion Sold’

A a

December 11, Decsmber 31,
& ¥ g 20 201%
Singhe-name COS
Irvaaimand grce H 1.2% § b.0&!
Hon4rmsiment grade (&2} | BHE)
Tezal § 4,208 % BAT
Inchex and basket COS
Irvestmer gride 5 843 3% b0
Mondremsiment grade [E24) (R
Toal % % 3 b186
Total COS sold 5 1227 & b, 7ea
b crwi conracts W
Tofal crecit probection sold 5 1,223 § 1,686

1 imwEalmant geadainon veatmant piade delamanaton @ Bassd on e ntsonal
enci paing of the refwience chiigation niemal coedl rngs senve os the Credt
Risk Mansgament Depatrsants asshssrnl of ol sk and the Basis B A
coriprahermies crecll bmits Sarewirk eeed B conbol credit sk, Tha Firry pmes
quastative modshs and fudgeent 1o asmste e vk ik pacimetars related 15
aach obigor
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The Firm enters into credit denivatives, principally CDS,
under which it receives or provides protection against the risk
of default on & set of debt oblipations issued by a specified
reference entity or entities, A majonty of the Firm's
counterparties for these derivatives are banks, broker-dealers,
and insurance and other financial instiutions:

The farr value amounts as shown in the previous tables are
prior o cash eollateral or counterparty netiing

The purchase of credit protection does not represent the sole
manner in which the Firm risk manages its exposure to credit
derwvatives. The Fum manages its exposure fo these
derivative contracts through a varkety of risk mitigation
strategies, which nclude managing the credit and comrelation
risk acress simglé-name, non-tranched indices and baskets,
tranched indices and baskets, and cash positions. Aggregate
market sk hmets have been established for credit dervatives,
and marketl risk measures are routinely monitored against
these himits. The Firm may also recover amounts on the
underlving reference obligation delivered to the Fim under
C5 where credit protection was sobd.

Single-Name CDE. A CDS protects the buyer against the
loss of principal on a bond or loan in case of a default by the
issuer. The protection buver pays a penosdic  premmum
(generally quanerly) over the life of the contract and is
protected for the period. The Firm, in tum, performs under a
CDS of a credit event as defined wnder the contract occurs.
Typical credit events include bankruptcy, dissolution or
msolvency of the referenced entity, fwlure to pay and
restructuring of the obligations of the referenced entity.

Index: and Basket CDX Index and hasket CDS are products
where credit protection is provided on a portfolio of single-
name CDS. Generally, in the event of a default on one of the
underlving names, the Firm pays a pro rata porton of the 1otal
notional amount of the CDS,

The Firm also enters into tranched index and basket CDIS
where credit protection is provided on a particular portion of
the porifolie loss distribution. The most junior ranches cover
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mitial defaults, and once losses exceed the notional of the At Dwceniber 31 2015
tranche, they are passed on Lo the next most semor tranche 1n L Gmas l'Gm-B.d e
the HFM] SLnecture, £ 0 mifions Lokl Gains Loians '-'I!u-
Gmer:?re:#r(:'mrm ] Ifh-: Firm has m':=s_tagi in CLNs and LS. gammant and agancy sacurities:
C[J'.r_h,_w‘hw.h m:.hylmd -I.I'Etl'l.lil'ntl?ls contaming embedded WS, Traasury socurlties  § 32455 § 234 5 11 §a3257A
denvatives, in which credit protectson has been sold to the LLE, agency sacurites” 20,728 248 100 20874
tssuer of the note. If there is a credit event of a reference Tatwl L&, govemment and
entity underlying the instrument, the principal balance of the m:ru"::' v AlR0 Az iR
note may nol be repasd o full 1o the Firm. Agoricy CHES = . = coan
Corporata bonds 1801 ir 1 1007
8. Investment Securities s i i
LA 481 = - 503
AFS and HTM Securities FFELP sudent ko ABE" 1580 i T
“Tatal coeporae ang other
At Decambar 31, 2020 _ debl 8,762 o &6 a.rr
Garcess Gmss Tatal AFS sacurties 1562 b 2 m2am
At Unrealires LWnisakres  Fak e Pl ik i
Sinmaons Cosl' . Gums  Loswes  Vawe  HTM sscurities
AFS securites WLE. govemmant and agency sscurites:
WLE, govemmmesnt and agency seourfies: UL, Treasury securities 20,145 &E3 &2 0B
US Treasury seoaiies  § 45345 5 1,010 § — § 48,335 UL, mgansy sacurities” 12 580 151 5T 12583
GRroy Mecurbes’ Tatal WS, goveirmen
?:fu; e L] L 38 i Iumwmrﬁu e 42,734 18 109 43344
AGRroy ROl B2 734 1772 25 BAAB1 Carporais nd odher debi
CAporATS AP aer S Hon-apency CHEBS Téa = 1 [
Agancy CMBS 19,502 455 9 204 Totnl HTM securities 43502 i 100 dd. 133
Copodata bords " Taotal investrment
Fata .: e b L2 Apcuritios & 105454 § 'Iim 5 407 S806.356
sacurites 1481 183 i 1888 g )
EEEUP siuder! loan ABSY 1,735 T 8 1,8 g l.l:’-: rehey H.ﬂ e Hﬁ"‘r o Ay Wk AL BNy OGRS
=2 = = = = 3 m&? mm‘:: mmmnuam
7 an & A
m""w_'fff""" s - 3 as o Eshacation, of il beast B5% of tha sndl inkamst o
—:%i::umm M i B In the first guarter of 2000, the Firm tramsferred certain
ta, Cadis : municipal securiies from Trading assets into AFS securities
ALE: Traseviay sneuriion 20,348 1,883 — e a5 it result of & change in antent due to the severe deteriomtion
U5, aguccy secuties’ 15,951 04 8 amedr in liquidity for these mstruments. These securities had a fair
Tooal U5 government and valug of 5441 million a1 the end of the first quarter of 2020
Bpericy Secu s £5,207 2,597 4  Tazs
Couperate and aher debi:
Agancy CAES 25A2 i 2 253
Hor-agency CMBS a2 58 = 960G
Tofal Comomis and other
il 3474 2 2 1,5M
Total HTH sacurities T TER 10 4430
Total Imeestmant
sacurities 3 'ITEH L] w 3 T1 5184808
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Investment Securities in an Unrealized Loss Position

At Decombar 31, At December 31,
260 FiE
Groas Gross
Falr Urramirad Fair Lrraali s
& ¥ g Vaks Lossss. Vi Loaiss
WS, goyermn! and agency Secusties:
WS, Trmasury securiies
Less thar 12 monthe 5 5t 5 - % 4793 % 28
12 maorihs o lorger - — 7 504 a3
Toad 154 -— 12807 11
Less thar 12 months 5,808 22 2541 20
12 manihs or lorged 1,168 3 TEOT 5]
Tensd 6,976 25 10338 100
Total LS. government and agency seinieg:
Lass hani2 montks 8,058 H TG4 dd
12 months or korger 1,188 3 15801 183
Total L 28 I3Ans 211
Couporate and ohar debi:
Agency CMEG
Leas thand2 manths 2,778 9 2204 28
__'I__Z_nmr!!nrlmnlr 45 = &y N
L 2829 » 2k &7
Compomis hionds
Leaz thari2 months = g2 104 1
12 manths or largar H - 44 =
Tenad k2 - 23 1
" Ban and muscipal secutitieg
Laas thar 12 months s e —_ i
12 months of lorger LT L] = =
Todal 122 1 = —
FFELP siucer bban ABS
Less han i months —_ - a1 —_
12 morthe or looger _\om 35 Lies 2
Towmt 1,077 2 1256 h
Total Corporate and other dett:
Lass thani2 months 2,865 a 25D 7
12 manta or keger 1,190 an 1 A50 &
Toeeal 4,085 4 4kG
“Toasl AFS sscurities bn on unresllzed leas pasition
Lass than12 months BA24 11 Ll 5
12 months or lerger 2,358 an 1r 401 -]
Tocal i 11,182 § 61 § 27504 § =7

For AFS secunities, the Firm believes there are no securities in
an unrealized loss posibon that have credit losses after
performing the analysis described in Note 2. Additionally, the
Firm does not intend to sell the seeurities and is not hkely 1o
be required to sell the securities prior to recovery of the
amortized cost basis. Furthermore, the securities have not
experienced  credit losses as  they are  predominantly
myvestment grade amd the Firm expects to recover the
amortized cost basis.

As of December 31, 2020, the HTM securities nel camying
amount reflects an ACL of 326 million related to Non-agency
CMBS. See Note 2 for a deseription of the ACL methodalogy
used begmning in 2020 following the Firm's adoption of
CECL and prior period credit loss considerations, There were
o HTM secunties n an unrealized loss posihon as of
December 31, 2019 that were other-than-temporarily
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impaired. As of December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019,
Non-Agency CMBS HTM securities were predominantly on
acerunl status and investmert grade,

See Note 16 for addinonal information on securities issued by
ViEs, including U5 agency morigage-backed secunbies, non-
apency CMBS, FFELP student loan ABS and other ABS.
Investmant Securities by Contractual Maturity

At Dacamber 31, 2020

Amoriizes Eair ’:-mﬁ”
Son melipns Conat ahie ‘ﬂ.;?.
AFS secueitien
u:nﬂhww & EpRncy
LLS, Traasury seouriiss:
Do witdtie 1 pear § 14m3 3 14008 1.1 %
Aftar 1 year through & years 25,630 26 A0 14 %
Aftar & yesms throwgh 10 yeans 4002 8,088 1.2 %
Tetal 45,345 46,355
LLS, agercy securibe:
D widien 1 yaar B ] 14 %
Aftar 1 yaar through & years 173 ATT 18 %
Aftwr & yoars through W years 1,247 1,283 1.7 %
After 10 yoars 35,063 36,660 15%
Tital 37,389 38,128
Tal LIS, goweirmnen anc agency
LTS 62,734 84,481 14 %
Corparata and ol saht
Agmnoy CMBE;
D vetdir 1 yar 05 ] 1.2%
Aftor 1 year through b years 1,385 1,400 1.0 %
Altar & ywans thioagh 10 yeans 14123 14,544 14 %
Aftar 10 yamrs 4,379 4,398 13%
Toal 19902 20438
Comora bonds: ' '
O widir 1 yar 206 M 24 %
After 1 yeer through & years 1,183 1,224 8%
After & years throagh 10 ymars 204 H2 8%
Altar 10 years i1 1 1.7 %
Tetal 1,694 1,738
Siain sna mardapal secundes:
Crum wittir 1 year 3 3 18%
Aftwr 1 year through & years i % 1.7 %
Aftar & yoars thromgh 1) years ar " 4%
Aler 10 yess 1,343 1,440 27 %
7 —— dam i
FFELP suucent loan ABS: - -
After 1 year through & years :1+] a6 0l %
After & yoars theeagh 1 yeas 239 24 LL R
After 10 yoms 1,408 1,402 12%
Tatal 1,735 1,718
Crvar ABE:;
s wthir 1 ysar 3 - 0%
Aftar 1 yasr through B years L] 448 o4 %
Total 445 A4y
Toal sorparat and ot debt 25321 28,002 1.5 %
Tolnl AFS sssuntiag 108,055 110,383 14 %

December 2020 Form 10-K

359/424



Table of Contents
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Mt Decambar 31, Hichh
Arrusizes
Amoriean Emr Agaragn
& iy g Cosl” WVaks Yisld
HTH securities
LS, goyemmen! and agency securites
LS, Trsdsury Sacurbes:
Doun within 1 pear § 146 8% AN 23 %
Al 1 year dhrough 5 pears 17302 18111 1.5 %
Afyer B years through 10 years TE6 EESS LI%
Al 10 ywars 14082 120 5%
Tl 39,146 M.zx
7 er—— — —
Al & yaar rrough 10 yean o4 [ ) L%
Al 10 yoars 38347 35,024 1.5 %
Total 86 13GdT
Tetad ULE, grvesmmand snd agency
saciities a5.287 TG 1.8 %
Compadale &hd oter Sebl
Agency GBS
Dun within 1 year 21 21 24 %
Al 1 yaar thiough b yaars 1218 1,218 14 %
Aftes b yoars through 10 years 1164 167 13 %
Afwr 10 yoars m F4 il 1.8 %
Total 2432 LEM 3%
Hon-ggancy CMBS:
Chun withie 1 yaar 153 153 45 %
A 1 yaar thiough 5 yean .1 kL] 12 %
Afer & yaars through 10 years L3l ] 6T 38 %
Al 10 ymars 1 41 44 %
Totsl 42 W00 33 %
Tl corporale and nther debl 3474 A5M 20 %
TomEHTMmcLosY, JTLETE A 1h%

Todal Irvastmont securities

§ 173826 5 184803 18 %

1 Amcurits are nst of sy ACL

Gross Realized Gains (Losses) on Sales of AFS Securities

& iy e i 2010 2018

Gross reakrad gains 5 168 § 113 § LI
Grosa makred (e} i) 11 )
Toal 3 13 s 135 A

1 Rusizad gains and lessas e iecognized in Diher teverms in B nCsme
nlabamiariy

9. Collateralized Transactions

The Firm enters into secunties purchased under agreements to
resell, secunties sold under sgreements 1o repurchase,
securities borrowed and securities loaned transactions to,
among other things, acquire secunties 1o cover shorl positions
and seitle other secunities obligations, W accommodate
customers” needs and to finance its inventory positions,

The Firm monitors the fair value of the underlving secunitses
as compared with the related recevable or pavable, including
acerwed mterest, and, as necessary, requests  addmienal
collateral, as provided under the applicable agreement to
ensure such transactions are adequately collateralized, or the
return of excess collateral
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The nsk related 10 & dechine m the market value of collateral
pledged or recaved 15 managed by settmg appropriate market-
based margin requirements, Increases i collateral margin
calls on secured Ninancing due 1o market value declines may
be mitigated by meresses n collateral margm calls on
securities purchased under agreements 1o resell and securities
borrowed trunsactions  wih  similar  quality  collateral.
Addinonally, the Firm may request lower quality collateral
pledged be replaced with higher quality collateral through
collateral substitution rights in the underlving agreements,

The Firm actively manages s secured (mancings in a manmer
that reduces the poiential refinancing risk of secured
financings of less liguid assets and also considers the quality
of collateral when nepotiating collmeral eligibility with
counterpartics. The Fum  utilizes shorter term  secured
financing for highly liguid assets and has established longer
tenor limits Tor less liquid assets, for which funding may be at
risk in the event of o market disruption,

Cffsatting of Cartain Collataralized Transactions
LA Dl 3 e AR

Balenze
Groos Amconis Sheal Net  Amounts M

& i e Mmounts A s Mot Ofset’ Ancunts

Aanets
Saourities
punchasag urser
LA i
racnll $204,140 5(147,906) § 116,234 §[194,108) § 2,178
Sacurites

borowsd 124,321
Lighilitles

Sadufilied skl

unoer

QNN (0

w §198,493 §(147,906) 5 S50.587 § (43.960) § 6,627

Gecurities lnarsd LB (1zsM0) TTm (7430} Bl
Mot amaunts for which master natting agresments are not in place or mmy
nat b legally erfomceable

Z530) 112304 [107438) 4957

Sacurites pechansd uno ar agReans 10 regal & 180
Sacurites bommowed 696
Seourites sold under agresmsnts i repurchase 8,233
Securites loansd 128

1o
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Al Decanber 31, 2019

Balance

Gross  Amours  ShestHat  Anouris Mac
§ i ity Amcunis DMl Amourts  Hot Ofeel’  Amounls
hpsaty
Laourtias
prrchiiad uidar
ACTRMTETS i
L] SZ4TS4E 50150321} 5 BAIM § (BEI00} S D024
Hecnrims
berrnias 100528 (2000 10650 (I01AS0F 4600
Liabdiiles
Secyrities wold
[P
AT ARTTRR 1D
rapirchass SEI3510 501503000 § 4300 § (245400 5 DAS1
Secmwsioaned 11407 (o61)  Ases (@2 162

et amourits For which master ratiing agresmants. ars not In place of may
ot ba legally anforcanbis

Securtios purchasad Lnder agresments bo resel 5. 2266
Saacuritias, Bomowes 11810
Securitins sold under agrmemsnts to repunchase 8,033
e rities lognmd AL

1 Amcits relste B master neting sgresmants that bave been detemined by the
Fuim 12 ba Birgyally dstfrcanlis it a0 daliall Dl il clitaen olhisd Colaiin
i el vl i . Wi gk it ] Pl

For information retated to offsetting of derivatives, see Mote
T

Gross  Secured Financing Balances by Remaining
Contractual Maturity

At Decsmber 31, 2020
Ovmimight  Less han  30-(H Croae

&y Az arcdiOpen 30Dy  Dags B0Des Toual
Sacurting 50k Lndmr

AT ARTELS [0

repUnchacs § 84,343 3 60,853 SIEIM F2T.070 3198480
it AT w1 = AmT 26
Tosal incluces ir the

ofsating cisdotud 99616 § 61,100 S26ZM S38IT S2IA TS
Tracing Rkl Eiese—

CobBgarion 10 Falum

HROUTtEL race

s collateral 16,155 —_ —_ —_ 16, 153
Todal 5116005 § 61,100 SI622 534,817 $235143

A7 Dmcamber 31, 2049
Cromirighs  Laas han Mt Ower

& iy ety ardOpen 300ays Days S0Days  Toml
Securtimn soky urdar

ASTRBITEICS 0

repuchass S BFAsE § M A0G SHEODd 3A000AF XRS50
Sacuriims bared 2.a78 3,288 &8 5,307 11487
Tozal inchases in tha

ofaating disclosure 5 BOAML % BARSA S2rd2f S4348 306006
Tracing Eabadicis—

Obligadion o mam

SAOUT s recsud 45

Eoliaennl Ll = s = BB
Todal § G041 § BA6AS BEr4I0 S43404 5 D4R
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Gross Secured Financing Balances by Class of Collateral
Pladged

At AL

Dacambar 31, Deaambar 31,
# i mi 2030 =016
Sacurities sold under ag fits Lo Fepurch
WS, Treasuny ard agpency secur tex 3 4,687 5 B8 BO5
Siate ard runicijul scyuriies 505 aih
Crihiar sowvanesgr poasrnmse] obl gatians 1,140 [ A
ARS 1,230 2218
Corpocas and ndiar dabl 8,287 6,068
Corparas aquites 4,802 25563
Crher ar? b8
Tenal 3 158403 § 13510
Seourites loaned
Crhar sovansgr governman; obligalions 5 2430 5 A026
Carpanae squiis 16,538 8422
Cihar 205
Tatal 3 abatt § 11 BT

“Tatal inchuded in he ofsating cledosre % B, 754 §
Trading liabilthes—Obligation to return securitles recabeed as collatersl

Corpars squliis 3 16,388 § TIBTD
Crhar 24 4
Tatal 5 46,389 5 23877
Total 3 I35,143 § 248 BRI

Carrying Valus of Assels Loansd or Pledged without
Courtarparly Right to Sell or Repledge

At Al
Decambar 31, December 31,
§ 1 milins Fira] 2019
Trading aiials 3 30,984 5 41,21
Loars. be‘ore ACL - TS
Tatal ] 30,954 & 41 841

The Firm pledges certmin of its wrading assets and loans to
collateralize securities sold under agreements to repurchase,
securities loaned, other secured fnancings and derivatives and
to cover customer short sales. Counterparties may or may not
have the reght to sell or repledge the collateral

Pledged financial instruments that can be sold or repledged by
the secured party are identified as Trading assets (pledged 1o
variong parties) in the balance sheets,

Fair Valua of Collateral Receivad with Right to Sell or
Repledge

Ar Ar
Dacambar 31, Dacembar 31,
L L ... R 00 2019
Coollatsral racsivad with gl i sl
or repindge 5 T4 818 § B9 280
Collataral that wins sohd o replecges’ &23,648 b

1 Dzt 28 ichals Satuiites e B el Sl dejultions for B Fim's US
ok dalary

The Fum receives collateral in the form of securites in
conmection with secunities purchased under agreements to
resell,  securities  bomowed,  secunlies-for-securitics
transactions, dervalive transactions, customer margm loans
and securities-based lending. In many cases, the Firm is
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permitted to sell or repledge this collateral to secure securities
sold under agreements to repurchase, lo enfer into securities
lending and  denivative tramsactions of [or delivery 1o
counterparties 1o cover short positions

Securities Segregated for Regulsery Purposes

Ar A1
December 31, Decber 31,
iy s 2020 2099
Sigriomed sieviiie® 3. ie.F  anon

1. Secwities dagregsted undar faderal ragulationn G the Fari's U S broker Saialem
are soarced from Seowies purchassd onder agresmants o resell and Tiading
Ak it Ealanes shists

Concantration Basad on the Firm's Total Assals

At A1
Dezaambser 31, - Dascamber 31,
2020 2049
[15-9 wrmment and agency securitios
nm':'m.r r gevernment

Teasirg assis’ 10 % 10 %
Ot halanca shewt—Colataral recelred® % 2%
1. ey I Trackng dssets. prmanilly corvsisl

of obgations of th LUK, Japan and Bracl of Decemibes 31, 2000, mnd obigations
e i LLK  Jipan sl Aciidalin o Decarber 31, 3060

B Coliternd imeeevnd i prisaily el 12 Setunites purshass unde agiiseumit 5
resell el Gataities boniesd

The Firm 15 subpect to concentration nisk by holding large
positions in certain types of secunties, loans or commitments
o parchase secunties of a single ssuer, ncluding saverepn
governments and other entities, issuers located in a particular
country or geographic arca, public and private issuers
invelving developing countries or issuers engaged moa
particular indusany,

Pasitions taken and underwnting and financing commitments,
including those made in connection with the Firm's private
equity, principal investment and lending activities, often
invelve substantial amounts and significant exposure o
individual 1ssuers and businesses, meheding investment grade
and non-investment grade issuers

Customar Margin and Other Lending

AR Ai
Dwecaambaer 31,  Doosmbar 31,
£ by e ) 2{!20_ 2‘?!9
Mwgin ard oier lBncing £l TE T4 § A

The Firm provides margin lending armangements that allow
customers to borrow against the valee of quahfying securities.
Recevables under margin lending arrangements are included
within Customer and other receivables in the balance sheets.
Under these agreements and iransaciions, the Firm receives
collateral, which mcludes U5 povemment and agency
securities, other soversign government obligations, corporate
and other debt, and corporate equities. Margin loans are
collateralized by customer-owned securities held by the Firm.
The Firm monitors required margin levels and esiablished
credit terms daily and, pursuant to such guidelines, requires
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customers to deposit additional collateral, or reduce positions,
when necessary.

Margin loans are extended on a demand basis and generally
are not committed [acilinies, Factors considered in the review
of margin loans are the amount of the loan, the miended
purpose, the degree of leverage being employed in the
gecount and the amount of collateral, as well as an overall
evaluation of the portfolio to ensure proper diversification or,
in the case of concentrated positions, approprate bouidity of
the underlying collateral or potential hedging strategies to
reduce msk. Underlymg collateral for margin loans s
reviewed with respect to the lhquidity of the proposed
collateral positions, valuation of secuntics, historic trading
range, volatldy analysis and an evaluwtion of industry
concenirations, For these transsctions, adherence w the
Frm's collateral policies significantly lmits itz credt
exposure in the event of a customer default, The Firm may
request additional margin collateral from  customers, if
appropriate, and, if necessary, may sell securities that have
ot been paid for or purchase securities 2old but not delivered
from customers.

Also included in the amounts in the previous tzble i3 noa-
purpose securities-based lending on non-bank entities in the
Wealth Management business segment.

Other Secured Financings

Other secured hOnancings melude the lmbihines related 10
transfers of financial assets that are accounted for as
financings rather than sales, consolidated VIEs where the
Firm 15 deemed to be the primary beneliciary, and certain
ELNs and other secured bomowings These linbilities are
penerally payvable [rom the cash flows of the related assets,
which are accoumted for as Trading assets (see Notes 14 and
16}

1. Loans, Lending Commitments and Related
Allowance for Credit Losses

The Fim's held-for-investment and  held-for-sale  loan
portfalios consist of the followmg tvpes of Joans:

+ Covporate. Corposate includes revalving hines of credit,
term loans and bridge loans made to corporate entities for a
variety of purposes

Secured lendhing  faciliies,  Secured  lending  facilities
include loans provided to clients, which are collateralized
by vanous assels, including residential and commercial real
eslate morigage loans, corporate loans and cther assets.
Residential Real Estate. Hesidential real cstate loans
mainly include non-conforming loans and HELOC,
Commercial Real Estate, Commercial real estale loans
include owner-oecupied loans and income-producing loans.
Securities-based lendmg and Other.  Secunbies-based
lending includes loans which allow clients to borrow
money agamnst the value of qualifying securities for amy
suitable purpose other than purchasing, trading, or carrying
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securities or refinancing margin debt. The majority of these For Commercial real estate loans, the credit evaluation is
loans are structured as revolving lnes of credit. Other focused on propedy and transachion metrics, ncluding
primarily includes cenain loans origmated in the talored property type, LTV mtio, cccupancy levels, debt service ratio,
lending business within the Wealth Management business prevailing capatalization rates and market dynamics.

segment.
For Remdential real estale and Secunties-based loans, the

Loans by Typa' il credit evaluation typically mcludes, but s not limnted
to, review of the obligor's income, net worth, liguidity,
AtDecember M.2020______ oflateral LTV ratio and credit bureau information

$ iy sy rmlmmﬁ LD;E-:-“ Totsl Loans Subsequent credit monitoring for residential real estate loans
[re—— 5 TS 5580 § 14678 is performed at the portfolio level, Securities-hased loan
Saured lnding Tealiies =7 31,7296 29,023 collateral values are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Eommercal real ssiaie FETT 22 0,968
Foasidnriinl el asinin 25,368 a8 5,118 For information related to credit quality indicators considered
Securtias-basad landing in developing the ACL, see Note 2
ard Orkr loars &, 2%7 BT 64,299
Teadl kans, bafons AGL 128,619 12,843 18,402 Loans Held for Investmant before Allowance by Origination
AL (B35} {535 Yaar
Todal loans, nat 5 137 TR & 12,843 § 180,857 M Decambar 31, 2020
s rate loars, nat * ulm cﬂ'P:I’Ill
P gt s T i, LhL £ il Irvesimart Grade  MonJdryvesinect Grads Total
L 30 oAl 5 B eers, ot 21,081 e s~ s ey
AL Desaeniar 31, 2010 020 585 B0 EBES
g T B pie 22 = .
Comonats 1 B A3 & EAGZ S 1B ::: 1f ; 1::
Saxirnd lhdirg Tacliies 24 50 o, 200 i
Commarcial rasl sstats 7,850 2,045 5088 ::: :: 1u_u ;;:
Frasalerial read aiiate bR b ] 157 =i P PYroR P FTv)
Secirima-banas lerding
LB A Lo ML At Decembar 31, 2020
chmadinct i L ST 13908 Becured lending faciies
Alkrearce for cradil lsses (et} - {5
Toloanmnet 3 tmow 5 2o 5 _iesy oo imsamangede NevbosnecGeds T
- 1L £ —— Revohing 8 4711 % WA 58 e
Fixad rate loars, nat 5 2T
2020 162 253 415
Finating o sciustable rae ey, na 10 521 ib s A 2184
Losns o non-UL5. bomowers. nel 21817 HEE #4 1433 2066
1. Lomw preseously classifed as copoide have baen futher Ssaggregaied, price b1 b 245 &A1 B26
ruticad b Durm vt ranerond 1 Smmnore wih Corrmin P d grivacticn T o = i
See Mote 5 for further information regarding Loans and Priot = Lol Lt
lending commitments held at fair value See Mote 15 for Fatul L] Saad & L
details of cusrent commitments 1o lend in the future At Docembar 34, 2020
“Commarial mmal astate
Credit Cuality fommom  bvesimar: Grade  Mondrvestmact Grate Total
030 3 35 % T 1,038
CRM evaluates new obligors before credit transactions are T 1674 4840 2322
inttially approved and at least annually thereafier for 18 TiE T8 1,520
and commercial real estate boans. For Corporate, 7 P e 750
Secured lending facilities and Cither loans, credit evaluations 206 e P 694
typacally volve the evaluation of financial statements, Prior i 373 ara
asscasment of leverage, liquidity, capital strength, asset el 3 R 431D 8 748
composition and quality, market capitalization and access 1o —
capital markets, cash flow projections and debt service
requirements, and the adequacy of collateral, if applicable.
CEM ako evaluates strategy, market position, ndustry
dynamics, obligor’s management and other factors that could
alfect an obligor’s risk profile.
119 December 2020 Form 10-K
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At Decsmbsr 31, 2070 Troubled Debt Restructusings
- ) _ﬂ.llsidﬂ!‘.i:llml_n‘:l_‘.l a At Ar
o o e 3, o
ﬂdl:‘! '::}-m & ‘:;I;TVR:;“I Ta £ oy F0 2018
Sy e - Loars. bafors AGL s 187 3 02
Favohing 8 B8 % 32 % 8 & 23 — & i e s o 5
02 S48 1824 143 0338 833 10,521 Allowance for koar lossss. ard lending
2018 5,582 1266 188 6,588 241 7025 _ Cotmitinen s Ll 18
2018 2320 EO4 5 2756 Lk .00
2017 2724 o 8 3.251 243 3,500 Troubled debt restructunings typically melude modifications
018 3,324 84 118 4,008 284 1388 of interest rates, collateral requirements, other loan covenants
Price s485 1,628 784 5,684 e 5,375 and payment extensions. See Nede 2 for further information
Tl $37455 5 G005 S 83 § 12770 § 0498 § 15768 on TDR guidance issued by Congress in the CARES Act as
well as by the 1.5, banking agencies.
At Dacembar 31, 3620
! Cthar’ Allowance for Credit Losses Rollforward—Loans
Basad v Bl
E T larcing’ -f'g"“ ; wﬁnutml Todal Saoired SBL
------------------------- - ez Resigential  and
Reavoling §  S1667 § 4818 § 558 % T.00% & e Comorats  ‘acldes CRE  realestats Ciber Tolal
2020 - 1,073 L] 1,663 Do;'cu:gab-n o,
5 116 % 101 5 76 % 5 WS M0
2010 18 1,158 2y 1707 Efctaf
a01a EEFS ART 403 1,042 aoopiion IH]) [T} 34 il ) ]
Hnr - B84 122 Th Gmss charge-
2016 = 568 m &7 o {29y - o] os
Pre 18 1088 1 tze e L= = -+ 3
Toal § 81811 % 8,738 % 2861 5 64237 "ﬁ';,.,p..m}
1 Wﬁm --‘:rﬂ B coll P s, bed i Lo = i o ¥ e
Db 51, i fih o e
Inormation on e ACL rethodology relivied In secarties. basad loans, ses Mols 2 {releass) 26 136 a7 1 (13 sse
2 O bsid ity inchude camaen ko Dfignatad o ihe balonsd bnding borsiness Crthar & 3 1) i iF 18
e 1
Past Dus of Loans Hald for ot 5 30 § 1908 § H1 & 59 § B8 3 B35
Allowanca Sacures SBL
lemdirg Remsidential  and
At Decsmber 31, 2020 o miona Compores fackdes  CRE  mmalestate  Cihar  Towml
- T Drcansbess 3,
S minn Curant Pt Due Toual 20108 5 6285 605 BT S 0 %5 2@ % 3
Copomts ] E4E § — 3 6,048 Gmas charge-
Securny bahoing Maclijen 727 - 8727 offs - - - 2 - (]
i cual e Peovision
e L pE (retnase) 50 4z 8 r 4 120
L 34,906 132 35,763 Ot o 1
Secitias-batad lacdirg ane T—— L] = = — I
o e i Ltd 2040 L 115 § 101 § 75 8 5 1§ D
Tozal 3 imose s 363 3 138,610
1 Thamajesity o i st arm Pt S o8 paiad of Biss Sun 60 diys m F— ﬂ
5 in mifun Comporge ‘sclides  CRE  real enite  Oiber  Tolal
Nonacerual Loans Held for Investmant bafore Allowance [e——
5 i 20T g 6 5 415 ms 24 £ 35 2
Girnas dharga-
December 31, Decembier 3, offs i '] - - [LUIC 5}
5 in miSons Fai i M Recowarins 54 _ — _— = o]
Comarata 1 164 % bl Mt
: harn-iT)
Commernczial real astaie 152 85 1,“:'?:“"' 53 = s 1} 4 48
Rissidental real g5l a7 a4 Provision
Securities-hazed lending and (rolaasa)’ {53} 0 5 2} oo
_Oariaacs e 5 S 1% AL 18) e e M.
_IEHI 3 501 % I_ﬂi]_ D;:ﬂ:gu.']-r.
Monaccrudl loans withoul an ACL  § a0 3 120 - i s mymes
1. Duwing ZOUA, e islansn wis primarky dus 1o e meovery of ity
1. Inchides 3l HFT kans al are 50 days or mon pasd dus .mmh““h‘;’h an ey
Diecember 2020 Form H-E 120

364/424



Table of Contents
MNotes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Allowancs for Credit Losses Rollforward—Lending
Commitmants

Esqurad SBL
lending Recidenial  and
&y msinn Comporale facities CRE sl satale  Other Tu{,i_
Dwoembar 31,
2019 5 M s s 75 — 5 6§
Efect of CECL
AR #1) {11 1 2 1y sy
Prowision
{ruleass} 181 2 7 (LI T ¥
Cthar 2 — (4} — 4 z
Decembaer 11,
0D 3 323 § 33§ 11§ 1§ 23§ 396
Sare SBL
lerding Residentad  ard
By raeanm Comomie fasktes CRE  realestie  Oihar  Totsdl
Dmoambar 31,
01 5 wr4 1§ s - % 7% M3
Propcte:
(rélnasa) r n 4 — — a4
Ctbar i3 - - = i %
Dacambar 31,
2019 % P x5 T s — & & 5 3
Ewoured SHL
larcing Resenaad  and
Fonmaon  Comors faciies  CAE  rea ssiale Orher Tolel
Dhscembar 31,
T 5 LI 1z § 3% — 3% & 5 198
Provision
(relnasa) 3 4 1 - b} ]
Ot i3 - {1} - - 141
Ciscembar 31,
& g ir s 16 5§ 35 — & 7 § Na
rr——
ORE—Cormecial real astyin
SBL—Sncamite buriac bndng

The aggregate allowance for loans and lending commitments
mereased wm 2030, reflecting the provision for credit losses
within  the [mstilutional  Secunties  business  segment
principally resulting from the continued economic impact of
COVID-19, partinlly offset by charpe-offs. The provision was
primanily the result of actual and forecasted changes in asset
qualsty trends, as well as nsks related to uncertainty i the
outlook for the sectors i focus due to COVID-19. Charpe-
offs m 2020 were primarly related to certain Commercial real
estate and Corporate loans in the Institutional Securities
business segment The base scenano used in our ACL models
as of December 31, 2020 was generated using a combination
of industry consensus economte forecasts, forward mtes, and
internally developed and validated models. Given the nature
of our lending portfolio, the most sensitive model nput is
U5, GDP. The base scenario, amoeng cther things, assumes a
continued recovery through 2021, supported by fiscal
stimulus and menetary policy measures.

See Note 2 for a deseniption of the ACL calculated under the
CECL methodelogy, including eredit quality mdicators, usad
for HFI loans beginming in 2020 and for a summary of the
differences compared with the Firm's ACL methodalogy
under the prior incurred loss model,

OOOo0oooonOn(eossr1)
ooooOoog
Morgan Stanley
Employee Loans
Al A
Decombar 31, DCecamber 31,
Bh s - =L
Curmardy amplayd by tha Fam” - R T HA
Mo longer mmployed by the Fimm® 140 A
Emyployes laars 5 3,240 5 2580
AcL' {165} 61}
Emydoryes baans, re) ol AGL 5 3075 % 2818
Fiermairin ) rpayiant tenm, waighued
Ll L ol =4 1

1, Thess kaans aie peadomindansly cuman

2 Thesa koans e sk dun for & paiod of 852 days OF Fore

3. The changs in ACL includes & 5126 mallkon increass dus o th adoplion of CECL in
e Trsl spuaiiond 31 20120

Emplovee loans are granted m conjunction with & program
established primarily to recruil certain Wealh Management
representatives, are full recourse and generally require
perodic repayments, and are diie in full upon termination of
employment with the Firm. These loans are recorded in
Customer and other receivables in the balance sheets. The
ACL as of December 31, 2020 was caleulated under the
CECL methodelogy, while the ACL a1 December 31, 2019
was calculsted under the prior incurred loss model. The
related provision s recorded in Compensation and benefits
expense mn the income statements, See Noe 2 for a
description of the CECL allowance methodology, including
credit quality indicators, for emplovee loans.

11. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill Reliforward

Bin s "y B WM M Tl
Al Dacamber 31, 2008 £ Id % ARXY £ A 3 AAAR
Forsign cumency and other LE ] (1 - (14}
Aoculrnd’ — 40 - 458
At Dwcamber 31, 2009 S 281 5 BO01 § &y 5 143
Fidsign cuftensy 4 ihar 15 7 - 22
Aoienr! 20 43T — 4470
Al Db 31, 2000 $ ATE S1037E % 831 311538
Azl imparmens' 5 613 % — % T F o
|- Inatih Scnal Secuties

Vet Manacgen et

I rresritruart Marugarsn

AT,

2. Amouds elact tha impac of e Fem's aogestion of Solam Capdal Inc in Ba
amzond quter of 2019

3 The Wealth Marogerwanl oo mlacis the mpasst of Ba Fary acqestion of
C-TRADE i the Sourth quaster of 2000

4 Apcumalyled Empamsnis ware necorded pricd o e panods shom THas &ses no
N Pecored o 2020 2019 of 2018

The Furm's annual goodwill impairment testing as of July 1,
2020 and 2019 did not mdicate any goodwill imparment, as
reporting units with goodwill had a fair value that was in
exeess of carrving value.

December 2020 Form 10-K
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Mot Amorizable Intangible Assets Roliforward

& mnn 15 WM L Tonal
A Ducemnber 31, 298 5 210§ 1828 5 60 5 2158
Acsingd” 3 270 = 213
Exspemale {25) - - (28
Areiraton aapenss e (2 (B 3
ke 103 i — i
A Dacember 31, XH5 5 227 5 162 8 B 5 2NN
Arouines 14 LIE — 3%
Dsposals 3 - - T
Arestiration aepedis a8 (330} By (aT3)
o - 2 - H
At Decombar 3, 2020 S 127 5 4008 5§ 44§ 4580

1. Aoty prieepady delect this irgot of the Far's eccqueiten of Selum Capal e
i1t e gpaiter & 2019

2. Tha Vieak Ranig arount prncipaly reflects the impact of tha Farm's
acpshion of ETTRADE in the fouwth quasiss of 2020

Gross Amorlizable Intangible Assets by Type

Al Ducamber 31, 2020 Af Decsmbar 18, 2019

(£ B
Comying Acosmdated Camying  Accunnlaied
& &y g Anun]  Amoriraion  Amour  Amarizaion
Tracerammes 5 460 § B2 5 Ficl . T
Cusiomer eslmionships 1,420 2,882 4.0 2,708
IR SO TG 178 120 462 Fr
Ot 187 " Fik) 103
Todal 3 8,245 3 3,265 § 5311 § 3204
— —
E arnual Ao for the reot fom yonrs. § AT

12. Other Assets—Equity Method Investments
and Leases

Equity Mathod Investmaents
At Al
Docembar 31, Dacendar 31,
5 iy iy 200 2015
Lt 5 2410 5 283
& iy ey 2020 AME 2018
ncom {loss) § - % ym}% N

1 ke Epareants o i iieesimail Meagisent Biiiaes seanaids sqiy
] el Sa Slaes A0 rallion i B oudth qute of 2000 ralited 1o &
thied ity nssst manager. and S4E mdlon i the fowth quadsr of 2008 imstaied io s
separotn B party asset manager

Equity method investments, other than investments in certain
fund interesis, are summanzed sbove and are incheded in
Onher assets in the balance sheets with related income or loss
included in Other revenues in the meome statementis. See
“Met Asset Value Measurem ents—Fund Interesis™ in Mote 5
for the carrving value of certain of the Firm's fund mterests,
which are comprised of general and limned parnership
interests, as well as any related carried interest.

Japanese Securities Joint Ventura
Somne 020 2018 21
Incoons from nvesiment in MURSS % % i3 L]

The Fim and Mitsubishi UF] Fimancial Group, Inc.
{(“MUFG™) formed o joint verture in Japan comprising their
respective investment banking and securities businesses by

Diecember 2020 Form H-E

Morgan Stanley

forming two joint venture companies, Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan
Stanley Securities Co., Litd. {("MUBMSS™) and Morgan Stanley
MUFG Securities Co., Lud (“MSMST) (the “Joint Venture™).
The Firm owns a 40f% economic interest in the Joinl Venture,
and MUFG owns the other 60%.

The Firm's 40f% voling interest i MUMSS s accounted for
under the equity method within the Institwtional Securities
business segment and 15 mcheded in the equity method
invesiment balances above, The Firm consolidames MSMS
into the Institutional Securities husiness sepment, hased on its
51%s voling interest,

The Firm engages in trarsactions 0 the ordinary course of
business with MUFG and s alfilates, for example,
investment hanking, financial advisory, sales and trading,
derwatives. investment management, lending, securitization
and cther Tmancial services ransactions. Such ransactions are
on substantially the same terms as those that would be
avatlable to  unrelated third pames for - comparable
ransactions

Leases

The Firm's leases are principally non-cancelable operating
real estate leases.

Balance Sheet Amounts Related (o Loases

L] A
Decomber 31, Ducambar 1.
$ i i 020 2005
Cher masas—ROL asaals 5 4419 5 3,998
Crihar Rahdites ard S0CTURD AXpENSEG—
Laasa kabddas 5,337 4.7

Wisighiag Averigs;

Ramairing ads Sem. in yaars -E ] a.r

DHSCOURE rale 12% a8 %

Leaze Liabilitios

L1 A
December 31, DCecember 31,

& R 2020 20465

H ] — i FE3
2 41 703
nx: a1 B46
pta] 740 ]
24 B39 24
i) s32 L]
Thareaer 2585 2406
Tolal undiscounted cash foas 6,230 LEr ]
g el S E
Aot o balancs shea 5 5327 § 4,778
Commized leazas rot yet commarced LA—L 56

122
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Laase Cosls

o] o] 2018

Fiosd coats 5 ™ 5 1]
Wariabhe coas’ 154 152
Lass: Sublaass incoms 8 16}
Tl lnase ool ral 5 o1 8 i

1

i AT ri chagen ancl ot warisbls cont rot inchaded
n tha measarement of FIOU sssets and leses labiites

Cash Flows Statement Supplemental Information

Shm: R 200 018
Tl odteras—Lagai liahilneg 5 s 2 Bas
Mon-gash—ROA) aiiecs recoeded fof new

ara mo e leanes L] 614
Rant Expensa
S 1
Fianl saqnss Y

Occupancy lease agreements, in addition to base rentals,
generally provide for rent and eperating expense escalations
resulting fom incrensed assessments for real estate taves and
other charges.

13. Deposits
Deposits
Ax Al
Dsgambeer 31, Dastanber 31,
5 iy i 2020 il k]
Sarvings and cemand daposs 3 TIN5 140,485
Tierwh Sepsds 31,561 40851
Toaal 5 Horaz § 1941, 168
Daposns subjec! 1o FOID nsuranrcs & 3211 5 1P
Tiena that eoual or sxossd the
ST Brcrancs g 3 ] E!
Time Deposit Maturities
At
December 31,
&y 200
il 3 18,477
Foirrs 4,583
anan 4,054
2024 278
2035 b
Thammaliar 542
Todal 3 a1, 581
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Morgan Stanley
14. Borrowings and Other Secured Financings

Maturities and Terms of Borrowings

Pard Company  Subaloianas ™ M

F Warlabls  F Variobly Doecombor 3, Docomdar 31,
F i rllerin F!L:.:I Fasda™ Fl.lrﬁ [Py ™ bl 2078
Crigiei bl malurilies of one yeed of Bea

Mod'Zometis 3 — 8 13 — S3AM % b B 287
Ciriiginial maturitiss grewier than oo yoar:

e + -3 —% -k -3 — & mam
el WM 33E KB EBSS 4241 6 085
s LR BTl T anm 2,300 8.8
d WED B2 I SAN .80 1 ATS
i wWOM 20N ur  Lam n.mr iR ]
el wrE M7 ST 5TE) 18,838 ATLTE]
Tharnafior TEAM A48 B3N A 103,685 3352
Tedal ST EMADS FNTIE MIATR B TOOEE 5 rODed

Tolal Dorrosings. 5123417 SIBADE FI0.718 S4S598 5 HTATE §  1SeAET

WWelghiact i
- e
o A3% 10% DA% L 0% 34 %

ik 108 Boirowiens inchute irsrursants ity s p-up, shp-dewn ane s Soufen
Saluis

2 Variable vt bonowinge inchls thoss thal bes inferes| Eased oo & vansty of
indices, irchuding LBOR. federal funds rates and SOFR. in addition to oerfasin noles
camiad ol fal wakss with vanous payment prosons. inchicdieg rofes bnked In e
EaroTEMeE o 0 Apecihe indie 0 basksl of slocks, 0 spece Rty seoailty B
cnmeiadily, 4 sdil arpesues or Badket o crefl arpemen.

Oy inchudes bamswings with Srigingd matuities graater thin soe year Weighted
weEags coupon |8 calodsed whilzing U5 and non S dollsr inteesst mites and
darhitss Tnancinl Waliaments fof which Bk il il opSon Wi slecied. Vilisly
ol of Whe variable ol SolED Haad by subsienes e chrbd of (e vahis 85 6
i v g Sagain v il gl

L™

Borrowings with Original Maturities Greater than Cne Year
At e
Dacembar 31, Decambar 31,

& i 0 2018

‘Banir $ 22308 8§ 179AI0
Suhordnazed 14,083 160,541
Tatal $ 23388 5§ I00.0R0

Wisighieg menrage steed matunity, in ysars T3 ]

Certain seniog debt securities are denominated in various non-
U5 dollar currencies and may be structured to provide a
return that iz hinked to equity, credit, commodity or other
indices (e.g., the consumer price index). Senior debt also may
be structured to be callable by the Firm or extendible at the
optian of holders of the sentor debd secunitics.

The Firm"s Borrowings include notes carmied and managed on
a fair value hasis, These include instruments whase payments
and redemption values are linked to the performance of a
specific index. a basket of stocks, a specific equity securily, a
commaodity, a credit exposure or hasket of credit exposures;
and mstruments with vanous mterest-rate-related featunes,
including  step-ups, step-downe and zere coupons. To
minimize the exposure from such instruments, the Fim has
entered mlo varous swap confracts amd purchased oplions
that effectively convert the barmowing eosts into floating rates.
The swaps and purchased options wsed 1o economically hedge
the embedded features are derivatives and also are carmed at
fair value, Changes in fair value related 1o the notes and
economic hedges are reported in Trading revenues. See Notes

123 December 2020 Form 10-K
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2 and & for further information on borrowings camied at fair Maturities and Terms of Other Secured Financings'
value. At Decombar 31, 2020 A
F Dcambss 11
Senioe Debt Subject to Put Options or Liquidity Obligations N—— Raw  Raw Tl 2019
e At Criginal matudtes of one year or less:
December 31, Decsmber 31, Mt 12 vt $ 6099 3 4354 Si0483 5 7400
§ iy At ] k] ﬂﬂihllwu mmn Dﬁl “ll‘
P options smbeddad in debt agreemwnts. % B4 5 50 b 1131 ] — % - - 1,883
Lizuidity ablgations” 5 1483 5 Ll 23 1,270 385 1,855 L
1 inchudes chlgaons o suppoe secondary marke rading an 83 Bog A% a
Mz m 88 278 2855
Subordinated Debt ik o 1 95 12
Soen snid e n - ET »
Comntraciuel wiiGhed memge coLpon 45 % 45 % Traraaiiee 2 AB5 408 L]
- Tatal $ 2,927 S 1754 3 38M 5 G480
. it Wiighiag Averags
Subordinated debt generally is izsued to meet the capital SoRgHN Al parioc-ang” EM O 05% DE% 4%
requirements of the Firm or its regulated subsidiaries and i PR, My S B
primartly s U5 dollar  denominated.  Maturities of tabls

subordinated debt range from 2022 to 2027,

Rates for Borrowings with Original Maturities Graater than
One Year

Al Deoember 31,
b R 1 N v ]
28% 4% b%
17% 25% 6%

[

Efactiva walghiad avarags coupon afer swaps

1. Wasghted nviengs coupen wis calzulsied wilinng U S, e non L5 dollar inderea
rabis ancd acechudes fnancial natrumenty e wiich e Bl v aption wans slectad

In gencral, other tham securities inventories and customer
balances financed by secured funding sources, the majonty of
the Firm's assets are hnanced with a combination of deposits,
short-term funding, floating rate long-term debt or fixed rate
long-term debt swapped to a floating rate. The Firm uses
interest rate swaps 1o more closely match these borrowings 1o
the duration, holdmg perod and interest rate charactenstics of
the assets being funded and 1o manage mierest rate sk These
swaps effectively convert certain of the Firm's fixed rate
borrowings into feating rate cbligations. [n addition, for non-
U8, dollar ¢urrency borrowings that are not used to fund
assets in the same currency, the Firm has entered into
curreney swaps that effectively convent the bomowings o
LLS. daollar obligations.

The Firm's use of swaps [or asset and habality management
affects its effective average bommowing rate,

Cthar Sacurad Financings
At Al
Docambar 31, Ducamber 31,
§ iy iy 2030 2015
Origiral manuidea:

Ona yaar of lass 5 10,4583 5 r.10a
S P £ it e SR iR
Todal ] 15,883 § 140

—
Trarafers of assats accowned for as
saoumd fnandngs 1,539 1115
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2 Vbl rate cthes sesureg finsncings bear intarest basesd on & varety of indices,
nchidng LIBOR and fedeal fands rales Arounts nchide noles caned ot
Wl with o pEpranl prisiors, nckilng notes bnkad b0 eouely, oredd,

ety O Sl SR
A ekl ooly oifee' ssuned finatdngs with oignal rubaities graster than ooe

yoin Wbighted] dverkge doupin i cakinlibed wiliong LS, and ngndl S dol
l'llmllllullﬂu:hﬂu sacurnd fnancings that ans Enkad to nonndess
nchnies s for which e Tair wadion oplicn ens aliciad

Cther secured financings mclude the lmbilies related to
certain ELNs, transfers of financial assets that are accounted
for as fmancings rather than sales, pledged commodities,
consolidated VIEs where the Firm is deemed to be the
primary beneficiary and other secured borrowings. These
liabilities are generally pavable from the cash flows of the
related assets aceounted for as Trading assets. See Note 16 [or
further information on other secured fimancings related 1o

V1Es and secunuzation activities.

Maturities of Transfers of Assets Accountad for as Secured
Financings'

M A
Decambar 11, December 31
0 el friiri] 2010
0 5 — 5 208
2 Iy 25
v 155 45
2023 2% 34
2024 i 2
e A e
Thosrea e a7 302
Tatal 5 1529 5 1.115

124

1 Exchades Secumites soid inder agresmans (0 rspuechass and Securies, baned

For transfers of asseis that fail fo meet accounting critenia for
 sale, the Firm comtinues to record the assels and recognizes
the associated habilites i the balance sheets.
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15 Commitments, Guarantees and

Contingencies
Commitmants
Yemrs to Moturity o8 December 31, 2020
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Cantral
countarparsy’ 300 - - 8,246 9,546
Underwriting a0ar - - — 1037
Mrrvss imard ackses Eid e b Jig 4,488
Latiens of aredit and
o firancial
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Todal § 95025 § 46031 § 49671 § 16499 310923
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Forwand-siering secounsd Trarcing rcsivebles salied within s
businass cays § 54,542
1. Geagnring W 20, come 0 caniral o P i

Since commitments associated with these instruments may
expire unused, the amounts shown do not necessarily reflect
the actual fulure cash funding requirements.

Types of Commitmen s

Lending Commitments.  Lending commitments primarily
represent the notional amount of legally binding obhigations 1o
provide funding to cliemts for different tvpes of loan
transactions. For syndications that are led by the Fim, the
lending commitments accepied by the borrower bui not yet
closed are net of the amounts agreed to by counterparties that
will partiwipate in the syndication. For syndications that the
Firm participates i and does not lead, lending commitments
accepted by the borrower but not yet closed include only the
amotind that the Fim expects it will be allocated from the lead
syndicate bank. Due to the nare of the Firm's obligations
under the commitments, these amounts nclude certan
commitments participated to third paries.

Forward-Starting  Secured Financing Recervables. Ths
amount includes securities purchased under agreements 1o
resell and securities borrowed that the Firm has entered into
priar i the balance sheet date that will sentle alter the balance
sheet date. These tmnsactions are primarly secured by
collateral from U5, government agency secunties and other
sovereign government obligations when they are funded
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Central Counterparty.  These commitments relate to the
Firm's membership 1 certamn  cleannghouses and  are
confingent upon the default of a cleaninghouse member or
other siress events.

Underwriting Commitments. The Firm provides underwrniting
commilments n connection with s capital rsing sources 1o
a diverse group of corporate and other institutional clients,

Investment Acnvities.  The Fim sponsers several noas
consolidated imvestment management funds for third-party
investors where it typically acts as peneral partner of, and
inwvestment advisor to, these funds and typically commits to
invest a minordy of the capital of such funds, with
subscribing third-party investors contributing the majoriy
The Firm has contrachual capital commitments, puarantees
and counterparty  arrangements  with respect o these
investment management funds.

Letters of Credit and Other Financial Guavaniees  The Firm
has outstanding letters of credit and other (inancial guarantees
issued by third-party banks 1o cenain of the Fim's
counterparties. The Firm is contingently liable for these letters
of credit and other financial guarantees, which are prmarily
used to provide collateral for secumties amd commodities
trached and to satisfy various margin requirements in lien of
depositing cash or securities with these counterparties
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Cuarantees

Obligations under Guarantea Arrangements a1 Decermber 31,

Wiy Prodon sl P §tiotionsd
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2. Tha canrying o derveat Sl st the sccountng definision of
o guamniss ane shown on @ Qross basis. For hether nformation on deriatives
cendracts, dan Heis 7

3. Pty enatid i sidenmal monghge securitiemons.

Types af Gl arantees

Derivative Conifracts. Cenmn derivalive contmels meet the
accounting definition of a guarantee, including certain written
ophicns, contingent forward contracts and CDS (see Naote 7
regarding credit denivatives in which the Firm has sold credit
protection to the counterparty). All denvative contracts that
could meet this accounting definition of o guaranies are
included 1 the previous table, with the notional amount used
as the maxmum potental payvout for certmn denvalve
contracts, such &s Writlen interest rate caps and written foreign
currency oplions. The Firm evaluates collateral requirements
for all dervatives, including denvatives that do not meet the
accounting definition of a guarantee, For the effects of cash
collateral and counterpany netling. see Note 7,

In certain sinmtions, collateral may be held by the Fimm for
those contracts that meet the definition of a puaraniee.
Generally, the Firm sets collateral reguirements by
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counterparty so that the collateral covers vanous transactions
and products and 15 not allocated specilically to indviduel
contracts. Also, the Firm may recover amounts related 1o the
underlying asset delivered 1o the Firmn under the denvative
contract.

Standhy Letters of Credit and Other Financial Gravantees
Issued In connection with its corporate lemding business and
other corporate activities, the Firm provides standby letters of
credit and other financel guarantess 1o counterpanies. Such
armangements represent obligations to make pavments to third
parties if the counterparty Gils 1o fulfill its obligation under a
borrowing armangement of other contraciual obligation, A
majonty of the Firm's standby letters of crednt are provided
on behall of counterparties that are investment grade. I the
counterparty finils 1o fulfill its contractual ohiigation, the Firm
has access to collateral or recourse that would approximate its
ehligation

Market Value Guarantees. Market value guarantees are issued
1o guaraniee timely pavment of a specified return to nvestors
in certam  alferdable howsme tax credit funds  These
guarantees are designed 1o refum an investor's contnbution to
a fund and the investor's share of tax losses and tax credits
expected W be genermted by a fund

Liguidity Factlities. The Fim has entered anto Liguedity
facilities with SPEs and cther counterparties, whereby the
Firm is required to make certain payments if Josses or defaults
oceur, Primanly, the Fim adts as ligquidity provider 1o
mupcipal bond  secunitization SPEs and for standalone
municipal bonds in which the holders of beneficial interests
issued by these SPEs or the holders of the individual bonds,
respectively, have the right 1o tender their nterests for
purchass by the Firm on specified dates at a specified price.
The Firmy often may have recourse to the underlving assets
held by the SPEs in the event payments are required under
such lhquihty [ecilibes, as well as make-whaole or recourse
provisions with the trust sponsors. The recourse amount often
exceeds the maximum potential pavout amownt of the
guarantes. Substantially all of the underlying assels in the
SPEs are investment grade. Liquidity facilities provided to
municipal tender option bond trusts are classified as
derwatives.

While Loan Sales Guarantees, The Firm has provided, or
otherwise agreed to be responsible for, representations and
warmanties regarding certain whole toan sales. Under certain
circumstances, the Firm may be required 1o repurchase such
assets or make other payments related to such assets if such
representations and warranties are breached. The Firm's
maximum potentinl pavout refated to such representations and
warmanties is equal to the current UPE of such loans. Since the
Firm no longer services these loans, it has no informaten on
the current UPBE of those Joans, and accordingly, the amount
included m the previous wble represents the UPBE at the nme
of the whole loan sale or at the time when the Fimm last
serviced any of those loans. The current UFPB balances could
be substantially lower than the maxmum potential payout
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amount included in the previous table. The related liability
prmarily relates to sales of leans to the federal mortgage
AZENTIES,

Securitization Representations and Warranifes, As parnt of the
Fim's  Insttutiorsl  Secunties  busmess  segment’s
securilizations and related activities, the Firm has provided, or
otherwise agreed to be responsible for, representations and
warranties  regarding  certan assets  tmmsferred  in
securttization transactions sponsored by the Firm. The extent
and nature of the representations and warranties, if any, vary
among different secuntzations. Under certam circumstances,
the Firm may be required to repurchase ceriain assets or make
other payments related to such assets if such representations
andd warranties are breached. The maxamum petential amount
of future payments the Firm could be required 1o make would
be equal 1o the cumrent outstanding balances of, or losses
associated with, the assets subject 1o breaches of such
representations and warmantics. The amount included in the
previous table for the maximum polential payowt includes the
current UFE or historical losses where known, and the UPB at
the time of sale when the current UPB is not known,

General Parmer Guarantees. As a general partner in certain
investment management funds, the Fim receives certain
distritutions from the parmerships when the relum excesds
specified performance targets according to the provisions of
the partnership agreements. The Firm may be required to
return all or a portion of such distnbutions to the lmited
partners in the event the limited partners do not achieve a
cerlain return as specified in the varwous parinership
agreements, subject o certain limitations.

Cltent Clearing Guaranfees, In 2019, the Firm became a
sponsoring member of the Government Secunities Division of
the FICCs Sponsored Cleanng Model, Clients of the Firm, as
sporsored members, can tramsact i ovemnight securities
repurchase and resale apreements, which are cleared through
the FICC. As sponsoring member, the Firm guarantees (o the
FICC the prompt and full pavment and performance of its
clients” obligations, In 2020, the FICC™s sponsored cleanng
model was updated such that the Firm could be responsible
for liguidation of a spomsored member's account and
guarantees any resulting loss 1o the FICC in the event the
sporsored member fmls fo fully pay any net higwdation
amount due from the sponsored member to the FICC.
Accordingly, the Firm's maximum potential payout amount
reflects the total of the estimated net bguidation amownts for
sporsored member accounts. The Firm minimizes credit
expogure under this guarantee by oblaining a security interest
i its sponsored member cliems’ collaeral and their
contraciual rights under sponsored member transactions.
Therefore, the Firm's exposure is estimated to be an amount
substantially lower than the maamum potential payoul
amount. The collateral amount in which the Firm has a
segurity interest is approximately equal to the maimum
potential pavout amount of the puarantee,
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Other Guarantees and Indemmnitics

In the nomal course of business, the Firm provides
guarantees and indemnifications in a variety of transactions.
These provisions generally are standard contractual terms
Certain of these guarantees and  mdemmficaions  are
described below:

* Imdemmities. The Fum provides standard indemmnities to
counterpariies for ceriain contimgent exposures and taxes,
including U5, and foreign withholding taxes, on interest
and other payments made on derivatives, secumlies and
stock lending transactions, certnin annuty products and
other financial amangements. These indemnity payments
could be required based on a change in the tax laws, a
change in interpretation of applicable tax rulings or a
change m factual circumstances. Certam confracts contaim
provisions that enable the Firm (o terminate the agreement
upon the cccurence of such events The maximum
potential amount of future payments that the Frrm could be
required 1o make under these indemmilications cannot be
estimated.

Exchange Clearinghouse Member Guarantees. The Firm 15
a member of various exchanges and cleaninghouses that
trade and clear securiies andfor dervative conlracts.
Associated with ts membership, the Firm may be required
to pay a certain amount as determined by the exchange or
the clearmghouse i case of a defaul of any of its members
or pay & proporiionate share of the financial obligations of
another member that may default on its obligations to the
exchange or the cleannghouse. While the rules governing
different exchange of cleannghouse memberships and the
forms of these guarantees may vary. in general the Fim's
obligations under these rules would arise only if the
exchange or clearinghouse had previously exhausted its
FESOUTCes

In additton, some clearinghouse rules require members lo
fssume @ proportionate share of tosses resulting from the
clearinghouse’s investiment of guarantee fund contributions
and initial margin, and of other losses unrelated 1o the
default of a clearing member, if such losses exceed the
specified resources allocated for such purpose by the

cleannghouse

The maximum potential payout under these rules cannot be
estimated The Firrm has not recorded any contmgent
ltability in its financial statements for these agreements and
believes that any potential requirement 1o make payments
under these agreements 18 remode,

Merger and Acguistiton Guaranfees, The Firm may, from
time o bme, inits role as mvestment banking advisor be
required 1o provide guaraniees in connection with certain
European merger and scquisition transactions. If required
by the regulating authonities, the Firm provides a puarantes
that the acquirer in the transacton has or will have
sufficient funds to complete the transaction and would then
be required 1o make the acquisition payments in the event
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the acquirer’s funds are msufficient at the completion date
of the transaction. These arrangements generally cover the
tirne frame from the transaction offer date 1o its closing date
and, therefore, are penerally short term in nature, The Firm
believes the hkelihood of any payment by the Fimm under
these armngements is remote given the level of its due
diligence i its rale as investment banking advisor.

In addition, in the ordinary course of business, the Fim
guarantess the debt and'or certain trading  obligations
{including obligations associated with derivatives, foreign
exchange contracts and  the  settlement  of physical
commodities) of cernain  subsidianies. These guaraniees
generally are entity or product specific and are required by
investors or trading counterparties. The activities of the
Firm's subsidianes covered by these puarantees (including
any related debt or trading obligations) are included m the
financial statements,

Comtingencies
Legal

In addition to the matters described in the following
paragraphs, in the normal course of business, the Firm has
been named, from time to time, as a defendant in varous legal
actions, including arbitrations, class actions and other
litigation, ansing in connection with its activities az a global
dwversified financial services mstitution. Certain of the actual
or threatened legal actions include cluims for substantial
compensatory  andior punitive damages or claims  for
indeterminate amounts of damages. In some cases, the entitees
that would otherwise be the pamary defendants in such cases
are bankrupt or are in financial distress. These actions have
neluded, but are ned hmated to, residential mortgape and
credit erisis-related matters

While the Firm has idemtilied below any  individual
proceedings where the Firm believes a material loss to be
reasonably possible and reasonably estimable, there can be no
assurance that material losses will not be incurred from claims
that have not vet been asserted or those where potential losses
have net vet been determined to be probable or possible, and
reasonably estimahle,

The Farm contests liability and'er the amount of damapes as
appropriate  in each pending matter. Where available
information indicates that 1t 15 probable a habality had been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the Firm
can reasonably estimate the amount of that loss, the Firm
aconses the estimated loss by a charpe 1o income.

5 i N 2020 2018 2018

Legal sxperses $ 3MF S WS

The Firm's legal expenses can, and may i the fubure,
fluctuate from penod to penod, given the current environment
reparding govermnment investigations and private litigation
affecting plobal financial services firms, including the Firm,
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In many proceedings and investigations, however, i is
inherently difficult to determine whether any loss s probuble
of even possible or to estimate the amount of any loss, In
addition, even where a boss 15 pessible or an exposure to loss
exasts in excess of the Labihty already accrued with respect 1o
a previously recognized loss contingency, it is ot always
possible 1o reasonably estimate the size of the possible loss or
ramge of loss, particularly for procecdings and mvestigations
where the factual record 15 being developed or contested or
where plantiffs or govemment entities seek substantial or
indeterm irmie damages, restitution, disgorgement or penalties.
Numerous issues may need to be resolved before a loss or
additional loss, or range of loss or additional range of loss,
can be reasonably estimated for a proceeding or nvestigation,
including  through potenually  lengthy  discovery  and
determination of important factual matters, determination of
issues related to class certification and the calculation of
damages or other relief, and by addressing novel or unsentled
legal questions relevant to the proceedings or investigations in
question.

For certan other legal pmcccd:ilgs and mvestigations, the
Firm can estmate reasonably posmble losses, sddibonal
losses, ranges of loss or ranges of additional loss in excess of
amounts accrued but does not believe, based on current
knowledge and after consullation with counsel, that such
losses could have a matenal adverse effect on the Firm's
financial statemends as 3 whole, other than the matters
referred 1o in the following paragraphs

On July 15, 20010, China Development Indusirial Bank
(“CDEE™) filed & complaint against the Firm, styled Ching
Development Industial Bank v. Movgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated et al, which is pending in the Supreme Court of
the State of New York, Mew York County {“Supreme Court
of WY} The complaint relates to a 3275 million CDS
referencing the super senior portion of the STACK 2006-1
CD. The complaint assens claims for common law fraud,
fraudubent nducement and fraudulent  concealment and
alleges that the Firm misrepresented the risks of the STACK
2006-1 CDO o CDIB, and that the Firm knew that the assets
backing the CIO were of poor quality when it entered mito
the CDS with CDIBE. The complamt seeks compensatory
damages related to the approximately 5228 million that CDIE
alleges it has already lost under the CDS, rescission of
CDIB's obligation to pay an sdditional 512 mallion, punitive
damages, cquitable relief, fees and costs. On Febnmry 28,
2011, the court demied the Firm's motion to dismiss the
complaind. On December 21, 2018, the court denied the
Firm's motion for summary judgment and granted in part the
Firm’s motion for sanctions relating to spoliation of evidence.
On Janmry 13, 20019 CDIB filed o motion o clanfy and
resettle the portion of the court’s December 21, 2018 order
granting spoliation smnctions. On January 24, 2019, CDIB
filed a notice of appeal from the couwr®s December 21, 2018
order, and the Firm filed a notice of appeal from the same
order. On March 7, 2019, the court denied the reliel scught by
CDIB in its January 18, 2019 motion. On May 21, 2020, the
Appellate Dhivision, First Department (“First Departmemt”™),
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muodified the Supreme Court of MY s order to deny the Firm's
motion for sanchons relating to spoliation of evidence and
otherwise affirmed the denial of the Firm's motion for
summary yudgment. Om June 19 2020, the Firm moved for
leave 1o appeal the First Depanment’s decision 1o the New
York Court of Appeals ("Cowrt of Appeals™), which the First
Department dermed on July 24, 2020 Based on curremtly
available information. the Fimm believes it could miur a loss
in this action of up to approxamately $240 millon plus pre-
and post-pedgment interest, fees and costs,

On September 23, 2014, Fnancial Guaranty Insurance
Caompany (“FGIC™) filed 2 complaint against the Firm in the
Supreme Court of NY styled Finarretal Guaranty Tisnranee
Compary v. Margar Stanley ABS Capital | fnc. ef al. rélating
to the Maorgan Stanley ABS Capital [ Ine. Trust 2007.MC4,
The complaint asseris claims for breach of contract and
fraududent inducement and alleges, among other things, tha
the loans in the trust breached various representations and
warrantics and defendants made unirue statements and
material omissions to induce FGIC to ssse a fnancial
puaranty policy on certam classes of certificates that had an
ongmal  balance of approcimately  $87%6 million.  The
complaint seeks, among other reliel, specific performance of
the loan breach remedy procedures in the transaction
decuments,  compensmtory,  consequential and  punilive
damages, attomeys’ fees, interest and costs, On January 23,
2017, the court derped the Firm's moton o dismiss the
complaint. On February 24, 2017, the Firm Gled a notice of
appeal of the dental of 1ts motion to dismiss the complaint and
perfected ns appeal on November 22, 2017, On September
13, 2008, the Farst Department affirmed in part and reversed
in part the lower court’s order denying the Firm's motion to
dismiss the complaint. On December 20, 2018, the First
Diepartment denied plantill's motion for leave to appeal o
the Court of Appeals or, m the allemnative, for re-argument.
Based on currently available information, the Firm believes
that it could incur @ boss in this action of up to approximately

217 million, the tolal onginal unpaid balance of the
mortgage loans for which the Firm received repurchase
demands from a certificate holder and FGIC that the Firm did
ned repurchase, plus pre- and post- judgment interest, fees and
costs, as well as claim payments that FGIC has made and will
make in the future. In addition, plantiff is seeking 10 expand
the rumber of loans wl issue and the possiblie mnge of loss
could merease.

On January 23, 2005, Deutsche Bank Natonal Trust
Company, in its capacity as trustee, filed a complaint against
the Firm styled Dentsche Bank Natvtomal Trust Conpany
solely im il capacily as Trustee of the Morgan Stanley ARS
Capital I fnc. Trust 2007-NC4 v Morgan Stanley Mortgage
Capital Holdings LLC as Successor-by-Merger o Morgan
Stanley Mortgage Capital Ine., and Morgan Stanley ABY
Cagrrel 1 Inc., pending in the Supreme Court of NY. The
complaint asserts clams for breach of contract and alleges,
among oher things, that the loans in the trust, which had an
original principal balance of approcimately 31.05 billion,
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breached vanous representations and  wamranties.  The
complant seeks, among other relief, specific performance of
the loanm breach remedy procedures in the tramsaction
documents, compensatory, comseguental,  rescissory,
equiable and punitive damages. attomeyvs” [ees, costs and
other related expenses, and interest, On December 11, 2015,
the court granted in part and dented in part the Firm's mation
o dismiss the complaint, On October 19, 2018, the coun
granted the Firm's motion for leave to amend its answer and
to stay the case pending resolution of Dewtsche Bank National
Trust Company”s appeal to the Court of Appeals in another
case, styled Dentsche Sank National Trust Company W
Barclays Bank PLC, regarding the applicable statute of
limitations. On Janwary 17, 2019, the First Department
reversed the tnal coun’s order to the extent that it had granted
in part the Firm's motion fo dismiss the complaint. Cn June 4,
2019, the First Departeent gramted the Firm's motion for
leave to appeal its Januvary 17, 2019 decision 1o the Coun of
Appeals, On Mareh 19, 2020, the Fim filed 8 motion for
partial summary judgment. Based on currently available
information, the Firm believes that i could incur o loss m this
action of up to approximately 3277 million, the total original
unpaid balance of the mortgage loans for whach the Firm
received repurchase demands from a certificate holder and a
moncline insurer that the Firm did not repurchase, plus pre-
and post-judgment nterest, fees and costs, but plamtifl s
seeking e expand the number of loans at issue and the
passible mnge of loss eould merease,

Tax

In matters styled Case mumber 153637 and Case mimber
154353, the Duich Tax Authority (“Drutch Autherity™} is
challenging in the Dutch courts, the prior set-off by the Firm
of approximately €124 million (approximately 5152 million}
plus accrued nterest of withholding tax crediis against the
Firm's corporation tax liabilities for the tax years 2007 to
2003, The Dutch Authority alleges that the Firm was not
enhtled to receive the withholding tax credits on the basis,
inter alia, that a Firm subsidiary did not hold legal tile 1o
ceftain securities subgect to withholding tax on the felevant
dates. The Dutch Authority has also alleged that the Firm
falled to provide certaum information to the Dutch Authority
and keep adequate books and records. Om Apnil 26, 2018, the
District Court in Amsterdam issued a decision dismissing the
Dutch Authority's clamms with respect to certain of the tax
years in dispute, On May 12, 2020, the Court of Appeal in
Amsterdam granted the Dutch Authority’s appeal in matters
re-styvled Case nuber [800318 and Case number 800319,
On June 22, 2020, the Fom filed an appeal agamst the
decision of the Court of Appeal in Amsterdam before the
Drutch High Coun
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I6. Variable Interest Entities and Securitization
Activities

Overview

The Firm s involved with various S3PEs m the normal course
of business, In most cases, these entities are deemed to be
VIEs.

The Firm™s vanable interests in VIEs include debt and equity
interests, commilments, guarantees, denvative instruments
and certain fees The Fum's involvement with VIEs anses
primarihy from

Interests purchased mn connection with market-making

activities, securtties held n s Investmeml securitics

portfolio and retained mterests held as a result of

securitization  activities,  including  Te-sccurifizalion

IFNSACTonS,

« Guarantees psued and residual  inleredts retaned in
conmection with municipal bond securnitizations.

+ Loans made to and irvestments in VIEs that hold debt,

equity, real estate or other assets

Denvatives entered into with VIEs,

Structering of CLMs or other assel-repackaging noles

designed 10 meet the mvestment ohjectives of clients

+ Other structured transactions designed o provide fax-

efficient yields to the Firm or its clients

The Firm determanes whether it is the primary beneficiary of a
VIE upon its imitial involverment with the VIE and reassesses
whether 1 15 the pnmary beneficiary on an ongomg basis as
long as i has any continuing involvement with the VIE. This
determination 15 based upon an analysis of the design of the
VIE. mehading the VIE's structure and activities, the power 1o
make significant economic decisions keld by the Firm and by
other parties, and the vanable interests owned by the Firm and
other parties.

The power to make the most significanl economiie decisions
may take a number of different forms in different tvpes of
VIEs. The Firm considers servicing or collateral management
decisions as representing the power to make the most
sigmificant  economic  decisons n tramsactions  such s
securitizations or CDXOs. Az a result, the Firm does not
conseldate securitizations of CDOs for which it does not act
as the servicer or collateral manager unless it holds certain
other rights 10 replace the servicer or collateral manager or o
require the liquidation of the entity. If the Firm serves as
servicer of collsteral manager, or has certain other rights
deseribed in the previous sentence, the Firm analyzes the
interests in the VIE that it holds and consolidates only those
WI1Es for which it holds a potentially significant interest n the
VIE

For many transactions, such as re-securitization transactions,
CLMz and other asset-repackaging notes, there are no
sigmificant economic decistons made on an ongoing basis. In
these cases, the Firm focuses its analysis on decisions made
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prior to the mitial closing of the transaction and at the
termination of the transaction. The Firm concluded m most of
these transactions that decizions made prior to the initial
closing were shared between the Firm and the mmibial investors
based upon the nature of the assets, including whether the
assets were issued in a transaction sponsored by the Firm and
the extent of the nformation available o the Firm and 1o
investors, the number, nature and involvement of investors,
other nghts held by the Firm and investors, the
standardization of the legal documentation and the level of
centinuing involvement by the Firm, including the amount
and type of imterests owned by the Firm and by other
investors. The Firm focused its controd decision on any right
held by the Firm or investors retated to the termination of the
VIE. Most re-securitization transactions, CLNs and other
asset-repackaging notes have no such termination rnghts,

Consolidated VIE Assets and Liabilities by Typa of Activity

Al Decamber 31, 2020 Albmln:lblrﬂ-].bh'lﬂ
WIE Assets  VIE Liahilties VIE Axsats  ViE Liahilties

i e

QEF E a1 % e 5 L ] 0
NAaBS S0 17 ] 4
Crhar @aT 47 a7 [
Tatal 5 2118 3§ 414 § 1048 § 461

OFSF —Othar struchissd Snecings

I Amoasls ncieds Wansachions backed by reaadsntie momgags oang, cormimiscind
Faigagh kohrn A olhee hpak of Sesets inchaling corsmrtier of corireecial
snaty ad riay Ba i Gan of seouity ftime The valus of assals & defsmined
e o the Lk valus o s Rablities and Be infevests owned by e Pars in such
WVIES as the tar vablses for the Babdties snd indmwsts owned s mons obsenabls

2 Ot priewiily inchilies cpeing et westeant nds and stischaed
[T Ry

Consolidated VIE Assels and Liabilities by Balance Shaet
Caplion

At A
Dwcamnbser 31, Decsndber 31,

L 2020 Fail []
Cash ard cash squivabenis § 260 § 488
Trading asseli 4 lar valus 1,448 045
Craponses gro ol mossy el 21 18
rtarglde assati a8 1
Crhar &asais - 03 3a8
Tatal 5 2118 % 1040
Liwbilities

Crhar sacursd financings g 366 5 422
Crber Reblitiet ard @odnued sxpenses &8 k]
Tatsl 8 418 5 481
Morcoerolbng infaness 5 106 % 152

Consolidated VIE asscts and liabalities are presented in the
previous tables after intercompany elmimations. Generally,
maost assets owned by consolidated VIEs cannot be removed
unilaterally by the Firm and are not available 1o the Firm
while the related liahilities issued by consolidated VIEs are
non-recourse to the Firm, However, in certain consolidated
VIEs, the Firm enher has the unilateral pight 10 remove assels
or provides addittonal recourse through dervatives such as
total retum swaps, guarantees or other forms of involvement.
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In general, the Finm ‘s exposure 10 loss in consolidated ViEs is
lmited to losses that would be sbsorbed on the VIE net assets

recognized i s Dinancial statements, net of amoums
absorbed by third-panty vanable mterest holders.

Mon-consolidated VIES
it Dacembar 31, 2030

& iy mtizng MABS CooD MTOE O5F e
WIE asais (LPE]} SH84,153 § 3,527 3 653 5 2161 § 4524
M nximum exposure (o boss”

Dbt are

intareiiE § HMMT § 257 § - % 1,187 § 11,002
Dostivmibon arsd evhar

Lol bn - - 4415 - ]
Commitmants,

EuarBrises ana csher L B = s = T4
Toanl § FATE 3 28T 5§ 4435 3 187 § 170

Carrying valus of variables interests-—Asssts

Db ard sculty

Intarests § MY 3 257 % — % 1187 § 11,004
Darivaiive and ater

contracs S i 5 e 851
Teasl _ § 36247 § 257 § 5 5 1,187 § 11,383
Agdtional VIE nssets u-ﬁvud‘ § 20,019
Carylng valus of varlabls interesta—Labiliss
Drarbemthin ard athar

CONIFRER ] — % — % — % — % X2

i A Decemnber 31, 2012
& v e MABS' B NTOR O5E Ciibar’
WIE gasats (LIFE) SIGE0 5 2076 § 6065 5 2288 5 50305
o i s e B i
Dbl are ecudty

nierests 5 15314 5 240 % — % 1008 § 10577
Doty athom arsd ahar

conlracis —_— —_ 4,559 - 2,558
Commitments,

Guararisss and other 51 - - - 5
Tzl 3 MRS 2 240 F 4509 5 1000 %M
Currying valua of varinbls interasis—Asssts
Dbt arad

Inlares S 1824 § 240 % - % 1008 § 19,577
Dwrivatioe ard ather

EONIFREA - — & —_ iy
Tolal F 18314 § 240 3 5 5 1008 F 12365
Arsrinngl VIE Rssas owred 5 11453
Carrying valun of variable interests—Liabilithes
Darivinhod and oder

coniracis 5 -5 - % -5 - & 444

Mg babos and otfer typws of e, inchuding LR il
asasti. Jeud vy b i ke o secuity B

i Cebey primaely nchodes aepomews & comecasl real sebailn  propery andd
rremstment s

3. Wiesre nobonal amounts s ofleed 0 gusntlying e MaETWEm aaposEs rslehed
1y Saiivativgs. foch amounts de el eflest changed B T valis ckcodded By the
Fm

& Addmiznal Vil sssets wesd reg tha yirig walue o botald aap B g
consclidaled VIEs for which B massmiem axposiss D loss s lsss San spaciic
Hhiishol®y, pririnily nliasls Moo by seoaiticston SPEs Tha Fim's maeeuem
aapsu b3 krss parally epsils e 1 wake of th dosats Swied. Thiss risss
ain pricawily indhoded n Teading desets and et Securities and jen
massmed of far valus (e Mobe 5] The Fem doss nol provids sdddional suppont
in Hhass transachions Swough oo oty oF sy dethaines

The mapority of the VIEs included 1n the previous tables are
sporsored by unrelated parties; examples of the Fim's
involvement with these VIEs mclude its secondary market-
makmng activities and the securities held in its Imvestment
securities porifolio (see Mote 8),

K]

EDINETOOOO

O0O000oo0gOooOoo(eoessr1)

Morgan Stanley

The Firm's maximum exposure to loss is dependent on the
nature of the Firm's vanable interest inthe VIE and 15 limited
to the notional amounts of certain liquidity fcilities and other
credit support, total return swaps and wntten put oplions, as
well as the far value of cerun other denvatives and
investments the Firm has made in the VIE

The Firm"s maximum exposure (o loss in the previous tables
does not include the offseting benefit of hedges or any
reductions associated with the amount of collateral held as
part of a transaction with the VIE or any party to the VIE
directly against a specific exposure 10 loss,

Liabilities isswed by VIEs generally are non-recourse to the
Firm.

Detail of Morigage- and Asset-Backed Securitization Assels

AR Dacembar 31, 2020 At Decaniber 31, 2015

Deblarg Debi and
Equity Equity
3 mons UPE  Miemsn UPQ  Wlemen
Fieesictan il Mg § 17775 § 3175 § 30083 £ 3993
Commarcisl medigages 62,05 411 B ASR2 3
LS. apency collawrmalirad
fHGRRa oiligatoes aa,182 17224 IIEE &.366
Crihar consumsen or
rara 8183 1,717 4060 2075
Tatal 3184153 3 26347 F1I5600 § 16314

Securilization Activities

In a sccunfizalion transaction, the Firm transfers assets
{genernlly commercial or residemtial morigage loans or
securities) to an SPE, sells to investors most of the beneficial
inlerests, such as notes or cerificates, 1ssued by the SPE, and,
in many cases, retains other beneficial interests, The purchase
of the transferred assets by the SPE 15 financed through the
sale of these interests.

In many secuntizabion lansactions nwvolving commercal
mortgage foans, the Firm transfers a portion of the assets 1o
the SPE with unrelated parues transferning the remainmg
assels. In addition, manly in secuntization transaclions
inwvolving residential morigage loans, the Firm may also enter
o denivative transsctions, primanly inlerest mate swaps or
interest rate caps, with the SPE.

Although not obligated, the Firm generally makes a market in
the securnities issued by SPEs in securitization transactions, As
a market maker, the Firm offers to buy these secunties from,
and sell these securities to. invesiors. Securities purchased
through these market-making sctivites are not considered 1o
be retained interests; these beneficial interests gencrally are
ineluded in Trading assets—Corparate and other debt and are
measured at Tair value.

The Firm enters into denvatives, generally imerest rate swaps
and mterest rate caps, with 4 senior payment priorty in many
securitization transactions, The risks associated with these and
similar denivatives with 3PEs are essentially the same as
similar denvatives with non-SPE  counterparties and  are
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managed as part of the Firm's overill exposure. See Note 7
for further information on dervative instruments and hedging
achivitlies,

Investrment Securities

The Firm helds securities issued by WVIEs within the
Investment securities portfolio. These secunities are composed
of those related to tramsactions sponsored by the federal
morigage agencies and predominantly the most sensor
securities issued by VIEs backed by student loans and
commercial mongage loans. Transactions sponsored by the
federal mortgage apencies include an explicit of implicit
eguarantes provided by the U5 govermnment. Additionally, the
Firm holds ceman commercial morgage-backed securities
issued by VIEs retained as a result of the Firm's sccuritization
activilies, See Note ¥ for further information on the
Invesiment securities portfiolc

Municipal Tender Cption Bond Trusts

In & municipal tender option bomd trust transaction, the client
transfers a mumcipal bond to a trust. The frust issues short-
term scouritics that the Firm, as the remarketing agent, sells to
investors. The client generally retains a residual interest The
short-term  securities are supporied by a lequadity facility
pursuant to which the imwvestors may put their short-term
interests, In most programs, a third-party  provider will
provide such liquidity facility, i some programs, the Firm
provides this hauedity faciliy.

The Firm may, in leu of purchasing short-term secunties for
remarketing, decide to extend a temporary loan to the trust,
The client can generally terminate the fransaction at any time.
The hguidity provider can generally terminate the transaction
upon the occurrence of certain events, When the transaction is
termanated, the municmpal bond = generally sold or returned 1o
the client. Any losses suffered by the liquudny provider upon
the sale of the bond are the responsibility of the client This
obligation 15 generally collateralized. Liquidity facilities
pravided to municipal tender option bond trusts are classified
as derivatives. The Firm consolidates any municipal tender
apticn bond trusts in which it holds the residual interest,

Credit Froteciion Purchased through Credie-Linked Notes

CLN transactions are designed to provide investors with
exposure to centain credil nsk on referenced assets. In these
transactions, the Firm transfers assets (gencrally high-qualiny
securities or money market investments) to an SPE, enters
inte a derivative ransaction in which the SPE sells protection
on an unrelated referenced asset or group of assets, through a
credit derivative, and sells the securities issued by the SPE 10
investors, In some transactions, the Firm may also enter inlo
interest rate or currency swaps with the SPE. Depending on
the structure, the assets and labalites of the SPE may be
consolidated and recognized in the Firm's balance sheets or
accounted for as a sale of assets,
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Upomn the occurrence of a credit event related to the referenced
assel, the SPE will delver securities collateral as payment to
the Firm, which exposes the Finmy to changes in the
collateral's value.

Denvative payments by the SPE are collateralized. The risks
associated with these and similar denvatives with SPEs are
essentially the same as those with non-SPE counterpartics and
are managed as part of the Firm's overall exposure.

Cither Structured Financings

The Firm invests in interests issued by entities that develop
and own low-income communities {ncluding low-income
housing projects) and entities that construct and own facilities
that will generate energy from renewable resources, The
imerests entitle the Firm to a share of tax credits and fax
losses generated by these projects. In addition, the Firm has
issued puarantees to investors in certan low-income housing
funds, The guaraniees are designed (o refurm an investor's
contribution to & fund and the investor's share of tax losses
and tax credits expected to be generated by the fund The
Firm s alse imvolved with entities designed o provide tax-
efficient yields to the Firm or its clients.

Collateralized Loan and Debe Obligations

CLOs and CDOs are SPEs that purchase a pool of assets
consisting of corporate [oans, corporate bonds, ABS or
syrthetic exposures on similar assets through derivatives, and
issue multiple tranches of debt and equity securities to
inwvestors. The Firm underwrites the secuntics ssued in
certatn CLOY transactions on behall of waffiliated sponsors
and provides advisory services 1o these unaffilinted sponsors.
The Firm sells corporate loans to many of these SFEs, in
some cases representing a significant portion of the total
assels purchased. Althouph not chligated, the Firm penenlly
makes a market in the securities isswed by SPEs in these
transactions and may retain unsold seounties. These benefecial
interests are included m Trading assets and are measured at
fair value

Equity-Linked Notes

ELN transsctions are desgned to provide mvestors with
exposure 1o certain risks related to the specific equity security,
equity index or other ndex. In an ELM transaction, the Firm
tvpically transfers to an SPE either o note issued by the Firm,
the payments on which are linked to the performance of a
specific equity secunty, equity index or other index, or debt
securities msued by other companies and a denvative contract,
the terms of which will relste to the performance of a speaific
cqutly security, equity index or other index These ELN
transactions with SPEs were not consolidated at December
31, 2020 or December 31, 2019,
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Transferred Assols with Continuing Involvemaent
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transferred  assets are camied at fair value prior 1o
securitization, and any changes i far value are recogmzed in
the income statements. The Firm may act as underwniter of
the beneficial mterests ssued by these secunitization vehicles,
for which Investment banking revenues are recogmized. The
Firm may retain interests in the secuntized financial assets as
one or more tranches of the securibzation. These relained
interests are generally carred sl fair value i the balance
sheets with changes in fair value recognized in the income
statements, Fair value for these mnterests is measured wsing
technigques that are consistent with the valuation techniques
applied to the Firm's major categories of assets and liabilities
as deseribed an Notes 2 and 5. Further, as permitted by
applicahle guidance, certain transfers of assets where the
Firm's only continuing invelvément 15 a denvative are only
reported in the following Assets Sold with Retained Exposure
table,

Rutslned Interests Procoads from New Securitization Transactions and Sales of
vt gracs $ 2S5 FIOS 2376 % t Loans
oS e L] L o 5 e 3020 3010 gmE
Teal $ 46 5 ord 3 2at8 £ W o e % B84 § Mass 8 2387
Interesis purchased in the secondary market NPT Sr— 3,348 7Am 2004
e sas rid E_RE ura o I Silns of comonate bans 10 GLO 5PEs’ 761 z ar
Mandrmsment grade ] 81 - —_
Todal £ &1 5 & $ T 5 - 1 Nitn:rl-mrm a}:rmw P lzans o GO anblies ot e
. e ¥ the e ware nct magerial for ol periods prasantsd

Datiembos assals § =5 =3 =5 3@ T Spormomd by ron aTses
Ehariv b Buhalizias =h - - 1dh

P —— The Firm has provided, or otherwise agreed to be responsible
& o Loz Level3 Tosl for, representations and warranties regarding certain assets
[ T e— transferred n secuntization tramsactions sponsored by the
Inveaimer] grace 3 &Y 3 —3 P Firm (see Note 15).
Mot rsnsimant grade [ (4] B3
Tedal % a % 6 % nz Assots Sold with Retained Exposura
Bt purchassd in the dary murkal A At
Irrvesimant grace ] 186 § 16§ Fakd Ducamber 31,  Dwcomnber 31,
Flan-drvasment Grage (53 &2 144 LLE ] 2020 a8
Toaal [l 58 § B 3 e Grvax cinh procesds Fom sale of seels’ 3§ 45,081 § B ER
Darve v avasts 3 35 T Pl i
Dfivaios Eatillies 435 1 438 Assets sold 5 46,609 5 39,137

Crertimdwn assats moognized in the balance

Fakr Value ai Dacambar 31, 201% sihpas 1,592 [T}
3 Lavardl 2 Lavwmd 33 Total Derteatvs Babidites mecngriced i the
thn.“., = _ balance shests ) Ll 162
Rervns et gosce 3 dam % 43 v 1, The tarying vk of fisets deracognined § the licss of B4l spprocimates gross
Man-nmsiment grads & o 103 citsh procesds
Todal £ 407 & 101 5 PR & . . - =
- purchised In the 8 dary maars The Firm enters inlo transactions in which 1 sells securilies,
IS SracE £ 278 8 2% a0 primarily equities, and contemporanecusly  enters  into
Mo howisint ade P s 128 bilateral OTC derivatives with the purchasers of the
Toul § w8 % X3 And sacurities, through which it retains exposure to the sold
Dorbrnthe assals H 337 5 FIE] =T SECUriies,
Dbt istities 144 1 145

17. Regulatory Requirements

R — Rimsickretial eermgagm ko T

O —Coramisiiod marigages knmns

1 Aty ks CLO amuctions e by urrebitec thind pain.

2. Arounts bchics asssts franssrmed by ursltad Selsoe

The previous tables include transsctions with SPEs in which
the Firm, acting as principal, ransferred financial assets with
continwing wolvement and received sales treatment. The
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Regulmtory Capital Framework

The Firm 12 an FHC under the Bank Helding Company Act of
1956, as amended, and s subpect to the repulation amd
oversight of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
Svstem (“Federal Reserve”™). The Federal Reserve establishes
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capital requirements for the Firm, incleding well-capitalized
standards, and evaluates the Firm's comphance with such
capital requirements, The OOC establishes similar capital
requirements and standards for the Fim's U5 bank
subsidiaries mcludng, among olthers, MSENA  and
MSPENA. The regulatory capital requirements are largely
based on the Basel I capital standards established by the
Basel Commitiee on Banking Supervision and also implement
certmn provisions of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Prodection Act.

Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Firm is required 10 maintain minmum rik-based and
leverage-based capital ratios under regulatory  capital
recuurements. A summary of the caleulations of regulstory
capital and RWA follows.

Minmum rsk-based capital ratio requirements apply to
Common Equity Tier | capital, Tier 1 capital and Total
capital (which includes Tier 2 capital) Capital standards
reuare certain adjustments to, and deductions from, capatal
fior purposes of determining these ratios

In 2020, the US banking agencies adopled a final rule,
consistent with an interim final rule that was effective March
31, 20240, altering, for purposes of the regulatory capital nules,
the regquired adoption ume period for CECL. As of Decembsr
31, 2020, the nsk-based and leverage-based capital amounts
and ratios, as well as RWA, adjusted average assets and
supplementary leverage exposure are calculated excluding the
effect of the adoption of CECL based on the Firm’s election
to defer this effect over a [ve-year tramsation period in
agcordance with the interim final rule.

Risk-Based Regulatory Capital Ratio Requirements

AL Al
Dacember 31, Dot 11,
2020 S
Esandarcized
Stancardires  Adwanosd  and Advanosd
Copal buifars

Capital corserdion buer - L5% %
Srrads capilal buffer ("S0E") 5.7% Hith HUA
G-518 capal surcharge 30% 30% 3%
CCyR’ 0% 0% 0%
Capil bufiar eguinanee B.T% 5.5% 5.5
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December 31, Drecamber 31,
2018
Rzl Sfandarises
Mmh'r:i:? Limndamized Advarosd H!ﬂmfdillr'ﬂd
Requbred ratias’
Conaman Equaly T 1
‘cagial ris 4.8% 1% q0.0% 10:0%
Tier 1 capital raio B.0% 14T% 11.5% 11.5%
Torl eagiral rass B.0% 16T%  13.5% 13.5%

1. The ©CyE can be set up to 2 5%, but i cusmently set by e LS banking agancies
EF- ol

2 The capital tuifar cegpueteciant raprasents B smiound of Commen Cquity T 1
capital e Fir et euinkain Scve the minkrn fisk-Bisad capitsl requirermits
n ceder B avokd resbriclione on tha Fary's abllly & maka capial defribalions.

Sandandi e Apprcach capital Buthed rcuinemest i sgual B O s of the SCB,
G50 capkal surcharge and ©Cyl. and the Advanced Appach capital bufer
mgamment i eqal IS the T8% caplal comenation bufer, GRIE capitsl
stk and COyE

Fopquited rlice o gulaiory P Pl B capie bufar
LEEn s

Risk-Weighted Assets

i hi

EWA reflects both the Firm's on- and off-balance sheet risk,
as well as capital charges amributable to the nsk of loss
arising [rom the following:

Credit risk: The fmlure of a borrower, counterparty or
issuer to meet its financial obligations to the Firm,

Market nisk: Adverse changes in the level of one or more
market prices, rates, indices, velatilines, comelations or
other market factors, such as market liquidity, and
Operational nsk: Inadequate or fmled processes or systems,
from human factors or from extemal events (eg., fraud,
theft, legal and compliance risks, evber attacks or damage
1o physical mssets)

The Firm's risk-based capital ratios are computed under Both
(i) the standardized approaches for caleulating eredit risk and
market risk RWA (“Standardized Approach™ and (1) the
applicable advanced approaches for caleulating credit nisk.
market rsk and operational nsk BEWA  CAdvanced
Approach™). The credit nsk RWA caleulations: between the
two approaches differ in that the Swndardized Approach
requires calculation of RWA using prescribed risk weights,
whereas the Advanced Approach wtilizes models to calculate
exposure amounts and risk weights. At December 31, 2020
and December 31, 2019, the differcnces between the actual
and required rato were lower under the Standardized
Approach.

Minmum leverage-based capital requirements mchade a Teer
1 leverage ratio and an SLE. The Firm is required to maintain
a Tier | SLE of 3%, inclusive of an enhanced SLE capital
bufTer of at least 2%.
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The Firm's Regulatary Capital and Capital Ratios

At Decembar 31, 2020
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Certain U5, Bank Subsidiaries” Regubtory Capital and
Capital Ratios

The OCC establishes capatal requirements for the Firm's TS,
bank subsidianes, which as of December 31, 2020 mclude,
amorg others, MSBNA and MSPBNA, and evaluates their
complience with such capital requirements, Regulatory capital
requirements for BMSENA and MSPBNA are caleulated in a
similar manner 1o the Firm™s regulatory capital requirements,
although G-SIB capital surcharge and stress capatal buffer
receurements do not apply to the LS. bank subsadianes,
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The OCC's regulatory capital framework includes Prompt
Comective  Action ("PCA”) standards, mcluding  “well-
capitalized” PCA standards that are based on specified
regulatory capatal ratio mmemums, For the Firm o remain an
FHC, its U5, bank subsicharies must remain well-capitalized
in accordance with the OOC's PCA standards. In addition,
failure by the LS, bank subsidiaries to meel minmum capital
requirements may  result in cenain mandatory  and
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could
hawe a direct materinl effect on the US, bank subsidiares”
anl the Firm s financial staternents.

At December 31, 3020 and Decemnber 31, 2019, M3BNA and
MEPBNA risk-based capital ratios are based on the
Sundardized Approach rules. At December 310 2020, the
risk-hased and leverage-based capital amoums and ratios are
caleulated excludng the effect of the adoption of CECL based
on MSENA'z and MSPBNAs elections 1o defer this effect
over @ five-year transition period,

MSBNA's Regulatory Capital

A1 December 31, 2620
w;l-cupmlqm quui'?d

£ in milons CAmount  Ratio
Rk based capltal T 2
Conmon Equity Tier 1
6.5 % % S 1T 1T %
Tiar 1 capisal o % BS% 1rIM 1T %
Tolal cagital 0.0 % 105% 17882 154 %
Leverage-based caphtal
Tiar 1 bverage 50 % 40 % 8 1T238 101 %
SR _A0% AU 172 BAM
hl' Dﬂ'rb.’ B-I H}'I".'I-

i i w Rw Amour: Radig
Riskbased copiend
Common Equaty Ther 1

capizal B % TO% S 18519 128 %
Tier 1 capital % LRI R ) 106 %
Total cagital Mh% E% I 1859 %
Leverage-based capital
Tior 1 levarage 50 % 40% 5 15000 113%
SR Bl 3.0 % 15,919 ar%
MSPENA's Regulatory Capital

At O a1, 2020

i nEeEt wﬂiquhrﬁ:q REEF Arnpunt Fatio
Risk-bassd capltsl
Comman Equity Tier 1

cagal 6.5 % TO% S BH3 HAI%
Tiar 1 capizal b % BE% B3 Hi%
Tatal cagital 1W0% 108w BINT HA%
Lewerags-hased capltal
Tiar 1 leverage 50 % 40% 8 8213 TN
ELA 6.0 % % 8 S %
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Al Dusconsber 31, 2010
fres— Sy
Resuirsniang e

& ¥ Ry Ani] Rt
Fisk-basad caphal
Comman Equily Ties 1

capial BA % Th% % 7o S4B %
Tiewr 1 caspital B0 % A% TOEE  MA%
Tozal capital D%  I05% B01S 25.0%
Loverage-based capltal
Tisar | larvanrage B0 % 40% § 70 0%
LR Bl % 0% 7062 Bl %

1. Rucuirnd mofiss sin inchishor of ey buers sppbcabis as ol B dae prassetd
Fadiws o rmantsin U bufes widd eesult i mestrichicnm on e abillty 1o make
Capis deinbulons. mchkadng ths payma of diadends

LLS, Broker-Dealer Regubatory Capital Requirements

MS&Co. Regulatory Capital

At A
[liu'mhir H,Hﬂ! was m:gr

[rp— 3 12088 3 13,708
Excnss nat capital $0H 10.A86

M3&Co. s a registered US. broker-dealer and registered
futures commission merchant and, accoedingly, is subjeet to
the minimum met capital requirements of the SEC and the
CFTC, MS&Co. has consistently operated with capital in
excess of its repulatory capital reguirements.

As . an Alernative Net Capital  broker-dealer, and in
accordance with Secunties Exchange Act of 1934 “Exchange
Act™y Rule B5¢3-1, Appendix E, MS&Co. 15 subject o
minimum nel cipital and tentative net capital requirements. In
addition, M3&Co. must notify the SEC if 1ls temative net
capital falls below ceram levels. At December 31, 2020 and
December 31, 2019, MS&Co, exceeded its nmet capital
requarement and had tentalive net capatal in excess of the
minimum and notification requirements

Other Regulated Subsidiaries

MSEE, a registered US. broker-dealer and introducing broker
for the futures business, is subject to the minimum net capatal
requirements of the SEC. M3IF, a London-based broker-
dealer subsichiary, = subject (o the capatal requarements of the
FRA, and the Morgan Stanley Furope Holdings SE Group
(“MSEHSE Group™) 1s subject to the capital requirements of
the Buropean Central Bank., BaFin and the German Central
Bank. MSSB, MSIP and the MSEHSE Group, wcluding
MSESE, a Germany-based broker dealer, have consistently
operated with capital in excess of their respective regulatory
capital requirements.  Addiionally, E¥*TRADE Bank and
E*TRADE Savings Bank are subpect to the capatal
requirements of the OCC, and E*TRADE Secunities LLC is
subject to the minimum net capital requirements of the SEC,
each of these entities has consistently operated with capital in
excess of their respective regulatory capital requirements.

Certain other U3, and non-U.5. subsidianies of the Firm are
subject 1o various securities, commodities and banking
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regulations, and capital adequacy requirements promulgated
by the regulatory and exchange awthorities of the countnies in
which they operate, These subsidiaries have also cansistently
operated with capital in excess of therr local capital adequacy
requIrements.

Restrictions on Payvments

The regulatory capital requirements referred to sbove, and
cerlain covenants contamed in various agrecments governing
indebtedness of the Firm, may restrict the Firm's ability 1o
withdraw capital from s subsidiaries. The following table
represents nel assels of consclidated subsidiaries that may be
restrcted as 1o the pavment of cash dividends and advances 1o
the Parent Company.

Al Al
Dacambar 31, Decamies 31,
£ milirs fra ik ] FI k]
Roasirciad ne; &ssals -1 £0,502 § 213
18. Total Equity

Muorgan Stanley Sharcholders® Equity

Preferred Stock
Ehiaiea
_Dutstarding Carrying Vakis

SInE  Dacamher ¥, HUAREY Ducembee$, Decumin 31
W T 2030 par Bhre 2020 Firi ]
A 4,000 § 28000 % 1400 § 1008
ct 519,392 1,008 408 A0
E 34,500 25,000 262 B2
F 34,000 25,000 550 850
H 52,006 25,000 1,300 1,300
I 40,000 28,000 1,000 1,000
1 60,000 25,000 1,500 1,500
K 40,000 25,000 1,000 1,000
L 20,000 25,000 500 500
M 400,000 1,000 430 =
L 3000 fotie o =
Tatal 3 8750 % B

1 Banided C gratasie siozk is hald 5y MUFG.

The Firm is awthonzed to issee 30 million shares of preferred
stock. The preferred stock has a preference over the common
seck wpon liquidation. The Firm's prefermed stock qualifies as
and is included in Tier 1 eapital in accordance with regulatory
capital requirements (see Mote 17).

On Movember 25, 2019, the Firm announced the redemption
in whele of its cutstanding Series G preferred stock. On
matice of redemption, the amount due to holders of Senes G
Preferred Steck was reclassified 1o Borrowings, and on
January 15, 2020, the redemption settled at the carying value
of 500 million.
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- ' Fondumiption
Sharea Shams Prica .
Herias' * bgusd  per Shafe  par Share Crate
& 44 00 1.001? § 33000 Cumanty redesmabis
G’ i.180, M1 s, 1100 Cumantly redesmabls
E 600 1,000 2,000 Qciober 15, 023
F 4000 100 5,000 darwary 1h, 2054
H ST P 5000 Curenily radesmabis
1 40,000 1 0HH 5,000 Dtibae 15, 2034
4 50,000 5 25,000 Cumantly radasmstis
.3 40,000 1,000 25 000 Aprl 18, 2027
1] 20,000 1003 P daruey 15, A0S
N’ 400,000 M, 1000 Septembar 16, 208
N 000 10 100, D0 Oratohar 2. 2035

1 Hﬂ:hﬂﬂ!*wm Eszh shuiw b & pie wakes of 5001, axgapt

2 Dewidends on Sevies A s based on @ Sating rale, and dvidends ony Serien © angd

L are Eaaad on & o rale. Dividends on ol ofher Saes e Dased on 8 fesd 4o
(p L]

3. Db A ded C dem recheseuilie 81 e erdempson price phis hoeusd and unpasl
dividancts, fegaedides O whelwr dhiiands e actaally declamd. p & b
andeting the date of rearglicn AD other Seres am edeecubls ol the
nedamphion ica phs avy declared and ehpad diadands, up o bl exchidng the
it owd o8 PRSMpECT

& Gebes A wnd C aie cuimently iedeemable Bl e Faey's Oplicn. @ wlols of o pa,
Frem rme 10 fme. Secles H anct J ans cormently endesmabie, and o offer Secied we
redmmrusble. t the Firy's option (i} in whols or i pan. from lma D Gma, on sy
Mmmmwmhummumhmmmmm

ol oyt wihin 50 doys tollswing A neg y cogilnl ealment avend (34
mnnmﬂﬂwﬂ‘
5 Beien C i nonting p i ptock Dividerchy én e Seties C

pne'l'ndslwkmpm m;mmm an angd I dectaad By the
Bosrd i cashe o tha rals of 00% pi sinaam o this bopedaton préfemncs of 51000
il shaie

St L Pivrbiniied Siock wiid sasied tan B-arniliad 25, 20100

Gt M and N Prafeced Sock warm hmued on October 2 3020 an part of the
acquiaiion of [ TRADE

~
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June 25, 2020, the Federal Reserve published summany
results of CCAR and announced that larpe BHCs, including
the Firm, generally would be restricted in making share
repurchases during the third quarter, and on September 30,
2020, the restrictions were extended through the fourth
quarter of 2020, On December 18, 2020 the Federal Reserve
published summary results of the second round of supervisony
siress tests for each large BHC, including the Firm, and
permitted the resumplion of share repurchases v the (st
quarter of 2021,

A portion of commen stock repurchases was conducted under
a sales plan with MUFG, whereby MUFG sold shares of the
Firm’s commaon stock to the Firm, as part of the Firm s Share
Repurchase Program. The sales plan, which was suspended
on Decernber 10, 2020, has no impact on the strategic alliance
between MUFG and the Firm, meluding the joint ventures in
Japan, and is enly intended to mantain MUFG s ownership
percentage below 24.9% in order to comply with MUFG's
passivity commiments w0 the Beoard of Govemnors of the
Federal Reserve System,

Pursuant 1o the Share Kepurchase Program, the Firm
considers, among other things, business segment capital
needs, as well as stock-based compensation and benefit plan
requirements, Share repurchases under the program will be
exercised from time to time at prices the Firm deems
appropriate subject to vanous [actors, including the Firm's
capital position and market conditions. The share repurchases
may be effected through open market purchases or privately
negotited tramsactions, including through Rule 10b3-1 plans,
and may be suspended at any tme. Share repurchases by the
Firm are subject to regulatory non-chjection.

Comman Shares Oulstanding for Basic and Diluted EPS

) e 2020 I
Shams outslanging al b-ﬁ.-ln'rlm of pasring 1,534 1.:'01? ~ 020 Iin 068
Trasury sinck purchiasas ) (136) Waighind mverage common shams ouistarding,
Issuarcs for the acguisition of ETRADE 3 - bamc 1803 1687 1708
e 37 1 Effact of dilutive Siock ogiiors. REUs and PEUE Fal & a0
Shares outstanding at erd of 1 1, Walghtsd avemgn common shares
e ] Zio 2 airg AR SEach v :
diluted 1,624 1,640 1,734

1 'mnmﬁamm-mmm-wmmu-nnﬁmm

P o wiick for Amp Tax a
2 m-mm-MMmmfawm:mumtmw
ssesnd ton RELF comvarsicres
Share Repurchases
$ by iy 2020 2019
Rapurchasss of comman ilock under Ta Firm's

Share Repurchase Program § 1,MT § 5360

The Firm's 2019 Capatal Plan ("Capital Plan™) includes the
share repurchase of up to 56.0 bilhon of outstanding common
stock for the period beginning July 1, 2019 through June 30,
2020, Addiionally, the Capital Plan includes quanerly
common stock dividends of up to $0.35 per share, begmning
with the commaon stock dividend announced on July 13, 2019,
Om March 15, 2020, the Financial Services Forum announced
that each of its eight member banks, including the Firm, had
voluntarily suspended their shate repuschase programs, On

137

Weichiad aver
ol du.lrhdfrml- of
;::.Irr wufw lnurrq.u.&‘iw
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Comprehensive Income {Loss)

I e 2 X
i et bt For | Par Par Accumulated Other Comprahensive Incoma (Loss)
owdam . Stare’  Toial  Share'  Towl  Sham'  Towl
AFS Pardiang
:n'l'm‘d Stock Serkes i s CTh  Securiies arafihee  Ova 1
% 107 § &4 S10d 5 44 Se0m 2 4B Dec 3. 2017 5 (76T B4T1 S {551} 5011560 53,080
100 62 101 L3 100 B Cunvaivn aghs 1

E 1.0 G0 1Fm [H] i 1] for gccounting dhange’ [N] {111} Ry ek AT
F 1719 L1 . s L] .18 58 QL1 curing Tha peniod 1114} {272} 137 148 1205
& - - 124F 24 LBeS a3 Crecarnbees 31, 2010 [BRE {930} {BTE} (2282
H 1,443 80 1418 4 1383 | O during e perd 14} 1,437 B5} (1.550) 06}
1 1584 B4 104 [T T B4 Decamtees 31, 2019 [BET) 207 B44) (1AH) (2708
-’ 423 T 138 M jam DI durieg #a paries 102 4sen ade (1002 63

1463 58 14831 50 1 AG3 59 December 31, 2020 FO(TRE R 1. TET § (403 Smﬂ}_ﬂ 'ﬁl
L L ! 16 3 — = :
w - - i - i - I Amcants aen st mm:-dwmm
Mt = — — — — —_ 2. The s primarly the s%st of tha

Jopls f f

Tousl e 3 i T 258 T oz Il;lﬂlf.mrbmmdﬁﬂuhiﬂﬁ:ﬂmu Gm-:“:'ur.::ﬁ;u;
Common siock % 1.0 ‘%ﬂ_ € 1a0 S2 164 £ LEOD £1.600 Janeary 1, Eﬂmbmﬂuﬂ‘ymmmﬂmmuuh anactmen of

1 Comen bid Prafaied Siock dhalendi hin pighbli quisilicly oikes sih i

 Toon Cut sl Joba At Freen ACKC | & Rstaiced] aamings. primarily celied & the
rwid 0 de'sred b sessts and Kables nesalting from B pecuction i

it
2 Series G pew'srend sinck ews mmdesmed during The st quasie of 2023 Ceddends
mnmmamnmmmnmwmm
o Ak b and are hocdad e 2019
Decien J yeon payable semisnnualy wll Ady 15, 2000, and i neve ppabie

i Serss M owill ba paynbin samennaally begreing on Manch 150 X unil
Sptaimitar 15, 2006, nnl Harmnfer will be piryable

(¥

Hw Corporabe ncore ta e B 21%

Components of Period Changes in OCI

2020

Pra-ax _ Wcoms  Allec-lax Mor-
Gain  TaxBars®  Gain

5. Series M will ba paynbls samiansually begiing on Maech 15, 2021 wnlll March 15, £ miom fLeas) (Previske) (Loas)  intsmesss Met
20T and haraier will ba puesbls quar sy CTA
OCT sty F ™43 ¢ i Mm% 6§ 108
Cumulativa mwmmwm Earnings Related to [T p—— P X . T o
Adaption of Ascounting Updatas T O PR ) R T T @3 0z
&y iy 2030 Change In net usreslioed gaing (lorses) on AFS securites
Finarcial brsinmen - Crndit Losass ] (100} O] activity $2404 5 (308 5 1,836 § — § 1588
Reclasaibed 1o aamrgs {137} E il (106} - 106]
::”‘:" : L = Mot OC1 SZ057 § (47715 1,580 5 = § 1580
Penslon and cther
& by i Pl QO actity ¥ 162 % 3 14 3 — ¥ 1
Revarues from conTacs wih cusiomens 5 (32} Riaclsssitnd in samings. 23 15 18 - 12
Darathes ard becdgirg—largeied mpromners o et CRE| 3 185 § (e ] — § 148
Scipurkting I badghg éahes L] Changa In et DVA
::::?u"climﬂnﬂ'.lm lx afees rom ADCH i-:,::l QC1 sty 1088 $ 1T 5 (048] 5 (26] $01,022)
= z ey Racletaitad 15 aamirgs L3 13} Fil - Fil
e Hms o soems (0 snees)
1 Ot ichadis thin acdpson of ralated b FRecognisnn and
Midauramant o Financisl Actts and Feinela) it doltir Bian i previsen 2018
amund presanting remalizad 00 in D21 which the Flem presiously adophed) and Predax Incoms Tax Aferinx Hor-
Darecegniion of Monfinancial Assats. Thae impact of thass adoplions an Fistained Gair  Banafi Gain  conrolleg
AT Wit D08 Sk S e [Lomsy  {Provision)  fLoss)  Intenests  Mat
CTA
OC1 acthity 5 B S M5 35 s (g
Reclassified o samirgs = - - = -
Mt Ol 5 B 5 13} 5 as 11 5 &5
Change In net unrealized gains (losses) on AFS sacurities
01 actvity %1588 § (3rAp % n2s § = § 11
Freciessiied tosamings (103} 25 (7} — (T8}
Fetl G 51485 § TR BN ETE ] — § 1137
Pansion snd other
QG actiity 5 (98} 5 %5 NS - 5 (13
Reclansifing 10 samrirgs 12 18k s — X
Mot CoCI i 8 s 0 8 5§ =5 s
Change Innat DVA
OO sty 52081} § 533 5 {18} 5 (B S 56
Reclssaifed o samirgs ] ] i) ] - -]
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2018 19. Interest Income and Interest Expense
Pre-tax  Inoome Tax Aterdax  Mone
Caain ar conirolling
S mion flass} (Provison) doss) Intemsis Bal e e 2020 205 HIa
CTA Irterest incoms
G acity 5 s (M) 5 ()5 245 (14} rmairi] e $ 24T 3 2175 5 L4
ot i b R . e WL SO Loars 4 AEl a2
Kt OCH A (198 40 S 24 % (114} Snourities purhassd undar agresmEs o
Changs in net unrealized gains (losses) on AFS securities feuall and Sec.riie borrowad 1) 3.48% 1976
OC1 ety 5 (M) 5 B S (268) % — § [268) Trading assats, na; of Trading min1 2,447 2855 2962
Raclassied o maming 8y 2 &) T ) Customer recHvabls and Ot 1,518 3.8 3831
Mot OCH 5 [5d) 3 8 5 ETE] 1 — 3 IITE Tatal Interest incoma £ 0982 & i ogd £ o1ddee
Pension and other IR S pinad
QC medvity 5 156 % (8 16 5§ -5 118 o i $ P35S 1885 5 1S
Fieciassidied i aemings 26 8 " T i Berring 1 G052 B3
Kot OCE 3 183 5 (451§ 137§ — 3 147 i i e -
Change in ns DVA = repuechasns ard Sacuribe h:-ur'-md|IT 343 2.609 1858
O mciaty 1547 5 (472) & 1475 5 61 %1412 Customer payables and Crher* 1,291 .mea 1502
Fenclassitiad 1o samings 56 (14 & - & Tatal interest sxpense L3 38p S 124 S 0088
Hut OCE §2001 % ';'45&:,"'5"'5'_5.1'}' 5 B3 S 1464 et Irtnrest § 633 3 454 5 S0

1. Exhusion & curadatin adstimenty related b e sdoption ol caain weesy
updates in FE Refer o e praviogs A | Ot Comyge fneoms
(o) tabien fon frthasr i foemation

Cumulative Foraign Currency Transiation Adjustments

At At
Decambaer 31, Deocsmber 11,
_§ i e Fir] 018

Assocated with net insesTents in B
subsiciaries with & ronL05. dolar

furional curmancy 5 {14085 £ ARy b
Hadges, nat of e (1] LT
Todal 5 {795) § {57}

g vlus of PRl Invesinients in fon-
5. dollar uncioral cumancy subsidianes

subjes 1o hadges 3 15,746 § 13,4440

Cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments include
gains or losses resulting from translating foreign cumency
financial  statements from  therr respective  functional
currencies 1o U.S, dollars, met of hedpe gains or Josses and
related tax effects: The Firm uses foreign currency contracts
to mangge the cumency exposure relating to i net
investments in non-U05  dollar  functional cumency
subsidiaries and determines the amount of exposure to hedze
o a pre-tax basis The Fimm may also elect not to hedge its
net investments in certain foreign operations due to market
conditons or other reasons, includimg the availabiliy of
Vanous CUmency contracts at acceptable costz Information
relating to the effects on cumulative foreign curmency
translation adjustments that resubted from the translation of
foreign cumency financial statements and from gains and
losses from hedges of the Firm's nel investments i non-LLS.
dollar functional curmency subsadianes is summarized in the
previous table.

1 ke fai piad of Sl s boimsems

2 ‘rchgiey interesd ‘rors Cadh and candy squivalints

3. mchdes fnes reosd on Seourties oaned

& ‘mclides fams recabmd fom peima bokecage customens for siock koan iranesacion
antanad il A0 coed askamans shon poslions

Interest income and Interest expense are classified in the
income statements based on the nature of the instrument and
related market conventions. When included as a component of
the instrument”s fair value, interest is included within Trading

revenues of Investments revenues, Ciherwise, 1t 15 included
within Inferest income or Interest expense.

Accrued Inborest
At Al
Docomber 31, Decsiber 110,
& mifions o 2080
Cusionise ang ol ey bl 3 1852 § LRE1
Custonssr and oder peyablas AL ]

20. Deferved Compensation Plans and Carried
Interest Compensation

Stock- Based Compensation Plans

Cerain current and former emplovess of the Finm participate
in the Firm's stock-based compersation plans. These plans
include RSUs and P3Us, the demils of which are further
cutlined below.

Stock-Based Compansation Expanga

5 1 T 2020 019 _El_
RS 3 1970 5 1064 5 a2
Sinck oprioers i3 g =
Pl 142 -] 28
Totud $ 1312 5 1as3 3 a0
Rt v v s s iw

1, ehuctad in totel dojiveis b stk baked comp i B b i) i
Jarwsary of S following yes Bat doss col contan @ fules serdcs e sment
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Tax Banefit Related to Stock-Based Compansation Expanse

20
270 %

2018 2B
243 % 1=

& iy ity
Tax barad’ %

1 Enshuden iwome bix Crnbgenies malated 5 gk dhaos based iveand

Morgan Stanley

Vested and Unvested R3U Activity

o ey & milons Sharsi
RESUs a1 Bgirring of periag 65 5 4438
Unrecognized Compensation Cost Related to Stock-Based Aimancad o 210
Awards Granted Corvarsions 0 common siook {25) 1381
A Fotinkd Ll L=
n';-“?m, RS ot and of perod’ 0§ A5.52
Sltwloed 20 Apgrecaln miinsi: valun ol REUS & e of paoe
To b recognired in: {cxliam in mllicrs) ¥ 4,087
021 s 181 Waighted ovemmge award dats fair vabkus
2053 e RESLi awnnoe i 2010 5 4308
Tharaahsr n RSt pwmrces o 2018 B 40
Todal 5 570 1 A Dacacsbar 312000, the waightad dwerage reriining tery unsl delary for e
=3 RS ws approokmately 1 2 yaars
1. Amoisds do oot chides cancellshions, soosleraiore, ‘chie sdasiments o fal
ok o cuta v, ¢ 2520 parmarca yaar compemeton vk & Unwseted RSU Acthily
In commection with awards under s stock-hased — 0 o
compensation plans, the Firm s Elulhclm_:-:d ter issue shares of " ‘::'Ig:“
common steck held in trensury or newly issued shares. st i e Bhares  Fair Vakeo
Uirvmstng FSLIs a7 beginring of period 5 ddB
The Firm generally uses treasury shares, if available, 1o Aamrced Y s504
deliver shares to employees or emploves stock trusts and has Visind 24 PYet
an ongoing repurchase authorization that includes repurchases Foetaited ) 4820
in  connection  with  awards under i3 stock-based Urvosted RESUS at end of pariod’ M s 5127

compensation  plans Share repurchases by the Firm are
subject o regulaton non-chjection.

Common Shares Available for Fulura Awards under Stock-
Basad Compensation Plans

A
Decoenbor 31
i i 2020
Elams 110

i

See Mote 18 for additional information on the Firm's Share
Repurchase Program.

Hestricted Stock Units

R5Us are subject 1o vesting over time, generally one 10 seven
yvears from the date of award, contingent upon continued
employment and subject to restrictions on sale, tansfer or
assignment until conversion o common stock. All or a
portion of an award may be forfeited if employment is
terminated before the end of the relevant vesting peniod or
canceled afler the relevant vesting penod 1n certain situalions.
Recipients of RSUs may have voling rights, at the Firm’s
discretion, and generally receive dividend equivalents f the
awards vest

Diacember 2020 Form H-E

1. Usrested RSLis represent aeaids whirn sncipients Tiave yisl 10 sals’y sither the
et s i WS B (iitnrr. gk e is

Fair Valua of REU Activity

£ in milione 2020 HHS FOE]
Corvarsions 1o cominon Sioak § 1298 %5 w407 £ 150
el 1,249 1392 1504

Performance- Based Stock Unils

PSUs will vest and convert 1o shares of comman stock only if
the Fim satishies predetermmed performance and market-
based conditions over a three-vear performance period The
number of PSUs that will vest ranges from 0% 10 150% of the
target award, based on the extent to which the Firm achieves
the specified performance goals. One-half of the award will
be earned based on the Firm's average return on equuty,
excluding certamn adjustments specified in the plan terms
(M3 Adjusted ROE™). The other half of the award will be
eamed based on the Firm's tofal sharcholder retum, relative to
the total shareholder return of the S&P 5300 Fmancials Sector
Index ("Relative M5 TSR™), PSUs have vesting, restriction
and cancellation provisions that are generally similar to those
of KSUs. At December 31, 2020, approcamately 3 million
PELs were outstanding

P5U Fair Value on Award Date

_m20  HMe 0l

§ 5705 § 4130 § BERd
55.34 FLy- B 21

Relatdve ME TSR
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The Relative MS TSR fair values on the award date were 21. Employee Benefit Plans
estimated using a Monte Carlo smulation and the following
ASEUMPIOTS, Pension Plans
Maonte Carle Simulation Assumptions Components of Net Periedic Benaflit Expanse (Income)
RikFree  SiskPre Comelaton ConinFirs
R Interas Rats Volamy  Cosficmr: 5 mfons frarrid] 2019 2018
Award Year Sardce cost, bera'is samed cunieg tha
i L] e L Intarws? cont banad: ’ 1: : 1:1:: : 1::
2019 8% 265 % 055 OO0 PR g o
018 23% AN P Expacisd ratum of plar asses (L] (114 {11
Mt amariralion of ploe decdce cosl (o) 1 1 (43
3 E Mat amorization of aciuanal las 6 13 25
The resk-free interest mte was determmed based on the vields v e "EE;";' T mI Bt o

available on US. Treasury zero-coupon issues. The expected
stock pnee volathty was determined wsing  historical
volatility, The correlation coelficient was developed based on
historical price data of the Firm and the S8 500 Financials
Sector Index. The model uses an expected dividend yield
equivalent to reinvesting dividends

Deferred Cash-Based Com pensation Plans

Deferred cash-based compensation plans generally provide a
return o the plan participants based upon the performance of
each participant’s referenced investments.

Dafarrad Cash-Based Compensation Expanse

§ oy g 2020 ok 2018

Dafarmwd cash-basid awands $ 1263 5 13232 5 104
Falum on refsrecced inveiinese i Bah [ L) (L 1iH]
Toasl § 2418 5 1878 5 1128
_Rasromact-sigible sairds’ ¥ 145 155 18

1 Inchdad in jotel epeern B SeTemed sanky e comparmation anbicipated 13 be
mawied i Janusry of tha following yew Bal doss not conteen 8 fules sereics
T

Carried Interest Compensation
The Firm generally recognizes compensation expense for any

portion of camed interest (both realized and unrealized) that
i allocated to employees,

Carried Interest Compensation Expansa

2020
2158 §

201p
H34 §

01
156

§ i A

Exparias 3

141

Certain current and former U5, employees of the Firm and ats
17,5, affiliates who were hired before July 1, 2007 are covered
by the U5, pension plan, & non-contributory defined benefit
pension plan that i gualified under Section 401(a) of the
Internal Revenue Code (17,5, Qualificd Plan™), The U 5.
Jualified Flan has ceased future benefit accruals.

Unfunded supplementary plans *Supplemental Plans™} cover
certamn executives. Libilities for benelits pavable under the
Supplemental Plans are accrued by the Firm and are funded
when paid The Morgan Stantey Supplemental Executive
Retirement and Excess Plan ("SEREF™), a non-contributony
defimed benefit plan that is not qualified under Section 401(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code, has ceased future benefit
accruals,

Certain of the Firm's non-L1LS. subsidiaries also have defined
benefit pension plans covering their elipible current and
former employees.

The Firm's pension plans generally provide pension benefits
that are based on each employee’s years of credited service
and on compensation levels specified in the plans.

Rollforward of Pre-tax ADCI
Pension Mans

01 Mg M2 HAG HE
Baginning balance § RIS TS N
M i (Jeris) " (112} 158
Prior senvice credit (cost) 12 - 118}
Amorization of price senvios cos! {crecit) 1 1 {1}
AmaraEation of ral lag Fal 13 25
C.Inngnlrwn-unl.md In G 186 [,EI;} Il@
Ering balance 8 s s wrns o

The Firm generally amontizes into net penodic benefit
expense (income) the unrecognized net gains and losses
expecding 0% of the preater of the projected benefit
ohblization o the market-related value of plan assets. The LS.
pension plans amortize the unrecognized net gams and losses
over the average life expectancy of parikipants. The
remaining plans generally amortice the unrecogmized net

December 2020 Form 10-K
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gains and logses and prior service credit over the average
remaining service pertod of active participants.

Waighted Average Assumplions Used to Detormine Mot
Periodic Benefit Expense (Incoma)

20 010 2018
Cuszount rale 1% A0 JdE%N
Expaciad long-temi rate of retum on plan
ahsatE W% 35N 350N
Rate o (Ul compariation inomases 328 % 334 % 333 %

The accounting for pension plans  volves  cerain
assumptions and estimates. The expected ong-term rate of
return  for the TLS. Cualified Plan was estimated by
computing a weighted average of the underlving long-lerm
expected retuns based on the myestment managers’ target
allocations.

Benelit Obligotion and Funded Status

Raollforward of the Benefit Oblgation and Fair Valua of Plan
Assals

Parsian Pl

S TN T
FRollfcewnrd of banafit obdigation

B chilgation at baginring of year -1 4008 § 1561
Sarvion cosl 1w 18
rianast covel i 135
Actuarial Inss (gain}’ 2 it
Plan anvendments 2 -
Flan saldamens 2 (%
Benals pak 222 {199
ke " 1"
Banefit obligation at end of year % 4334 4G
Rolffeeward of fale value of plan nsssis

Fair valun of plan assets a2 beginning of pear § 3883 % 3,200
Bctual e oo plar assels B it
Enployar corimiaiion ] 38
Barats pakd 223 {18
Plan sattemants 2 (%
Othwr’ 3l 15
Fair valun of plan assets atendof year  § 3,835 § A b3
Funded jurfunded) status P [343) § sy
A i gnlzed in the kel shests

Asuain & 28y £ a8
Linbiltins Lokl bl
Mot smourt reeogrined ] [345] 5 (473)
1 Pricsarily rnfects e gt of yaor-over-ymar discount rate Shaticrn

i inchides ‘orsign mumncy enchange rain changes
Accumulated Banefit Obligation

Ll Al
December 31, Dacsmbar 31,

2 dry ey 202 2018
Parsion plans $  43m g 4pn

Discember 2020 Form H-E

Morgan Stanley

Pansion Plans with Benefit Obligations in Excess of the Fair
Value of Plan Assots

AL AL
Dacsdmbaer X1, Dacambaer 31,
ETo] faiiad 020 2018
Progacied berae obligation 5 T 8 Ear
Aceurmdassd banafil shlgadion B3E B34
Fair vahin of plan assais EL Lo

The pension plans included in the table above may differ
based on their funding status as of December 31 of each year,

Waighted Average Assumptions Used to Determine Benaefit
Obligation

Persaon Plans
- a0 0m
o M, o at,
For] ThiE
CHuczand s 243% 308 %
Rt = futuntn coripiniiton amins 8% 3

The discount rates used to determine the benefit obligstion for
the U5 pension plans were selected by the Firm, in
consultatnon with its independent actuary, wsing a pension
discount yield curve based on the characteristics of the plans,
each determined independently. The pension discount yield
curve represents spot discount yields based on duration
mmplicit in a representative broad-based As-rasted corporate
bond universe of high-gquality fixed income investments. For
all non-1.5, pension plans, the Fim se1 the assumed discount
rates based on the natre of labilines, local economic
environments ard available bond indices.

Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets

i miT Lareml 1 Lovel 2 [ Toral
o — e
Cash ard cash equivalents’ ] 4 % -4 e | L]
uliﬂ..l'i'jﬂ bt 1,038 b — 3380
Corporate and other debi—CD0 B & e 'l
Dwrivatve contracts — 2 —_ 2
Crhar invasimednia - - 3] Ll
Crhar mecatbles” —_ 53 —_ 51
Tatal § 3042 % o o3 1§ 3ARY
Azaeln Meazured ot HAY
Conwmircied rust furds:

Wersy naarke 48
Foarmign funcs:

Fisnd incame 168

Liquidicy 54

Targeted cash fow 250
Tatsl § 52
Liahilities
Othar payables’ = 9 - 09
Totsl Habikies. § - (19} % - (18}
Falr value of plan assats E] ﬁ
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Al Decanibr 31, 2018

& &y g Laval 1 Lewsl 2 Lawad 3 Taital
Ansnts
Cash and cash aguivalers 5 15 - % e 3
uﬁiﬂh o 2558 202 - 2980
Corpomts and ahar deki==CO0 - ] - t
[l g TR —_ —_ 53 83
CHPer recabvishies' — 4 — AR
Todal $ 2661 F 3D % 53 § A0ex
Agaots Moasured st NAY
Commingled sl furds
Wianey mane: 1
Forsign fands:
Fius oo 136
Licuidity 3
Tasgaied cash fow 240
T -
Linbdlthes
Dwnrivitvs contracts. = ith = i)
Ctber payabins' — i) — i52)
Total lkabiiides H — 5 (53 § — 5 (53}
Fair value of plan saasts § 3583

1 Cash wwl cash sgswslanis. olfiee recenvables and oihes payables s valeed W
thesr camying walis, which appiosieates faic valus

Raollfarward of Level 3 Plan Assels

& iy vy 0L g

Babarces af begirring of padad 5 hi % 48
Raakreg ard wnmalined gairs (lases) B 3
Prirdh salns And stk i 2
Balance at #nd of pericd g B 5 &1

There were no transfers between levels durmg 2020 and 2009

The U5, Qualified Plan's assets represent 87% of the Fim's
total pension plan assets. The U5, Cuahiied Plan uses a
combination of active and risk-cortrolled ficed income
investment strategies. The fixed income asset allocaton
consists primarily of fixed income secuntics and related
derivative instruments designed to approximate the expected
cash Mlows af the plan’s Labalities in order 10 help reduce plan
exposure to interest rate vartation and 1o better align assets
with the obligation. The longer-duration ficed income
allocation 1= expected 10 help protect the plan’s funded status
and maintain the stabality of plan comtnbutions over the long
un. The investment portfolio performance 5 assessed by
comparing actusl investment performance with changes m the
estimated present value of the US. Cualified Plan's bemefit
oblhigation.

Dervative instrumemts are permitted in the US. Qualified
Flan's investment portfolio only to the extent that they
comply with all of the plan’s investment policy guidelines and
are consistent with the plan®s risk and return objectives.

As a fundamental operating principle, any restnctions on the
underlying assets apply to the respective derivative produgt.
This includes percentage allocations and credit quality.
Derivatives are used solely for the purpose of enhancing

143
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Morgan Stanley

investment retums in the underlying assets and not 1o
crrcumvent portfolio restnctions.

Plan assets are measured at fair value using valuation
technigques that are consistent with the valuation techniques
applied to the Firm’s major categones of assets and abilihes
as descnbed i Netes 2 and 5. OTC denvative contracts
consist of investments in interest rate swaps and total retum
swaps. Chher nvestments consist of pledped msurance
annuitly contracts held by non-U.5 -based plans. The pledged
insurance annuity contracts are valped based on the prem um
reserve of the msurer for a guarantee that the insurer has
given to the emplovee benefit plan that approximates fair
value. The pledged insurance armuity contracts are
categorized in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Commngled trust funds are privately offered funds regulmed,
supervised and subject to penodic examination by a US

federal or state agency and available to nstitutional chents.
The trust must be mamtained for the collective investment or
reinvestment of assets contnbuted 10 @ from LLS. tax-
quahfred employes benefit plans mantamed by more than one
employer or controlled group of corparations. The sponsor of
the commingled trust funds values the funds based on the fair
value of the underlving securities. Commngled trust funds
are redeemable at NAV at the measurement date or in the near
future,

Some non-U S -based plans hold foreign funds that consist of
invesiments in foed meome funds, tanget cash fow funds and
liguidity funds. Fixed income [unds invest in andividueal
securities quoted on a recognized stock exchange or traded in
a regulated market Certain fixed income [unds aim io
produce retuns consistent with certain Financial Times Stock
Exchange mdexes. Target cash flow funds are designed 1o
provide a series of fixed anmml cosh fows achieved by
investing in government bonds and derivatives, Liguidity
funds place a high prnonty on capital preservalion. stable
value and a high liquidity of assets, Foreign funds are readily
redeemable at MAY

The Firm generally considers the NAY of commingled trust
funds and foreipn funds provided by the fund manager to be
the best estimate of fair value

Expected Contributions

The Firms pelhcy is to fund at least the amount sufficient to
meet  minimum  funding  requirements  under  applicable
employee benefit and tax laws. At December 31, 2020, the
Firm expected 1o contribute approxmately 550 million to s
pension plans in 2021 based upon the plans’ current funded
status and expected assel returm assumplions for 2021,

387/424
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Expecied Future Banafit Paymants 22, Incoime Taxes
i At o P::sm Components of Provision for income Taxes
izt 153
2022 o o) metna 020 ;B A
2023 101
2024 163 e
2028 171 Faataal 1,844 ar3 5 B25
R0 P Siate and looal 55 i al r
Han-L5.:
UK 335 185 324
401(k}) Plans s i T =
3o T Horg Keeg w2 =
Euparas $ 3% a0 5w __ Ot o e
Tatsl $ 3485 5 1850 3 0500
U5 employees mecting certamn eligibility requitements may
participate in the Firm's 401(K) plans. "::"’
Morgan Stanley 401(k) Plan i ¥ oy ey AW
Siaia ane local ) 45 -]
Ehgible employess recewe discretionary 401(k) matching Herelh
cash contributions as determined anmally by the Firm. For S @ ] L
2000, 2012 and 2008, the Fim matched employee e pck 1 n ]
contributions up to 4% of eligible pay, up to the TRS limit. ;“:"“““' o= 2
Matching contributions were invested among available funds ] 12:] - ::" —
according to each participant’s mvestment direction on file. = — ey
Eligible emplovees with eligible pay less than of equal 1o _ O $ 3238 5 2hd 2 2380
S100,000 also recerved a fixed contribution under the $0H(k) wmm*mﬂmm . - o

Plan equal to 2% of ehgible pay. Transition contributions
relating 1o acquired entities or frozen emplovee benefit plans
are allocated to centain eligible employees. The Firm match,
fixed conribution and transition contrbution are included in
the Firm "z 401{K} expense,

Non-U.5. Defined Contribution Pansion Plans

3 iy AT 2020 2010 2018
Exparss 5 130 § 121 § 116

The Fim maintains separate deflined contnbution pension
plans that cover ebpble emplovees of certmn non-US.
subsidiaries. Under such plans. benefits are  genemally
determined based on a fixed rate of base salary with certain
vestng requirements.

Diecember 2020 Form H-E

1 Orther Mean L5 b privendens for 3029, 2009 aecd J008 pricuaily inchode Dracil. da
Hathuar oy, anc ina

Reconcillation of the U.5. Federal Statutory Income Tax Rata
to the Effective Incom Tax Rate

e 19 2a

W% fedeml nbuiony incoma tax mis M. 0% 200 %
LILE. slate ard local incone laxes. pel ol
U8, fadaral incon L berais .8 2.2 2.0
Dionmentic lax cradith and tax eyl ncins 0.8} {1.68) .3
Mor-Ll 5. asmings 1.7 {08y 13
Emjayes shan-baiad mwards 0.7 {11 {1.5)
Crihar 0.7} 114 B8]
Effnciive income (o rate 218% TR MO
— e i,

144

38

The increase in the Frm's elfective tax rale in 2020 compared
with the prior vear is primanly due to the higher level of
carnings and lower net discrele tax benefits. Im 2020, net
discrete tax benefits were 3122 million, primarily related 1o
the conversion of emplovee share-based awards

The Firm™s effective tax rates for 20019 and 2018 include net
discrete tax benefils of 5475 million and 5368 million,
respectively, primanly associated with remeasurement of
reserves and related inferest as a result of new information
pertaining  to the resolution of multi-junisdicion  tax
examnations, as well as benefits related fo conversion of
employee share-based awards The fourth quarters of 2019
and 2018 include net discrete tax benefits of 5158 million and
3111 million, respectively
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Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

December 31, Deosmbar 31,
Ll AZ0RD: 2R
Gross defarred tnx assets
Iat opsnting loss and tan omdit
CEITraArds 3 330 5 Fol)
Employas compansation snd bere® plars 2240 075
Alizwancs for credil lsses and othar
TREATYER GER i
Vishoation alirmniony. fvesimems inhd
A 10 3sd
Criar 43 —_
Tosdl defsered Laix axsaby 3,309 3,048
Dralarrad [4x assels valuat i 236 158
‘Dalarmd tax assets ater vakason tkowsnce § 2073 % )
Gross deforred tax labiiites
Eied masniz 1,130 o1
Irsangbiag, goodwill end other 1,156 411
Tosal dedeered tax iahililies 5 Z2BE & B35
Bla! delames tax assats ] TAT & 0,458

Deferred income taes reflect the net tax effects of temporary
differences between the fimancial reporting amd tax bases of
aszets and latalities and are measured wsing the emacted tax
rates and laws that will be in effect when such differences are
expected to reverse,

The Firm believes the recognized net deferred tax assets (afer
valuation albowance) ot December 31, 2020 are more likely
than not to be realized based on expectations as to {uture
tazeable income in the jurisdictions in which it operates,

The eamings of certam foreign subsidiaries are indefinitely
reinvested due o regulatony and other capital requirements in
foreign  jurssdictions. As of December 31, 2020, the
urnrescogzed deferred tax hability atnbatable 1o ndefinnely
remnvested camings is immaterial.

Rellfarward of Unrecognized Tax Bonafits

& ¥ mnne 20 a1 2018
Bakirce a% beginring of pariod -1 THE 5 1080 5 1,554
Increase haked on ax posdioes releied i

the curmert pasring 139 5T B3
Incraass hased o Wx posiions releied o

T o 4718 B )
Iniraasa hased oft the soquisiion of

ETRADE 26 - -—

Decraass basad of tae poallishs miaed
e e {287} L] (4}

= relatae bo 485 WP taming

anthorities {3y [ (138
Dwmomasss miated (o apss of sl of
mbatoes UL N I
Balance at erd af panad § 7Es § JhB 5 1000
Mol urmecogized bin bereis’ % 663 5 BD 5 TR

1. Rspmsant anding ureccgniced s bena'ts adjested for the impact of B fedenal
Eiaro il alabA Dt Sl ity g fnd fimign Lk oSt
ofests f mcegniced thass nef bensfls sould Tyvombly mpstt ®a aflscies b
ratn i future i

It 15 reasonably pessible that significant changes in the
balance of unrecognized tax benefits may occur within the
next 12 months. At this time, however, it 1s not possible 1o
reasonably estimate the expected change 1o the tolal amount

Morgan Stanley

of unrecopnized tax benefits and the mpact on the Firm's
effective tax rate over the next 12 months.

Interest Exponsa {Benafit) Associated with Unrecognized Tax
Benefits, Net of Fedaral and State Income Tax Benefits

B mollons . o L |
Recogrizsd bn oo satemens 3 58 5 a5 ()
EETE 4% o o pliod. L] 52 il

Interest and penaltics related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized as a component of the provision for income taxes.
Penaliies related to unrecognized tax benefits for the years
mentioned above were immaterial.

Earliest Tax Year Subject to Examination in Major Tax
Jurisdictions

Jurisdictian Tax Yo
133 2017
My York Stane and Haw Yok City A1
Harg Kang 2014
LK it
Japan 216

The Firm 15 under continuous examination by the [RS and
ciher tax authoritics in cerain countries, such as Japan and
the UK. and in states and localitses in which 11 has sgenificant
business aperatians, such as New Tork.

The Fim believes that the resolunon of these tax
examinations will not have a matenial effect on the annul
financial statements, although a resolution could have a
matenal impact i the income statement and on the effective
tae rate for any period in which such resolutions occur

13, Segment,
Information

Geographic  and  Revenue

The Firm strectures it segments pnmarily based upon the
nature of the financial products and services provided 1o
cistomers and itz management organization. The Firm
provides a wide range of financial products and services to its
customiers in each of its business sepments: Institutionsl
Secunties, Wealth Mamagement and Investment Management
Feor a further discussion of the business segments, see Note 1.

Fevenues and expenses directly associated with each
respective business segment are included i determining its
operating results. Other revenues and expenses that are mot
directly atnibwtable 10 8 particular business segment are
generally  allocated based on each basiness segment's
respective net Tevenues, mon-interest expenses or  other
relevant measures,

As a result of revenees and expenses from Iransactions with
other operating segrments bemg treated as Wransactions with
external parties for purposes of segpment dizclosures, the Firm
includes an Intersegment Elimmations category to reconcile
the business segment results to the consolidated results

145 December 2020 Form 10-K
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o 5 iy miRn ] e I VE Toial
ki 5 W " vE Toml Invmsimeni barking § 6088 § 475 3 — § B} 5 fa482
Iveatmace banking $7704 5 549 3 — § (333 T.eT8 Tredirg 11,198 il 5 BE 11,581
Trasing 13,108 B4 (34} T6 13,992 e il G 142 ! ohia e Ax
[y 166 12 #08 A a8 Commiasions and fam AT 1A - {25y 4100
Cotmissions and fess’ 2998 224 1 pTE) A8S AN A AN WADN 2AEN (1) ALER
Assat managemen’ 481 10088 013 (1A7) 142w L i R, . ) -
e o ey (39} 9 110 Totml non-inierest eevenuas 21,088 125965 2717 {465y 36,301
Total ror-irsres! s 23,658 15033 L7409 (555 44,835 Intarest incoma sz bA58 ikt (6} 13852
R MGG A3 W M iR L ] arre 1,20 0 (MO0 10,086
Infurast pansa 2,88 143 2 (448 2848 PG Inlammat iB08) 4.2 E & 008
[ —— 3200 4,022 {15 16 #3911 Mot revenuss 20502 B17.342 3 24B F Mﬂt 340007
Hut ravenuns 325,048 512,055 § 2734 § (339) § 40,108 il g B
hm'fnmmrinzunu pLiC 1] 6260 5 4521 3 dbd § &) 510,257
ogeratons ba ircome e
s S 0151 54387 5 BT0 5 10 $ 144 b“"‘“ﬁ"’"‘“" AT A oW R @) el
Provision for income taxes 2,040 1026 1M @ e ﬂ:ﬁ'ﬂ‘“"““”“ 5030 3472 3 i) B.Ba7
Inconne fron Garlinuing
ocpmrusons 711 3361 EW IR TRT m:’:ﬂﬂmrmL
Encama (s} from nat af ineane laves (8 = 2 — L]
wmm‘lm. = = = = = st iez o 5024 3472 03 & 83
HarL incorn T M e LIRS L ooy Cosretis 18 - 17 - 136
Pt income apdicabis o et Incoms soelicalin o
rerenrroling irlenists a5 - -7 - 183 Margan Sia S 4008 § 3472 & ATE % B8 A48
Mt incomm e
Margan $lan § 7042 5§ 3381 § 618 § 8 % 10,958 VE - idirmagmesn Clamenaons
1. Subsiaoialy all reesams o om contracts sdh asiceers
1S 2 The fouth guuier of Z010 inckeed specific seveeance-relaed cosls of
i m Wil ™ ¥ e appreaimatsly S1TR milion, wiich ae inchided in bt
B e e e e T rpairiciic i ha Wcors datemant Thids (20l dwins ricSided 0 e Buiissa
lrrvas imard bankdng $ 6004 § B05 8 — & BB E AR sagrents approsimately as follows insbilufionsl Securites $104 milion Veall
Trading 10318 4 @ S 11085 mugums:? o and ivesstrent Mandgement 511 miion
Invesimarts. 3 121 — LK
e . = 4 iz i Detall of Investment Banking Revenues
Commisson: and fees 7484 1736 1 93y Abig
Adsat i Agiren 413 10456  2E (158) 1308 60 mmone D 018 2018
?il_‘ﬂ; . HZ B-lb [:Eh____[_ﬂ_ - _BE Insiinwtional Secunilies—Advisony S2008 321168 S24M
Tokal por-aieres] P 19906 13.5I6 3.?‘39' pdEsy  A8THE instivsional Sacuntias==Lrcnrwriirg 5,198 3,618 3,683
Arrimrast incoene 12,153 BART 1) (B2 17000 S h'ml:m:mlblnhng LS froem
Intmrest axparsa IR T SERNLSE WA Sy Ll T
Mot intenest 430 4222 (28} 18 4,654
Not revanues £20,288 517,737 § 1763 § [467) % 41,418 Trading Revenuas by Product Type
mﬁmﬁ- § 1 mofig 20 219 2003
X 55400 54832 § o8y §  (6) S 11,000 Iniane s i § 2878 § 2773 5 DEGE
Privdsion fae incoms iaaes e 163 (2) 204 Forsign sxchangs 902 o8 G914
[rr—r— mr:h.lr'p Enulty seauriy and ingax’ 6,208 5245 BASF
cpmeations a.1rn 1 o2 4 G
Inconne (knss} from " Commoity Ard adher 1,77 (] IR
iruad o, Erndit LA 13 10
B Ll ) . N V.. . Tatal 3 13992 5 11095 5 11851
Pl incoama 4.5 by T () G2
biat Incoma applicabie 1o 1 Diviciend ivcom is invckuded within sty secuily and indas commcts
rarcorrlling imenas 123 — 3 - L] : F X h A
Het Inoome o The previous table summanzes realized and unrealized gains
Mergan Haniey A0 s s TN (0% 0MT and losses, from derivative and non-derivative financial

Diecember 2020 Form H-E

instruments, included m Trading revenues i the ncome
statements. The Firm penerally utilizes linancal instruments
across o variety of product types i connection with ils
market-making and related rsk management strategies. The
trading revenues presented in the table are not representative
of the manner in which the Firm mamages s business
aotivities and are prepared in a manner similar to the
presentation of trading revenues for regulatory reporting
Parposes,
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Irvestment Management Invesimants Revenues—Nat
Cumutative Unrealized Carried Intarest

At A
December 31, Cecembar 31,
$n mnin 20 2018
Flat cumulate urmakred perfommance-
b o % Fisk of Pavessing 5 T % T

The Firm's portion of net cumulative performance-based fees
i the form of unrealized cammed interest, for which the Firm
is not ohligated to pay compensation, is at nisk of reversing
when the retum in certain funds [all below specified
performance targets. See Mote 15 for information regarding
general  partmer  puarantecs, which include potential
obhpations to return performance fee distnbutions previously
received

Investment Managemant Asset Management Revenues—
Reduttion of Feas Due (o Fee Waivers

& ¥ 020 a1 2018
Ena walims § 136 § 41 § 56

The Firm waives a portion of i1s fees in the Investment
Management business segment from certain registered money
market funds that comply with the requairements of Rule 2a-7
of the Investment Company At of 19440,

Certain Other Fee Waivers

Separately, the Fim's employees, including s semsor
officers, may participate on the same terms and conditions as
other mwvestors i certain funds that the Firm sponsors,
primarily for chent imvestment, and the Firm may waive or
lower applicable fees and charges for its employees.

Mot Revenuas by Region

& iy etz 220 Falf: ] 2018
“Anricas $ 35,017 § 302 5 2030
EMEA 6430 B06T 6062
Asla 6751 5133 AT
Toaal 5 48198 § 41419 5 40,107

Income from Continuing Operations before ncoma Tax
Expanse (Banafit)

& 5% memn 2020 2018 2010

u.s. 3 10,027 § Dafd § FA04
Manllg" 4,301 1,837 3433
Toaal § 14418 5 11,300 5 11,237

1. Mol S icome i defined o inoore generated from operations located cutside
tha U3

MNal Discretn Tax Provisions (Banafila) by Segmant

& inng 20 2018 2018

(] §  (BE) S (4000 5 (20E)
i (50} (50 80)
L M on
Toval 3 (12205 (4TH S (368)

Morgan Stanley

The Fim operates in both U5, and non-U.5. markets, The
Firm's nen-11.58 business activiies are principally conducted
and mamaged through EMEA and Asia locations. The net
revenues disclosed in the previous table reflect the regional
view of the Firm's consolidated net revenues on a managed
basis, based on the following methodology

Institutional Securites: client location for advisory and equity
underwrnting, syndicate desk location for debt underwnting,
trading desk location for sales and trading,

Wealth Management: representatives operate in the Americas

lavestment Management: clieml location, except certan
closed-end funds, which are based on asset location

Revenues Recognized from Prior Servicas

ELL ] L N
§ 2298 %5 270h

MHeorimimes] reverLes

The previcus table includes revenues from contracts with
customers recogruzed where some or all services were
performed in prior periods and are pnmarily composed of
investment banking advisory fees and distribution fees.

Recoivables from Contracts with Customers

Al Al

Ducambar 31, Decembss 31,
& i i Faitll
Customeer and o necekyables. ] 3306 5 2018

Eeceivables from comtracts with customers, which are
included within Customer and other receivables in the balance
sheets, anse when the Firm has both recorded revenues and
hais the reght per the contraet to bill the castomer

Assats by Business Segment
At At
Decembar 39,  Dwcendtes 11

Enmona: e SR .| N
Insznunise sl Sacuriling ] ™I 5 01,201
Waath Wanagennent 155,505 107,682
I R o 8.8 S.046
Taotal' § 1015862 % BEE, 429

1. Pareni assbs b Basn fully aliocabed & the buslnass sagreants

Total Assets by Ragion
Al A

Ducambar 31, Decendher 31,
& i maligns P20 G
AnmSica § E16,048 § [erdabyi]
EMEA 194,553 i o
Al 106,16 B Aht
Tatal 3 1,116,883 § B AZD
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24. Parent Company

Parent Company Only—Condensed Income Statemants and

Comprobansiva Income Statemants

E ] 2020 unkl:] 208
Dawidends from buank st $ 2,01 § 3500 § 2060
Exwidmnos from BHG and non-tark subsiciaries 1,170 1,908 2004
Tesal dividends from subsicianias. 3,931 5520 4073
(284) {54} el
54 ) %)
378 6666 A0
388 54 5172
3T 4881 4RI
5T 460 356
Mot revenues 4,357 6018 5,378
Hon-inseeus dxpanies LA T
Enconis Bafon iNCons s 3,580 B.TEE R 1~3
Prosision for (haraflt from) incomas txes {108 {33 2
"Mat incoma bafors undisiribsiied gain
o subradiasias &, 0a0 5.784 514
Undisribuied gain of subsatiaries 6,907 284 387
Mal incoma 10,996 o042 8,748
CrFer compiensive incoms (lasi], net of tax
Foreign cumancy transiation adjsmsnts 102 (1] (114
Cn wradit. tr o secrigs 1080 L
Pensions ang othes 148 {6} LEN
Chargs in net debl valuation sojusinem (1,002) (15590 1454

Coomprelen it PGome

314,832 5 A546 § 0053

Ml income

Prafamed slod dadend " BMH\!H‘H
Ewmings applicabls to Morgar Starley
egmmen ahamholder

$10,996 5 9042 5 8748
486 hak FH

$10,800 5 8612 § AZR
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Farent Company Only—Condensed Balance Shoeats
At At
Docambar 31, Decenibar 39,
20 Mo gt S ] e
Aansls
Cash ard cash squbsmbenis 5 T2 5 LRl
Trading assals as fair valua 8,883 5747
Immsimen] seourides (ipcludes $20,037 and

15 054 o “nw valos: $24 248 anc 54 606

e (ERICAT 10 VANOUS PAries) am22E A7263
Sacur bed posthasid undar aghadaman b

resall o ntllntes 14,094 1114
Auvinoes [0 subsidiaries:

Bark ang B=C 22,682 27667

Haehark 13,59 10 26
Enuity invesimanis in subsidisnies:

Bark and B<C 82,0481 36003

Homshark AT 450 43,667
Crhar issats A54 244
Talsl sesnty 5 331,165 § 273,140
Lizbiiting
Tradir Babiltias &l fair vake 5 1823 § 1,030
e e e 24,34 4631
Payables to and advances from subsidanes 43,252 3HATD
Chhar Bsblilie ard sccrued axpenss FAL] 2,153
Bloferwings {inchodes 318,804 ard 320,861 a1

Tair varhos ) 150,079 1B 207
Total lisbikies 231,384 191 504
Commitmerts ard contingert llabilitiss {ses Mote 15)

Eaquity

Presfesmed wiock 9,250 Ba20
Cammon stogk, 5001 par vakus

Shares authorred: 3,500,000 000; Shams

Esued: T3 A0N BT Shares oulsianding:

1,808,834, 1 44 and 1850000 A0 i) 0
Aoiional paid-in cagial 25,546 3038
Retained anrings T FLE ]
Employes 5300k inuss 3,043 a.ma
Accurmdated olber conngeebanshe ircome:

{loss) 11,063] (2.788)
Conaman siock Fald in 1 ol coat 3001

par wnkun (223,260,535 ard (e lra ]

e} 1,767 (18.T2T)
Dun':r;nn sinck issusd to employes siock il G
Tatal sharsholders’ equity A0, 784 81,545
Totsl labdRies and squity H 133168 2 2140
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Parent Company Only—Condensed Cash Flow Statements

§ &y ity 2020 2019 018

Mot cash provided by (used for) oparating
activites

514,202 £24478 5 (0,135)

Canb flows fram investling activities
Procaeds from (paymaents foark
IFrd TV | BACLITIAG,

Purchases B3] @408  (8.155)
Procesds fom sakes L3 457 0252
Procesds o paydowns and maluiises 5054 3487 375

Securtims puhases under agreemerts (o
mdm'!?ulfh:lu (24,584) 15422 13,087

Seo s pold under aoreenen Lo
e rchass wich. affillades 18,719 4631 (B.7E3)

Achrdrnas 1o W!‘Hl-t‘ﬂmlﬁﬁal.bﬂm! (13,833 G0y v 8de
it cash proviced by (used for) investing

witivities (20,343] AT 12En
Rah e o e o . e e e e s e
Frocesds from:
bBsuarcs of prafermd slock, rel of isuaros
ENaln — 4aaf —_
hsuarcs of Bomowirgs 25,587 B33 1408
Prayremris for:
Berorningn (22,908) (24,283} (20.400)
Rapurchasss of comnean siook and
wtiplogma tax wekPakiings 1.880) (G564} (6.6AA]
Cash dividends 2,739) {282y (XA
Mnl change in advanoss from subsidlkes TR 43T IR
Gttwr financing activides {493) 12 —_

ot cash provided by (used for) financin
assiviges o T 5849 (10639} (12315

Efed of axchargs rals changes on cash and
cash squivalsrts 8] 271} (1EB)

Ml incraase [decrenss) in otk and cask
soLivalenis

(902 BEE (BB

Cash snd caih squbvalens, & begiering of
poriced Bee iaAaz 3k

Caih snd cash squivalars, stend of pedod § 7402 % dond § rade

Cash and cash equivalerts:
Cash ard ous Som barks F M % 65 &
Daposits with bank subsidi T4 B faAm

‘Cash and cash squivalants, stend of pardod 3 7,102 § B.0I0 § 7487
T T

Resiicied cash § 381 % — -

Supplomentsl Disclosune of Cash Flow Informaton

Cask payments for:
Lt Lt § 3472 5 4T 5 4798
Iroomna Taxes, net n!'rlﬂunun' 4,364 (AL 437

1 Fapratents Bl paernts,. nes of refands, mwmwmw
vl Vs psic] on Behal of certain subeidi that ars quantly sk
mmmemmmmmm
from subricSases wiwn 510 bilion 516 bilen and 51 6 bllom oy 2023 2000 and
e

On Movember 25, 2019, the Parent Compamy. 1ssued $500
million of Sertes L Prefermed Stock, and on January 15, 20040,
the Parent Company redeemed in whole its cutstanding Series
G Preferred Stock. For further information on preferred stock,
see Note 18,
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Morgan Stanley

Parent Company's Borrowings with Original Maturities
Greater than One Year

A A
Becombar 31, Decerber 30,

5 o metE 2035 i 1

Sanior % 148,885 5 137,138
et . Mgs hosr
Totsl 5 1890 = 147708

Transactions with Subsidizries

The Parent Company has transactions with 1ts conselidaged
subsidiarnies determained on an apreed-upon basis and has
guaranteed certain unsecured lmes of credit and contractual
obligations on ¢ertain of i3 consohdated subsidiaries.

Guairaniees

In the normal course of #s business, the Parent Company
puarantees certain of its subsicharies” obligations on a
transaction-by-transaction  basis  uwnder various financial
armangements. The Parent Company has issued guarantees on
behall of its subsidiaries to vanous U5 and non-LLS.
exchanges and clearinghouses that wade and clear securities
and/or futures contracts. Under these puarantee arangements,
the Parent Company may be required to pay the financial
ohligations of its sutsidiaries related 1o business transacted on
or with the exchanges and cleannghouses in the event of &
subsidiary’s default on its obligations to the exchange or the
clearinghouse. The Parent Company has not recorded any
contingent lability s condensed financial satements [or
these  amangements and  believes that any  potential
requirements o make payments under these armangements are
remate

The Parent Company also, in the nommal course of business,
prowides standard indemmnities fo counterparties on behall of
its subsidiaries for tawes, ncluding U3, and foreign
withhelding taxes, on interest and other povments made on
dernvatives, securities and stock lending transactions, and
certam annuily products, and may also provide indemnities 10
or on behalf of affilmtes from time to time for other
armangements. These mdemmty payments could be regquired,
as applicable, based on a change in the tax laws, change in
interpretation of applicable tax rulings or claims anising from
contracheal relationships between affiliates. Centain contracts
contain  provisions that enable the Parent Company to
terminate the agreement upon the occurrence of such events.
The maximum potentinl amount of [uture payments that the
Parent Company could be required to make under these
indemmnifications cannot be estimated. The Paremt Company
has not recorded any contimgent liability in it condensed
financial statements for these indemmifications and believes
that the occurrence of any events thatl would ripger payments
under these contracts is remaote,

393/424
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Guaraniees of Debt Instruments and Warramts lssued by
Subsidiarios
At i
Ducember 31, Decsmber 31,
5 dry R 0 D01tk
Aggmgate balirce 3 L B B

Guaraniees under Subsidiary Lease Obligations

AL Al
Dacember 31, December 31,
DL . . S .
Aggmgate balnce' i a5 5 Lo
1 Agrcurnts: pricrily radabs 1o e UK

Finance Subsidiary

The Parent Company fully and unconditionally puaraniees the
securittes issued by Morgan Stanley Finance LLC, a wholly
owned finance subsidiary. Mo other subsidiary of the Parent
Company guarantees these securilies,

Resalution and Recovery Planming

As ndicated in the Firm's 2019 resolution plan submitted to
the Federal Reserve and the FDIC, the Parent Company has
amended and restated its support agreement with its material
entities {including its wholly owned, direct subsidiary Morgan
Stanley Heldings LLC (the “Funding THC™) and certain other
subsidiaries), as defined in the Form's 2019 resolution plan.
Under the secured. amended and restated supporl agreement,
in the event of a resolution scenario, the Parent Company
would be abligaied to coninbate all of its matenal assets that
can be comtnbuted under the terms of the amended and
restated =support agreement {other than shares i subsidianes
of the Paremt Company and certain  other  assets)
("Contributable Asses™) to the material entities and'or the
Funding [HC. The Funding IHC would be obligated to
provide capital and liquidity, as applicable, to the material
entities.

Diecember 2020 Form H-E 130
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Changes in and  Disagreements  with
Accountants on  Accounting and  Finmancial
Disclosure

Mone.
Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectivencss of Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Ussder the supervision and with the participation of the Firm's
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Fimancial Officer, the Fom conducted an evalwmuon of
digclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined
under Exchange Act Rule 1 3a-15(¢), Based on this evaluation,
the Chiel Executive Officer and Chiel Financial Offieer
concluded that the Firm's discloswre controls and procedures
were effective as of the end of the period covered by this
annual report

Managements Repert an Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting

The Firm's management is responsible [or establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting.
The Fim's internal confrol over [nancial reporting is
designed to provide repsonable assumnce regarding the
reliability of fnancral reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purpeses in secordance with
generally accepled accounting principles in the Unated States
of Amenca ("5, GAAPT).

EDINETOOOO
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Morgan Stanley

The intemal controf over fmancial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

Pertain to the mainterance of records that, in reasonable
detml, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions amd
dispositions of the assets of the Firm;

* Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
A5 necessary (o permil preparation of financial statements in
accordance with US. GAAP, and that receipls and
expenditures are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of the Firm’s management and directors; and

* Provide reasonable assurance reparding prevention or

uimely detection of wwuthorized acquisiion, wse or

disposition of Firm assets that could have a matenal effect
on the Firm"s financial statemenis.

Because of s mherent limitabions, wiemnl control ever
financial reporting may notl prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to fulure
perids are subject to the nsk that controls may become
inadequate becawse of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of comphance with the pohoies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Firm's intermal
conirol over financial reporting as of December 31, 2020, In
making this assessment, management used the cntena set
forth by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (“COS07) m Internal Control—
Integrated Framework (2013). Based on  management's
assessiment and those chtena, management believes that the
Firm maintaned effective mntemal control over financial
reporiing as of December 31, 2020,

The Firm's independent registered public accounting hirm has
audited and 1ssued a report on the Firm's intemal control ever
financial reporting, which appears below.

157 December 20200 Form [{-k
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Maorgan Stankey

Opinion on Internal Contral over Finsncial Reporting

We have audited the imtemnal control over {inancial reporting
of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the “Firm™) as of
December 31, 2020, based on enterwa established in Inernal
Control — Integrated Framework (2003) imued by the
Committee of Sponsonng Organizations of the Treadway
Cammission (COS0). In cur opinion, the Firm maintained, in
all matenial respects, effective intemnal contrel over financial
reporting as of December 31, 20200 based on critena
established in Intermal Control — Integrated Framework
(2013) 1ssued by COS0,

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
{(PCAOR), the financial statements of the Firm as of and for
the vear ended December 31, 2020 and our report dated
February 26, 2021 expressed an ungualified opinion on those
firsancial statements.

Basis for Opinion

The Firm's management is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control over fmancial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial  reporting,  included  in the  accompanying
Management's Report on [ntemal Control Cwer Financial
Beporting. Cur responsibility 5 1o ¢xpress an opinin on the
Firm’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit. We are a public accountimg firm registered with the
PCAOE and are required to be mdependent with respect 1o
the Firm 1n accordance with the US. federal secunties laws
and the applicable rules and regulations of the Secunities and
Exchange Commission and the PCADRB

We eonducted our audit in accordance with the standards of
the PCACR. Those standards require that we plan and
perform  the audit 1o oblain reasonable assurance abowl
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
mamtained n all matersal respects. Our audnt included
obtaming an understanding of imternal control over fnancial

reporting,

fg! Dieloitie & Touche LLE
Mew York, New York
February 26, 2021

Diecember 2020 Form H-E

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control Based on the assessed risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
PN,

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over
Financial Reporting

A company”s internal control over financeal reporting is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliabality of fimancial reperting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally  accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company,
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
reconded as necessary (o permil peeparation of [inancial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authonizations of
management and directors of the company;, and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tmely detection
of unmsthorized acquisition, wse, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements,

Because of its nheremt lmitations, internal control over
finamcial reporting may not prevent of detect misstatements,
Also, prjections of anv evaluation of effectiveness 1o future
perwods are subject to the nsk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
dateriorate
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Morgan Stanley:

Opinion on the Financiad Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Morgan Stanley and subsidiaries (the “Firm”) as of
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the related consolidated income statements, comprehensive income statements, cash flow
statements and statements of changes in total equity for each of the three years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, and
the related notes (collectively referred to as the “financial statements’). In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Firm as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years ended December 31, 2020, 2019, and 2018, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States)
(PCAOB), the Firm's internal control over financia reporting as of December 31, 2020, based on criteria established in
Internal Control — Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 26, 2021, expressed an unqualified opinion on the Firm's internal control over
financial reporting.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Firm’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Firm’s financia statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the PCAOB and are required
to be independent with respect to the Firm in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due
to error or fraud. Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included
examining, on atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audits also included
evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements. We believe that our audits provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current-period audit of the financial statements that
were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (1) relate to accounts or disclosures that
are material to the financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The
communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the financial statements, taken as awhole, and
we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matters or on
the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Vauation of Level 3 Financial Assets and Liabilities Carried a Fair Vaue—Refer to Note 5 to the financia statements
Critical Audit Matter Description
The Firm's trading and financing activities result in the Firm carrying material financial instruments having limited price

transparency. These financial instruments can span a broad array of product types and generally include derivative, security,
loan, and borrowing positions. As described in Note 5, these Level 3 financial instruments approximate $18.4 billion and $10.2
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billion, respectively, of financial assets and liabilities accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2020.

Unlike financial instruments whose inputs are readily observable and, therefore, more easily independently corroborated, the
valuation of financial instruments classified as Level 3 is inherently subjective and often involves the use of unobservable
inputs, as well as proprietary valuation models whose underlying algorithms and valuation methodol ogies are complex.

We identified the valuation of Level 3 financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value as a critical audit matter given the
Firm uses complex valuation models and/or model inputs that are not observable in the marketplace to determine the respective
fair values. Performing our audit procedures to evaluate the appropriateness of these models and inputs involved a high degree
of auditor judgment, professionals with specialized skills and knowledge, and an increased extent of testing.

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation estimate for financial instruments that are classified as Level 3 included the

following, among others:

* We tested the design and operating effectiveness of the Firm's valuation controls, including model review and price
verification, which are designed to test the appropriateness of the Firm's valuation methodologies as well as the relevant
inputs, and assumptions used to determine the fair value estimates.

» We independently evaluated the appropriateness of management’s significant valuation methodologies, including the input
assumptions, considering the expected assumptions of other market participants, and external data, when available.

» We developed independent valuation estimates for certain financial instrument selections, using externally sourced inputs
and independent valuation models, and used such estimates to further evaluate management’s fair value estimate, including
comparing the estimate with similar transactions and evaluating the Firm’'s assumptions inclusive of the inputs, as
applicable.

* We tested the revenues arising from the trade date valuation estimate for certain structured transactions classified as Level 3
financial instruments. For a selection of such transactions we developed independent valuation estimates to test the valuation
inputs and assumptions used by the Firm and evaluated whether the methods were consistent with relevant Firm valuation
policies.

» We assessed the consistency by which management has applied significant and unobservable valuation assumptions.

* We performed a retrospective assessment of management’s valuation estimates for a sample of financial instrument
selections by comparing such estimates to relevant transactions.

Intangible Assets—Vauation of Customer Relationship Intangible Assets for the E*TRADE Financia Corporation
(“E*TRADE") Acquisition—Refer to Note 3 to the financial statements

Critical Audit Matter Description

On October 2, 2020, the Firm completed the acquisition of E* TRADE for approximately $11.9 billion. The Firm accounted for
the acquisition under the acquisition method of accounting for business combinations. Accordingly, the purchase price was
allocated to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values, including identified intangibles of
approximately $3.3 billion. Of the identified intangible assets acquired, the most significant were the customer relationship
intangible assets of $2.8 billion. Management, with the assistance of a valuation specialist, estimated the fair value of customer
relationship intangible assets using the income approach, which determines the fair value as the present value of forecasted
future cash flows. The determination of fair value of the assets involves significant estimates and assumptions related to
forecasted future cash flows and the selection of the respective discount rate.

We identified the valuation of customer relationship intangible assets as a critical audit matter because the fair value
determination requires management to make significant estimates and assumptions in determining the forecasted future cash
flows including revenue growth rates and attrition rates as well as the selection of the discount rate. Performing audit
procedures to evaluate the reasonableness of these estimates and assumptions required a high degree of auditor judgment and
an increased extent of effort, including the involvement of our valuation specialists.

423/424



EDINETOI OO
OO00O000000O(E5871)
Ooooodo

How the Critical Audit Matter Was Addressed in the Audit

Our audit procedures related to the valuation of customer relationship intangible assets acquired as part of the E* TRADE
acquisition included the following, among others:

* We tested the operating effectiveness of internal controls over the valuation methodology used, the determination of
forecasted future cash flows, and the selection of the discount rate.

» We assessed the knowledge, skill, ability and objectivity of management’s valuation specialist and evaluated the work
performed.

» We evaluated the appropriateness of the valuation methodology used and the reasonableness of the forecasted future cash
flows for each selected customer relationship intangible asset, specifically the assumptions relating to revenue growth and
attrition rates, as well as whether the assumptions used were reasonable considering external market and industry data as
well as the past performance of E* TRADE. We also performed sensitivity analyses to evaluate the impact of changes in
assumptions to the valuation of the customer relationship intangible assets.

» We tested the source information underlying the determination of the discount rates and attrition rates and also tested the
mathematical accuracy of the calculations.

» We developed arange of independent estimates of discount rates for the selected customer relationship intangible assets and
compared those to the respective discount rate utilized by management.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP
New York, New Y ork
February 26, 2021

We have served asthe Firm's auditor since 1997.
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